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2018 in brief

In 2019, sales increased to SEK 1,519 (1,366) million and operating profit aND Nus;sf:gggeﬂsﬂ WINS
was SEK 243 [251] million. The average number of empioyees during the e
year was B17 [536).

February: HMS opens a new office in Seoul, South Korea

i}

April: HMS acquires the majonty of Garman company WEB{actory GmbH, a leading

provider of web-based software solutions far autemation and lloT
PRODUCT OFFERING

April: HMS opens a new sales and support office in Dubai, UAE. Anybus® . .
) - EWON® Lo e e e
Apnl: HMS launches HMS Hub™, a new platform for lloT where Hardware meets R i W Intesis™ ...
Software ™. WSALES . NUMBER OF TOTAL DESIGN WINS |xxatt .
In total, HMS gensrated 190 new Design Wine dumg Platforms for the future ... 022

April: HMS announces a collaboration with Encsson regarding smart manufacturing 2019 This bngs the lotal numbar of active Design
over 5G. Wins fo 1,787 {1,683), an icreess of 6% comparsd to
the previous yaer. SUSTAINABILITY

Focus areas ...

May HMS acquires Raster Products B.V., which 15 HMS' primary distributor of Ewon

products in the Netherlands.

September: HMS wins the prestigious Swedish Enterprise Award in Germany

September: HMS implements a cost reduction program to adapt to weaker market

EMPLOYEES / COUNTRY

Employees ... .. .
Environmental impact
Sustainable busINEss .........oeeiiiicn

Social comrmtments ... .. 33
Auditor's report on the statutory

conditions. In total, the program affects 43 employees throughout the group. sustainability report

CctoberfNovember: Dunng the fall trade fairs, HMS launches a number of solutions
under the theme “Hardware Meets Software ™, all of which enable industrial hardware
lo connect to [oT software.

Charrman's comments ..... ......
Corporate govemance report

o et iy Board's internal contral report
November. HMS delivers the 7,000,000th Anybus product o A1 Corporation. ?:;Rmsuﬂove Wiy P
FRANCE, vy Board of Directors .
g&n‘m l:g'& 1% Group management
= 3 LLAND.
FINANCIAL INFORMATION IN BRIEF, 1 BELGHIM, #% Extended management team .
K 2019 2M8 2017 2016 2015
Net sales 1519 1366 1.183 952 702
Growth in net sales, % H 15 24 6 19 OPERATING PROFIT
“ AND MARGIN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
Operating profit 243 251 212 149 102 CFO'S COMMENTS
Cparating margin, % 18 18 18 16 15 DIRECTORS' REPORT
Profit {loss] for the year 205 171 143 100 60 NOTES ...
Nat profit margin, % 135 125 124 108 86 BOARD'S AFFIRMATION
Order e 4 Lazs 1204 o5 o8z AUDITREPORT . . . s
rer mtake AT ‘ MULTI-YEAR QVERVIEW ..........occc .o
Earnings per share, basic, SEK 443 3.68 3.06 218 133 HMS NETWORKS GRI APPENDIX 2019 i
Earnings per share, dituied, SEK 4,40 3,65 304 216 133 NOTICEOFAGM ... (oo o - s
Cash flow from operating activibias 254 183 207 155 o0
Average number of employees during the year 817 536 486 467 359 BOPERATING PROFIT "' OFERATING MARGIN
HMS NETWCRKS ANMUAL REPORT 2013 1
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A more connected, productive and sustainable world

MY POINT-OF-VIEW:
“CONNECTING DEVIC MORE RELEVANT THAN EVER
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HMZ STOCK

MARKET

UUR OPERATIO

Poriernane o

2019 has been ayear of change in many ways with
an unpredicuble market, new wchnology advance-
ments and acquisitions for the future. During the
year, we developed new solutions and reorganizad
ourselves in order to continue helping industrial
companies around che world to get connected. Al
according  our monte “Connecring Devices.”

Sales increased by 11% during che year, bur
with a clear slowdown in the sccond half of the
vear, as many of our customers saw a weaker
demand in the shor term.

AGCQUISITIONS

During 2019, we made two smaller acquisitions.
We acquired and integrated our Duech diseriburor
Raster Products BV, w screngthen our presence in
the Benelux countries, and we also acquired the
interesting German software company WEBfac-
tory GmbH. HMS's ambition is w enable hard-
ware ta meet software (HMS — Hardware Meets
Sofrware™) and WEBfactory enables us o take an
important step in this direction, Their sofrware
solutions for processing and visualizing daa from
industrial machines and processes, creare addi-
tional values for eur customers and enable them o
improve their productivity and sustainabilicy.

In 2019, we also established an HMS office n
Dubai in the United Arab Emirates. We believe
that this market is interescing for our brands Inre-
sis {communication solucions for building auto-
marion] and Ewon {moniteting of machines and
plancs), and within a few years, this marker will
drive further growth.

WEAK GROWTH LEAD TO

COST-SAVINGS PROGRAM

The weak growth during the year caused us w
implement a cost-savings program during the fall,
partly to reduce our costs but also 10 create an

STAINABILITY  GOVERMNANCE

arganizacion that can rake new sceps rowards new
growth in the coming years. This means chac 43
peaple left HMS in connection with the cost-sas -
ings program. Despice chis, we ended 2019 wuh
624 employees in 16 countries, an increase of 5%
people during the full year 2019 — 4 clear indica-
tion that our growth ambitions continue.

NEW TECHNOLOGY FOR THE FUTURE
During the year. Industrial IoT rechnolegy from
the German technolegy company Beck IPC
GmbH which was aquired by HMS in 2018, was
implemented into our rechnology placform and
the frst related products — Anybus Edge and Trxac
Smartarid — were launched.

We also continued warking with solutons for
the fifth generation of cellular nerworks (5¢)
tegether with several leading wlecom companies.
50 as a technology has excellent qualicies for
industrizl communication and we believe thar it
will play an increasingly important role in indus-
trial applications in the coming vears, both in crt-
ical applications where there are high demands on
time synchronization and securiry, buc also in
applications where a lor of data from sensors need
to be collected for statistical applications for pre-
dicuve mantenance. HMS plays an acuve role as
an “early adaprer” of 5G rechnology and during
2019, we carried our several resc inseallations,
mainly in the German industrial sector. wgether
with leading, Nordic telecom campanies and their
OperAIors.

HELPING CUSTOMERS
BECOME SUSTAINABLE
Druring the year, we continued our sustainability
efforcs hased on the UN guidelines according o
GRI. Ac HMS, we see this as a natural continua-
uon of vur long-standing commitment to sustain-

[LCS IV FINANCIAL INFT GRIADPPE MO

ability. The primary focus is to continue to develap
solutions that help our customers reduce their
resource utilization and energy consumption while
increasing productivicy. 1t is in this area that HMS
has the greatest opportunity to make a difference.
As 2 company, we atse need ta be a good employer
who takes environmental responsibilities and uses
sustainable selutions in our production and our
other operations.

TRENDS THAT DRIVE OUR BUSINESS

We see a bright future shead, where HMS can
benefir from strong global trends such as Digitali-
cation, Auromation and Sustainabilicy with the
related rechnolegy rrends Industrie 4.0, Induserial
[oT, 5G, CyberSecurity and Ardficial Inielligence
(Al). All are arcas where HMS already has prod-
uces and solutiens for cur industrial customers,
However, we know that our customers typically
need several years 1o move ta new technologies, so
it feels very good thac our traditional induserial
eommunication products remain attracrive and
profirable for the industrial communication sys-
tems of roday and tomorrow.

Together with the company’s management
team. ] would like to extend a big thank you to all
employses, customers, pareners, suppliers and
sharcholders for a successful year for HMS on sev-
eral levels, but also a year in which we built for the
future. We look forward with confidence to the
coming years and a conrinued growth journey
ogether,

Staffan Dablstrém
President and CEQ

REHIILOFR M8

CEQ'S COMMENTS

HMS NETWORKS ANNUAL REPORT 2049 3



RKET [CLIROPERATICNS  PRO

HMS STOCK

HMS stock
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HMS stock has been listed on the NASOAQ OMX Stockhalm Mid Can list, in the Information Technology sector, since 19 October
2007 The 1SIN code of the stock is SEQDO3897018. Shares are traded under the HMS ticker. A trading |ot is 1 share.

HMS STOCK PERFORMANCE 2019
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NUMBER OF SHARES AND SHARE CAPITAL
HMS has a woual of 46,818,868 shares, The share
capical amounts to SERK 1,170,472 All shates hase
the same voting nghts.

PRICE TREND

In 2019, HMSY share price incieased by 40% to
SER 173 {123) per share. OMX Informacion
Technology rose by 18% during the same periad
and, in zoral. Nasdag Stockholm rose by 30%. The
highese price paid during che vear for HMS shares
was SEK 205 in June 10, and the lowest price paid
was SLK 117 in January 4. At year-end 2019,
HMS's marker capitalization was SEK 8,090
{5.759) million.

TRADING VOLUME

A wotal of 10.2 milhon shares were uaded durmg
the vear, salued ar SEK 1,541 11,330) million,
which corresponds to an annual twrnover rawe of
22% (20, Onaverage, 41,001 (38,038) shares were
traded for 3 value of SEK 6,188 (5.322; thousand
each trading day.

DIVIDEND POLICY

HMS's policy is o pyy znnual dividends of
approximately 30% of the met profic far the year.
The dividend amount is adapted to the company’s
earnings level. financial posttion and furure
growth opporunities For 2020. the Board and
CEO propose dividends of SEK 1,90 (1.80) pes
share, which corresponds o approximarely 43%
ol net profic for the year. Over the last five years,

average dividends have been nearly 47% of nec
profic for the year. HMS stock has had an average
yield of 1.35% per vear over the last five years.

INCENTIVE PROGRAM

All HMS emplovees were invited o participace in
an incencwe program, which will involve savings
in HMS shares during 2020.

SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDER
STRUCTURE

As of 31 Decemnber, HMS Nevworks AR (pubt)
had approximately 4,568 (4,098) sharcholders.
The en largesc shareholders represenced ~3.%%
(70.6} of the voting rights and vapical.

THE FOLLOWING ANALYSTS MONITOR
HMS ON A CONTINUOUS BASIS:
Vikeor Hagberg, Danske Bank.

SHAREHOLDERS, BASED ON HOLDINGS
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2012

r Number of ‘
Shareholding shareholders %
1-500 3.250 711
501-1.500 526 15
1.804-5,000 572 12.5
| 5001-10.000 8% 19’

| 10001-15,000 23 05

| 15,001-20.000 22 os |

i 20.001- 87 19
Total T aseE 000

CONTENTS  SEARCH
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SHARE CAPITAL TREND

SULTAINABILITY

GUVERNA

FINANCIAL INFI

Change in Total

Change In no. Total share capltal, share capital,

Year Trar d of shares no. of shares. SEK SEK
2004 Company formed 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
2004 New share 1ssue 900,000 1,000,000 900,000 1,000,000
2005 New share 1s5ue 22,100 1,022,100 22,100 1,022,100
2006 New share issue 1.900 1,024,000 1,800 1,024,000
2007 Warrants 33,165 1,057,165 33,168 1,057,165
2007 Split 10:1 8,514,485 10,571,650 0 1,067,165
2009 Warrants 581,250 11,152,900 56,128 1,115290
2012 Warrants 189,500 11,322,400 16,950 1,132,240
2016 Non-cash issue 382,317 1M.704,717 38,232 1,170,472
2017 Spli 4.1 35,114,151 46,818,868 0 1,170,472

KEY FIGURES™

Shara price {last trading day) .oom
Volume-weighted average share price 181
Average sales per day, SEKm 82
Averaga number of shares iradad per day #1081 |
Na. of sharas 44,819
Earmings per share, basic, SEK A3
Eamings per share, diluted, SEK AA0
Market cap, SEK m™ 8,060
Enterprisa value, EV (Market cap + net debf}, SEK m™ 8402
PIE 0.0
Nat debt EBITDA* | 42
EVIEBITDA w5
EV/Net sales 1]

123
140
53
38,038
15,819
368
365
5759
6,101
334
11

124
15
29
25,168
45,819
306
.04
5.808
£.108
40.5
12
236
52

7%
80
a9
14,876
46,818
216
216
3,558
3,977
2
22
211
42

61

51

[oR:}
18,064
45,290
133
133
2,774
2,951
a60Q
13
218
42

* The HMS share was listedl 207
** Total number af shaces
- In accordance with IER216, Jegsing liabtes are report=d in -he net deb ine 22 3

OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2018

W SWEDISH INSTITUTIONAL OWNERS, 74%
i SWEDISH INDIVIDUALS, 10%
W FOREIGN OWNERS 16%

GREAPPLHOY REHILOERANED

HMS'S 10 LARGEST SHARE- Share of volos
HOLDERS ON 31 DEC 24018 No. of shares and equrty

Invesimant AB Latour 12,109,288 25.8%
Staffan Dahlstrdm 6,468,292 13 8%
Swedbank Robur fondsr 4,036,086 8.6%
SEB Fondar 3572726 76%
Handelsbanken Fander 2,133,821 4 6%
Livforsakringsbolaget Skandia 2,116,939 4.5%
Siate Street Bank & Trust 1,233,907 26%
AMF Forsékring och Fondar - 1,176.853 2.5%
Fosielund Holding AB 950,000 2.0%
Skandia Fonder 788,723 17%
Othar ' 12,231.323 17.6%
Total 45,818,868

MY PRINT-OF-VIEW
A STRONG FOUNDATION AND
INTERESTING NEW TECHNOLOGY

The feundation of our business is a large
base of Design Wins, which generate recur-
ring business for HMS every year. Although
we have seen a slowdown in the economy
during 2019, we still have stable cash flows
from: these Design Wins. As a complement,
we see more ard more customers looking
inte new technologies and investing in solu-
tions to enable the Industrial Intemet of
Things.

Jaalkim Nidsbom — CFO
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- HMS gats industrial devices and machines connected

, ) mﬂmwﬁm need to be connected - to strrounding Systerms and the Internet, This is exactly what HMS does, and has been doing
C 9 'Mamafm exampies of how HMS gnatles devices, machines and even entire factories and buildings to get connected.

INDUSTRIAL INTERNET OF THINGS (HOT)
Connecting machines to the inremet for surveil-
3 lance and control, enabling reports and statistics
. mnmx CONNECTIVITY any time, anywhere. HMS has several solutians
Cnmcdnganlndmmal device to any industrial for remote management Jod connecting
: ‘et on the faceory fAoor. This means thas the machines to the Internet.
device can be used in different marker segmenes

nndwphmlmons,aﬂofwhtd-usedn[&r—
ent industrial networks.

REMOTE ACCESS
Providing service teams with access to
their machines or sites for remote pra-
gramming and maintenance, saving
travel costs and enabling faster service.

COMMUNICATION EXPERTISE
Helping device manufaceurers and machine builders

with m—d:pth knowledge about communicacion issucs
and ized hardwate and sofs

TONNECTING BUILDINGS
Connecting heating, vencitation and air-conditioning units to building
gutomacion systerns, making sure that chey can communicate,

FUNCTIONAL SAFETY
Makdng, sure that 4 device or machine
can icate on safery 4
for ernergency swops and more.

WIRELESS COMMUNICATION
Giving devices and machines wircless access via WLAN or Bluetooth
which teduces witing, enabling users 1o check machine stats with 2
smartphone or tabler.
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MARKET TRENDS — DRIVING FORCES

Trends — what is driving the industrial world to get connected?

GLOBALIZATION:
ACCESS TO INFORMATICN
ANYWHERE

CONNECTING ENVIRONMENTAL AND

THE NEW AND THE OLD ENERGY EFFICIENCY FOCUS ON SECURITY WIRELESS ACCESS

& ‘"
&

strial syster

main cortribution fo

Ve et «
conservalion and energ E “ting on ed, e s

efficient production po ) AN 3 ) Y E U o petr wath thee reguirpmeents

wdustaal pre

HMS NETWORKS ANNLIAL REFORT 2018 7
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BUSINESS MODEL AND THE VAL UE WE CREATE

Business madels — How HMS generates revenue

HMS products are sold to customers in all parts of the value chain - automation manufacturers, machine builders, system
integrators, end users, and mare. The business models vary depending on the customer, market and product offering.
HMS typicaily uses three different business models: direct sales (Design Wing), indirect sales via distribution and soiutian
partners, and services and subscriptions,

I 1.DIRECT SALES AND DESIGN WINS 2. INDIRECT SALES REVENUE DISTRIBUTION
The customer integrates supporc for HMS solutions inteo cheir Thus business madel is based on 2 network of around 300 independent
produet, and then order HMS products on a recurring basis. A distributors with grear technical experrise conering approximately 50 coun-
Design Win typically involves a long-rerm collaboration wich a tries. They ensure thae HMS products are sold 1o local projecs. The target
maznufacturer of automation equipment. Sales arc handled groups are primarily local syseem integretors, installers and machine buuld-
directly with the customer and alcthough the sales cycle 15 rela- ers who are working 1o integrate neoworks, and design communicacions
tively long, the upside 1 a steady scream of income over a long salutions for various applications.

period of time, provided that the customer’s autemarion prod-

uct gains market acceptance.
m DIRECT SALES, 70%

For some customers, FIMS offers customized hardware and - SALES ViA DISTRIBUTORS, 30%

software solutions chat meet customer-specific requirements,

ERVICES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS
When HMS sells a product that enables remate

P connectivicy o induserial equipment, the cus-
DIRECT SALES comer also subscribes 10 4 web-based service
EMBEDDED INTHE : ; oL through which both the customer and its approved

CUSTOMER'S PROOUCT -2 . users pain access 10 their cquipment onbine.

RESULTS IN DESIGN WINS Custamers whe purchase HMS produces are

also offered product-refated echnical services.
I'hese services are provided by HMS or HMSS
partners, targeting o ensure correct use of the
products,

SERVICES AN
SUBSCRIPTIONS

B HMS NETWORKS ANNUAL REFORT 2018
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BUSINESS MOBELAND YHE VALUE WE CHEATE

EXPECTATIONS

CUSTOMERS

Qur cuslomars expect us to be able 1o solve
their industrial commumication challenges.
To do thal, we must also understand thesr
future challenges so that we can deliver
high qualrty, future-proof products and
tumkay solutions.

EMPLOYEES

HMS strives to offar a workplace that boih
atlracts and relains employees wha have
tha skills and commilmant to provida the
markel with industrial communication
solutions for the future. Wa ara expected to
provide sacurity and carear development
oppartunitias, as wall as invaolving our am-
ployees in the company's journay.

SUPPLIERS AND PARTNERS
Qur suppliers and partners expect HMS to
ba a slabie, long-term partner thal creates
and shares value. This raquires mutual
trust, respect and transparency.

SHAREHOLDERS

Our shareholders expeclt HMS 1o keep on
delivering profitable growth se thal we can
provids them with & return on Lheir invested
capital. Qur owners also expact us to act
athically and responsibly.

SOCIETY

HMS has an opportunity to create more
sustainable davelopment at the global level.
Digitalization and smart industnal commu-
nicalions can help creale more energy-ef-
ficlent solutions, but they alog bring high
demands for security. HMS is expactad 1o
1ake ils responsibility as an employer and
laxpayer.

OUR BUSINESS

VISION

tn a world where all devices are mialligenl and
networked, HMS is the leader in making mdustrial
devices and systems communicate — for a more
productive and sustainable world

MISSION

Ve dnve innovation in collaboration with pariners and
customers creabng leading technalogies, products and
solubions bringing value to real-world chailenges.

STRATEGIES

VALUES -HMS HI §

4 Customer Comm:tment

Wa will always priontize our commitmant to customers

2 Growth and Innovation
Yvo will grow and be innovative

3 Long-Term Parspertiva

Wa pursue our work with 2 long-term perspactive
4 Strong Relatlonships

Wae baelieve in building relationships

5 Laan & Efficient
We are efficlent

WHAT WE CREATE

SOLUTIONS FOR
INDUSTRIAL
COMMUNICATION AND 1IOT
The core of HMS's mission is summed
up in the motlo, Connacling Cavicas™
— providing solutions for industrial
communication and |loT.

‘Tha products are facusad on different
markat sagmanis, and ara offered in
both standardizad and customized
formats.

Asg 8 suppliar to all parts of tha industrial
valug chain, HMS has unique insight
inte the markel's communication needs,
which ensures success in our continual
product developmant efforis.

GOALS

LONG-TERM OPERATING
GROWTH: MARGIN:

20% >20%

O Al least #0% of deliveries must be
made on tme.

(O Produdl returms must ba less than
200 ppm (pars per million).

TAKEHOLDER VALUE

CUSTOMERS

‘When customers choose HMS, they get a
partner that can solve both curran and future
communication neads. Our commitment, along
with the high technical level of our products,
providecustamers with great flexibility, produc-
tivity, reliabilty and a longer product lifetima.

EMPLOYEES

HMS amployess ara given the opportunily to
devalop in & modern, dynamic and growing
organization with & wide network of intema-
tional contacts. T! bles career cppor-
tunities and fostars a sense of pride, with an
undertying confidenca in HMS as a secure
and long-term employer.

SUPPLIERS AND PARTNERS

We develop our suppliers by bsing damand-
ing and setting high expectations. In collabo-
ration with our pariners, we create velue and
develop future solutions for our customers.

SHAREHOLDERS

HMS creates value for its owners via both
shara parformance and divdends. HMS
stnves to achieve a long-term, stable dividend
for the shareholders. It alsa has an explicit
dividend policy to distribute up lo 50% of the
prafit.

SO0CIETY

HMS producis lower anargy consumption in
the industral sacter. Remate monitoring sofu-
tions make a large contribution here, because
they reduce or sliminata the need to travel
As an employer, HMS contributes to the lacal
ecanomy in several regions across the globe
and the company is proaciive in ensuring that
it has strong ties with socisty.

ANNARAL
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HMS goals for profitable and sustainable grawth

For several years, HMS's goal has besn to grow by 20% each vear while maintaining an operating margin of at least 20%, and over the last 10
years, HMS has been growing tiy 18% per year with an 18% average profitability. In 2019, the growth was 11% with an operating margin of 18% and
we can thus conlude that we did not quite reach our goals. However, as the industrial world is Bbecoming increasingly connected, HMS has excel-
lant opportunities for future growth. The well-established brands Anybus, Ewon, Intesis, and Ixxat address ditferent aspects of communication
problems in various markets and they are continually being expanded and developed with new products and solutions for industrial communica-

tion and lloT.
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ORGANIC GROWTH AND
SUPPLEMENTARY ACQUISITIONS

HMS aims to cxpand. primatily via orgamic
growth, and strengthen its pasition by conunually
developing its range of products and services.
Selective acquisitions may also be made if they are
2 valuzble addition to HMS's technolagy and/or
offering o the marker.

FOCUSED, SUSTAINABLE PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT

HMS's preduces will continue to be developed in
line with new customer requirements and
technalogical trends. In addition to the sales goals,
the aim is tn serengehen HMY's marker posirion as
a leading supplier of user-friendly and secure
solutions for industrial communication. The
importance of security in industrial applications is
wicreasing as 4 resulc of the growing need for new,
innovative internet-connected communication

solutions. HMS is well-positiened in this
thanks 10 ongomg collaborations with leading
induscrial companies.

The cornerstone of all development work is 1o
create significant value by designing products that
focus on market needs, while maincaining focus
on quality and environmental aspects. HMb'S
products and solutions are based on the latest,
proven, sustainable technology for induserial
networking, wireless communication, remore
maonitoring and laT.

GLOBAL PLAYER WITH LOCAL PRES-
ENCE

Local presence is one of the key factors for HMS as
a global company. HM5 currendy has 16 own
sales and marketing offices in key strategic
markets. In addition, HMS has a well-established
network of selected distributors in more than 50
counrries. Tharks to this organizadien, HMS is
able w ensure quick, efficient produce sales as well

AROCULTS

AINABILITY  GOVERNANLE

as proacrive Technical Services offered in local
languages.

SUSTAINABLE VALUE CHAIN

HMS customers require high-quality products
thar are easy o install and use. Another
requiremnent is the zbility o use products for a
long period of time. HMS is able 10 meec all of
these requirements as we have full control vver the
entire value chain, from produce development,
component supply and manufacturing, o
distribution, sales, training and after-sales service.
Qur (BMS)

specifies and monitors the processes and ensures

Business Manzgement  System

quality and continuous improvement in the entire
value chain,

Products are manufactured at our own facilites
and by exclusive subcontractors in Lurope and
Asia, with whom HMS collaborates closely.
HMS's own production facility is located right
next 0 the development center in Halmsiad, This
is where production tkes place for promoypes,
small series and cerain customized produoces,
along with final assembly and quality conerol. By
maintaning its own manufacturing operations
capabilities, high
competence in this area and can centinue to be
highly demanding with respect to subcontractors,

For many years. HMS has been certified
according to the {SO 9001 quality management
standard, as have all of strawegically imporeant
subcontractors. HMS’s sustainability seravegy 15

and HMS mainains a

based on the corporate vision and core values,
along with the respect that the cempany shows for
all of irs stakeholders (customers, emplovees,
shareholders and suppliers).

HMS5's most significant contribution tea more
sustainable society is that we manufacture products
that enable major energy savings and efficiency
improvements for users, with minimal environ-
mental impact during the produce lifespan.

GL
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FINANCIAL
OBJECTIVES

Long-term grawth of

20%

Operating margin

>20%
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OUTCOME
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Staying close to the customers

With offices In 16 countries and distributors in another 50 or so, HMS is represented in ail major industrial markets. HMS products
have been instafled throughout the waorld, but are primarily foung in countries with a strong manufacturing industry,
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THE MARKET - HMS SALES REGIONS

MY POINT-OF-VIEW - HMS REGIONAL MANAGERS ABOUT THIER MARKETS

In Europe w
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manutaci

for lrue flexibilily will be the nex
benelit irom that

tin digital transformation
. r been greater. In 2019, lloT produc
X in the Ameri We are ecting lhe pac
; in 2020, With our b
Hub cloud offering. HMS is
between IT and OT, and the gener.

T

&

H : The Asia Pacific
: and is currenlly going through a trans
region is to contin offeri
order to enable the smart (a:
HH new manufacluring sites with a greal ne
convergence. Our tradilional s
make HMS w
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Anybus-* Ewonr Intesis” IXxat’

BY HME NETWORKS ¥ HMS NETWORKS BY HMS NETWORKS BY HUS NETWORKS
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HMS PRODUCT OFFERING

Products - By HMS Netwarks

All HMS products are Cornecting Devices™ in one way or anather - making sure industriat
equipment can communicate. Aithough they are marketed under four different brands and
solve different communication needs, they ara all “by HMS Networks” — a tagline which
ensures users that they have chosen a solution from a world-feading expert in industrial com-
munlcation and lloT.

16 HMS NETWORKS ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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MARKET  OURDPERATIONS
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Anybus®

BY HMS NETWORKS

“BY HM3 NETWORKS"

Qur customers rely o HMS 1o help chem with
praducts and solutions for industrial communica-
tion and lloT. With our strong pusition in eur
field, we know that they will not find 2 partner
that can de it beteer. From inncvating, designing,
marketing and selling 1 producing, delivering
and supporring, we take pride in saving chac all of

this is done &y HMS Nevworks.

In 2019, we started ro highlight this face explicitly
by introducing new homogeneous logotypes for
our product brands Anybus, Ewon, Ixxac and
recently also Intesis — they all include che stace-
ment “BY HMS NETWORKS”

REASSURANCE FOR OUR CUSTOMERS
So., even if HMS's product brands address differ-
ent markets and communicadon needs, they are
all “by HMS$ Newworks” — a tagline which
assures users thac they have chosen a solution
from a world-leading expert in industrial commu-
aication and MoT. Users can rely on the facr chac
the solurions meer the most demanding scandards
for e.g. quality, sustainabilicy and security. They

can alsa rely on strong partnerships and team-

TAINARILITY 0O

Ewon’

BY HMS NETWORKS

work with HMS for che future. All guaranteed
“by HMS Neewerks.”

THE 12 DIMENSIONS OF “BY HMS NET-
WORKS”

In addition o stamping our product brands with
“by HMS Networks,” global campaigns were run
at HMS corporate web site and tn social media
based on this theme in 2019, 12 HMS employees
from different pares of the world were selected
comment upon 12 core dimensions of by HM5
Nerwarks™.

Starting from the ability to create a Connection
berween induserial technologies and people.
HM$ created a series of ground-breaking frnara-
#ons, which established the company on the mar-
ket. By ensuring the highest level ot Qualizy and
Relrabilsty, the foundadon was set for successful
Business and substantial vear-by-vear Growth,
with HMS reaching 7 million delivered products
in 2019, Wich fadustraat foT, the need for com-
munication solutions is increasing, and HMS s
addressing the TToT market with several solutins
which meet the Secarety standards for internet
connected equipment. When installed, HMS's

FIMAMCIAL NI D GHIAPPENLIX SHAREHOLUER INFQO

Intesis

Ixxat’

Qver the next few pages. you can read mare
ahour the products branded Anybus, Ewon. Inte-
sis and Txxat — all including the 12 core dimen-
sions of “by HMS Nevworks™.

solutions help customers with cheir Swszainability
agendas by saving time and resources — partly
through moere efficient contrel of facioties, and
partly by enabling insight into the status of
devices and machines in the field which opens up
for predictive maintenance. Finally, an important
part of HMS success comes from the ability w0
form Paronerships characterized by intense Team-

weork and Fassion for what we do.

MY POINT-OF-VIEW

A STRGNG MARKET POSITION

To realize lloT applications, industrial hard-
ware needs to connect and communicate with
loT-software. And this is exactly what HMS
stands for — Hardware Meets Software™.
HMS is perfectly positioned on a markat that
is growing with the Industrial Internet of
Things.

Anders Hansson - CMO

HMS PRODUCT OFFERING
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Anybug® Connecting any device, machine and network ™1

The word “Any" is key 1o the HMS Anyisus offering. Anybus products make it possible to connect any industrial device to any industrial netwark or the
internet. Industrial networks (sometimes referred to as fieldbuses, hence Anybus] come in different variarts depending on the geographic market and
industry. It's much ke the multitude of languages used around the world, with Anybus making it possible for industrial equipment to speak them all.

The products are grouped into (ntegrated network carns [Anybus Embedded) that are designed into a customer’s products and standalane units (Anybus i }
Gateways] that function as “transiators” between machines and networks. There are also wireless products [Anybus Wireless] which is a strong and
growing member of the Anybus family. Furthermore, the new offering called “Anybus Edge” aiso enables Industrial devices to et connectad tg the i
Internet via the HMS Hub, opening many new possihilities for smart monitaring and control. g
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PRODUCTS . 3m o vant Hoft
Anybus Embedded: Anyhus Gateways: Anybus Wirslass: Anybus Edge: General Manager
Network cards which are embed- More than 300 siand-alone gate- Connecls networks, machines and  Connecting industrial devices to Business Unit Anybus
ded into the customer’s product to ways for connecting devices, devices over Bluetooth or WLAN. the Intemet.
provide natwork ivity 3 of networks,

e
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MARKET BUSINESS MODEL COMPETITION

Factory autormation remains the rmost Anybus Embedded ig typically soid In the embedded segment, the competitor
impartant market for Anybus. The trrough direct sales to manufacturers of is often also the actual cuslomer, who
increasing impostance of communicaton automation products. A Design Win could decide to develop network solutions

in-house. Companies like Hilscher, Pro-
Soft, Moxa and Molex compete with HMS
in vanous gateway sub-segments. How-
ever, none are able to match HMS's broad
offering.

in other areas such as vehicles, process - means that the customer has decided to
plants and infrastruciure continuatly open use Anybys, after which an Anybus mod-
up new applications and markets for Any- wle is mounted to each new product that
bus. is manufactured. Anybus Gateways and
Wirgless products are sold directly to
customers or via distributors depending
an the situation.
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Ewon® Remote solutions for industrial applications

HMS's Ewon® brand provided [loT solutions before the term lloT even existed. with Ewon solutions, machines are accessible in a
Secure way over the Internet, giving users access to the machine’s data anytime and anywhere.

¢,
Y
PRODUCTS
Ewon Cosy: Ewon Flaxy:
Provides users with a secure turnet for remote mantenance and Industrial routers and lioT gateways for remole access and data services

troubleshoctng. such as remote surveiliance and information gathenng.

Ly

piay1e

5

B

MARKET BUSINESS MODEL COMPETITION
Ewon salutions typically enable remote jat  Ewon products are primarily sold to HMS is one of the leading companies for
access to'industial machines with a PLC N machine builders through a network of remote access and monitoring of

industrial equipment, with customners in
all significant industrial segmenis. There
are other suppliers of remote access and
data maonitoring solutions, but mest are
specialized in a particular market
segment.

{Programmable Logic Controller — an distributors. Customers can subscribe to
industrial computer that :I'l.lﬂS the various services after having purchased
'machine.) But there are many other ' the hardware products.

application areas such as backup power

generators, UPSs (Uninterruptible Power

Supplies), wind turbines, solar panels,
telecom base stations, tanks, reservoirs,
and moere.
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Intesis” Connecting buildings

Modern buildings are like highly advanced networks with thousands of devices and machines that need to communicate. Intesis offers
communications salutions designed for buildings. Buiiding automation is a rapidly growing market where HMS has identified excellent growth
opportunities for the future, intesis was acquired by HMS in 2018 and as of 2020, the brand is an integrai part of the HMS offering to all markats.

PRODUCTS
Intesis offer gateways which act as translators between air-conditioning units, thermostats, lighting ballasts, etc. and building management systems

running on protocols KNX, BACnet or Modbus. The commurication is configured with the software intesis MAPS. Additionally, Intesss is known for the
market leading abifity to design specific AC interfaces for the major vendors of air conditioning equipment.

Josep Caron
General Manager
Business Unit Intesis

MARKET
Intesis’ market is mainly building
automation, with special focus on HVAC
integration (Heating, Ventitation and Air-
Conditioning). Typical customers include
system integrators, distributors and
manufacturers of equipment for buildings.

BUSINESS MODEL
Depending on the situation, tntesis prod-

ucts are sold either through HMS' intemna-
tional network of distributors or directly by
HMS staff.

COMPETITION
With the Intesis brand, HMS Is one of tha
leading communication comparies within
building automation. Compatitors exist in
Europe, USA and Asia, bt these
companies only cover parts of the wider
tntesis portiolia.
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IXxat® Making machines wark on the inside

Ixxat is a well-known brand in the automation market, especialiy for machine communication and security. Ixxat stands for extensive

expertise in CAN, a technolpgy originating in the automotive industry but nowadays used in many industries. The Ixxat offering primarily
consists of & large number of standard products that solve the most cormmon types of communication problems in machines, including
safety aspects. i also contains products that solve new communication problems in smart grids.

:
<
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PRODUCTS

Alaxander Hess

bxxat Automofive: fxxat Embedded Control: Ixxat Energy: Ixxat Sate: General Manager
Test toals and for use in Co ivity sol far Smart Gnd Solubons for industrial,  Solufions for easy implementation Business Unit lotat
test during ines and of energy and rilway power of safety communication.
and for troubleshooting. hardware, softwarne and systems.

gssociated services.

Y .7

MARKET ' BUSINESS MODEL COMPETITION
Industrial automation and the automotive y  boxat products ane sold directly and via GAN is a mature technolagy and other
indusiry are imporiant marskets for the distributors depending on the proguct, cumpanies offer sirmlar producis. None.,
Ixxat offering. The products are used in Many Ixxat products ane soid using a however, with such a coniplate portiolio
areas such as medical automation, similar Design Win-baged business and the levei of technical expertise
gnargy praduction, heavy vehicles and model ag Anybus Embeddad, Other offered by Ixxat, Additionally, unique
infrastructure. fundamenta! compenents of the Ixxat solutions are offered for automotive
brand are development services and testing, functional safety and network
customized products. connectvity.
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HMS Hub™ - a platform on the Edge

“The edge” is a metaphor for the border between Operational Technology on the factery fluor and 11-systerns, It 1s here that
EMS's naw lloT platfarm, HMS Hub, nperates, making sure that the two worlds can communicate.




INTHD HMZ STECK

IT systems

Industrial applications

WHAT IS HMS HUB?

Introduced in 2019, the new [loT platform from
HMS, HMS Hub™ solves two major challenges,
Firstly, it is a way for customens to realize 11oT
projects. By connecting industrial machinery

ot the factery fluor to HMS Hub, dara from
Operational Technology (OT} is made available
to 1 T-sysrems and loT applicanon.. This makes
it possible to view live data, anulyee performance
and control the equipment from anywhere.

Secondly, the HMS Hub is also a way to
serearmline HMS's inceroat developmenr etforts
and provide the Anybus, Ewon, Irxat and Intesis
product development wams with 4 comman,
ready-made platform from which ic is faster and
easicr to develop new solutions.

Consequently, HMS Hub becomes the place
where industrial hardware meets sofrware,
boosring internal development speed, innovacion
and consistency, as well as HMY' ability to meet
external customer demands related o Tio T,

COMBINING NEW HMS TECHNOLOGIES
Already (oday, Anybus Edge gaceways, launched
during 2019, are using HMS Hub (o connect
machines ro cloud applications. More Anybus,
Ixxat. Ewon and Intesis products will follow
meaning that any induserial device can connect to

che HMS Hub.

HMS Hub is based upon technology from Beck
IPC, acquired by HMS in 2018, and this [ToT
placform is now developed furcher by teams

1n Hatmsrad, Sweden and Werzlar, Germany.

SARY  FINANCIAL INFC CRY APPEMNGIX

“Thanks ro HMS Hub, machine data s presented
in easv-to-understand formars for TT-systerms.
Once the data is in HMS Hub, customers can
wonnect this daca How o chair IT-sysrem of
choice such as Microsoft Azure or SAD bur they
can also urilize 2 soliware user interface from
HM$-owned WEBfacrory w display daea in

ve graphical dashboards.

(LK

This means char HMS has a full 112T solucion al-
lowing industrial hardware to mest ToT softw.are.

PARTNERSHIPS IMPORTANT

No mateer if cusomers use HMSs own solucions
to display daa or integrate HMS Hub with their
own TT-systems or a chird-party supplier, collabo-
rations will most likely be of utmost imporance,
A clear vrend today is thar innovations are more
ofien coming from collaboracions racher chan
from a lone innovamr. Here, HMS Selution
Partner program will expand the reach of HMS
Hub-connecied solurions into new applivation
arcas and markecs.

IT-COMPANIES WANT QT-INFORMATION
Enabling communication between machines
and induserial systems has always been in HMS'
DNA and communmcarion berween different
parts on the facory floor will contimne ro be the
backbong of HMS's business for many vears o
come. But with [ToT and Industrie 4.0, more
companies fram the [Teseceor are looking, for
ways to communicat: and exchange informagion
with OT-machinery and this trend is driving
companies o utihee HMS preducrs.

CONTENTS

SHAREHOLUER INFC

WHAT ABOUT 5G?

“The nexe geacration of cellula nerwenks, $G. has
communication speeds which caters for demand-
ing industrial processes. There 1s 2 grear interesr
in 3G from the industrial sector as wireless
communication will reduce cumbersome wiring
and make factory floors a lot mane fexible, HAMS
is an carly adopeer of 3G technology and thers
are already communicatien solutions from HMS

for 5G.

50 v an cnabler of new and more fexible 1ndus-
trial processes and will be a part of many new
HMS solutions as Facrories move from Industry
3010 4.0 — fom the Geory Aoar w the lagernet,

POSSIBILITIES WITH NEW TECHNOLOGY
With I'T- and OT- wechnologies fully connected.
new and exciting apportunitics open up for the
industrsal world, For example, the ability ro auro-
mate the manubacturing of ezilor-made products
like cars, furnirure and TV according co the
custormers’ demands Orher examples include the
possibility w analyze machine daca in IT systems
o predict maintenance needs or make the pro-
duction site even mare ¢ficiene. By monitoring
industrial devices remotely 24/7, it is also possible
w minimiee travels for support and maintenance.

HMS technology and HMS Hubin particu-

lar, enables these new oppertunities to become
real-ife applications and 1 therefore an impaortant
component for any company wanting to realize
an o T solurion,

HME NETWORKS ANNUAL REPORT 2019 23

SEARIH



MARKET  [:IRTIFF d : 1 INARILITY TR i ] 2 H APFEMNEIX SHARCRCLOFRINFD

NUNEEREN] Loty « N wrbinatons! g - H AETRCR RISISETNEN S 4 EREES BEE S B BT vl s Aabinn




RATIONG  PRAOC b . { ! i N GRI APPENOIX  SHAREHCLOERINFN
s R

SUSTAINABILITY




MARKET  ULRGPERATICNS

PROTJCTS  SUSTAINABILITY VERNANLCE

st TiABI Doz inpmient Buars - & seulbnatana ! isair -

SUSTAINABILITY

SN FEHANCIALINE T GRIAFPFENLIXK

reronaental sl s Sustaeanle B s B

AREHULLIER [N CENTEMTE 5

Economic, environmental and social sustainability

HMS's vision is to enable industrial devices and systems to communicate for a more productive and sustainable werld.
it is a vision that also underlings our strategy of creating long-term value and sustainahble development for the company
and our stakeholders. We comhine growth and profitability with environmental and social responsibility.

This is the HMS Nevworks susramability report for
the 204D fiscal year. The sustanablity report inclu-
des the parent company FHMS Neavorks AB (org. no.
55666G1-8954) and all uniis consolidated m the
2018 consolidated finuncial staremens of HMS
Networks AB, which are specified in note 35 i the
consolidated financial statement. The sustainabiliry
report is prepared in accovdance with the provisions of
chapters 6 and 7 of the Sweduh Annual Accounts Act,
and wizh the (lobal Reporting fnimarwes (GRS
Standards, Core aption. and includes pages 3. §=9,
2634 and 107-173.

For HMS, sustainable growth includes three inger-
dependent componenus: economic, environmental
and social sustainability. We believe thae sustain-
able growth 15 about making things better for cus-
tomers, the environment and the peaple around us
in all areas of our operations. {Informacion abour
HMS’ business models znd value crearion is avail-
able on page 8-9 in this annual report)

FOCUS AREAS

The HMS management team has established four
focus areas chat serve as the foundarion for how
HMS is able ta contribute to the sustainable devel-
opment of society. These areas are:

= [nnovarive produces and arcracrive solutions

* Lnergy efficiency
* Being an ateractive employer
* Responsible business dealings

The sustainability aspects deemed most impont-

ang gre:

* Environmental impacr frem produces and
services

+ Energy consumption in properties

* Greenhouse gas emissions {cempany cars, elec-
tricity consumption, incoming marerial,
tr:msport]

= Electronic waste

« Anti-corruption

* Customer privacy

= Skills development

* Supplier human rights assessment.

Ar HMS, we maintan an ongoing dialog with our
stakeholders on whar is imporrant in order o ob-
tain valuable feedback on how to carry our effec-
tive sustainability effores. Please read more about
our materialiry assessment and HMS$'s approach
o stakeholder engagement in our GRI 2ppendix
{on pages 107-113}.
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- UN Sustainabie Development Goals

The United Mations has specifled 17 global goals that leaders arpund the world have pledged to achieve by 2030,
HMS takes responsibifity and actively strives to help achieve these goals within the areas refavant to our operations,
HMS has decided to focus an the 7 areas that are most refevant and where we can make the most impact,

GOAL 3 GOAL S

HEALTH AND WELL-BEING PROMOTING INNOVATION
investing (n the nealth and investing In research and
wall-being of ermployses development
Rasad more on page 28. Reed more on pages 20-31.
GOAL 1O
GOAL 4 DIVERSITY
QUALITY EDUCATION Efforts 1o increase diversity.
Prioritizing skills development and g
g s by Raad more on page 28-29.
Road mare on pagas 28-29. GBOAL 12
SUSTAINABLE CONSUMPTION
BOALS5 AND PRODUCTION
GENDER EQUALITY Devetoping and manuiactunng prod-
Ensuning edual fights, ucts that enable sighifican! energy
oppertundties and conditiens. savings for our cystomers.
Read more on pages 28-29. Read more on pages 30-31.

GOALB

CECENT WORK
AND CCONOMIC GROWTH
Promoting a long-term safe and

S@cure work anvirofiment.

Read more on page 32-33.
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SUSTAINABILITY

A multinational team with common values

HMS is & global company with operations in many countries. A shared company culture and shared values P

are imperative ta achieve our goals and grow without sacrificing guality. Our work environment, gender
equality and pay-setting efforts are sumrmarized in our company-widea policy: *HMS Hi 5",
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EMPLOYEE STRATEGIES -
GOVERNANCE AND POLICIES

HMS is reliant upon motivated, skilled employees
who think in an innovative way. Employee knowl-
edge, commitment and performance are critical
for HMS o succeed with its strategy, achieve its
goals and continue growing.

HMS offers its employees exciting personal and
professional development in a modern, dynamic
and growing organization with a wide interna-
tional network and excellent career opportunities.
The company culture is modern and open, where
shared values, learning and own responsibilicy are
prioritized.

HMS HI §

HMS is an international, fast-growing entrepre-
neurial company with exciting technological
development and proximity to customers, In 2
growing organization, it is imporanc to have
shared values that are aligned with long-term serat-
egies, upon which decisions and working methods
are based. HMS Hi 5 serves as the guiding star
when performing daily tasks and interacting with
customners, supplicrs, colleagues and other stake-
holders. HMS Hi § includes five dimensions:

* Customer Commitment

+ Growth and Tnnovation

+ Long-Term Perspective

* Strong Relationships

* Lean & Efficiert

L]
L i

AN ATTRACTIVE EMPLOYER

HMS is constancly working o develop our work-
place 1o be an attractive employer. During 2019,
we continued to focus on improving the personal
benefits for our employees through wellness, lec-
turcs and training.

Frequent surveys are carried out three times per
year in order to get quick feedback from the asrga-
nization. These surveys offer managers a way of
obtrining feedback from employees via & portal
that shows the department’s resules. This has
praven to be an effective tool for facilitating mean-
ingful discussions at the departmental level.

In 2019, we have also continued to focus on
developing our managers and thesr leadership o
meet the demands of our employees. Furthermore,
there has been a special focus on understanding
and improving group dynamics to develop our
employees and create commitment.

HEALTH AND LIFESTYLE

We ser a good working environmenr as a primary
candition for being able to do one’s job. We have
modern, functional offices at all our workplaces
around che world. Various initiacives are regularly
taken to promote good health and a balanced life-
style. Social and fitness activities are arranged on a
regular basis. We have low sick leave rates and the
sick leave rate in Sweden for 2019 was 3.34%
(4.35). The employee turnover for the HMS
Group was 17.2% (7.8) compared 1o 18.0% (6.3)
for Sweden. The higher rates for 2019 are maicly
explained by completed restructuring program
that aftected 43 persons in the Group. However,
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the company continually monitors abscnce due to
illness and takes proacrive inftiatives to keep sick
Yeaves at a bow level

THE RIGHT RECRUITMENT LEADS TO
GROWTH AND QUALITY

HMS's growth surategy depends on it having
crapleyees with the fight compewnce. We acrively
swrive wo pramote and profile HMS in the jabor
matket, with 4 special focus on echnicians and
engineers. For example, HMS pamicipares in job
fairs a1 universities and colleges, offers students
opportunities for doing their thesis projeces ac
HMS and promaores the company through various
social media platforms. In 2019, we added 2 racal of
109 (87) new employecs 1o the Groap, 39 (30} in
Sweden 2nd 70 {37} in other countries

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT
HMS is a learning organization, which applies to
our daily operations as well as both our external and
in-house training initiatives. Employees at HMS
Are used to taking responsibility, tackling new chal-
Ienges and learning new skills,

A targe portion of devdlopment work 15 carried
aur jointty with cusworners, rypicaily in an incerna-
vionat contexy that provides new perspeetives for

HMS saff resulting in personalized skifls develop-
ment. New employees participare in individually
wailored, bocal oriemation programs. In additon,
all mew HMS employees throughout the workd
participate in an aricnktion week held at the head
office in Halmstad,

At HMS, there are many opportunides for
shaping and developing ane's own professional
career. In 2019, we Invesied an average of 22 houns
per employee on traiping. Furthermore, every
employee has carcer developmen discussions with
their mantager each year This creates a strong drive
and commitment to continually improve, which 1s
a critical success factor for long-term success, The
company has 5 & special foreign cxchange program
that gives engincers from the development deparc-
ment the oppertunity to work in one of the com-
pany’s other affices around the world,

SOCIETY

Besides the taxes and fees paid by HM) in cach
Yocal marker, HMS actively strives te stengthen
s bands with sociery. HM also contribuees by
domating money 1o charities thar are active on
either a local or globat level. For mample, HMS in
Halmstad has suppored WOW, Women On
Wednesdays, an oiganization that aims w promet

FINANCIAL INFO

1 MEN MANAGERS / AGE DISTRIBUTIGN

Homber
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& beer Integranion of tmmigrant women in soci-
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SUSTAINABILITY

HMS products lower environmental impact

HMS5's maln contribution to sustainable development is offering products that make energy savings possible for users
throughout the product lifespan. HMS operates in an industry where changes in directives and legislation can result in addi-
tional fees, which in turn may require more materials and higher production costs. Failure to comply with laws and environmen-
tal requirements for purchased materials could result n fines and a company’s reputation could be damaged. HMS3's environ-
mental policy covers issues that govern long-term investments, material selection during the design process, distrioution,
supplier selection, recycling of electronic waste and chermical hangling. Environmental aspects are considered when develop-
ing. manufacturing, delivering and using HMS products. In other words, HMS considers the entire preduct life cycle.

TOTAL ENERGY CONSUMPTION

n
perunt

HMJ's goal is to deveiop products thac contribuce
to higher energy efficiency and lower emissions.
For this purpose, HMS monirors several key per-
formance indicators associated with greenhouse

sppes
Ll

.
gases and energy consumption, as well as energy
and reduced cmissions for customets, all of which
is aimed at lowenng costs and negative environ-
mental impace.

N Y S S

SUSTAINABLE PRODUCTS

HMS acrively works with che following areas:

= Products that are censidercd to be fundamental
components in sustainable industrial systemns

* Sustainable produce development

* Sustainable manuficeuring and logistics

H TOTAL ENERGY CONSUMPTION
4 ENERGY INTENSITY

The graph shows the energy consumption from
HMS's three largast business areas, Anybus, lxxat
and Ewon,

SUSTAINABLE SOLUTIONS
HMS makes valuzble data available viz the abilicy
o connect industrial devices in a secure and easy

Greenhouse gas emissions,
metric tons COE

Scape 1. drect greenhouse gas

emissions 246 244 way. This enhances our customers’ preductivicy
Scope 2, ndirect greenhouse gas and facilitates cheir sustzinabilicy efforts,
emissions from energy consumption ®!oon HMS producrs make is possible to creare sus-
Scape 3 other indirect greenhouse tainable industrial solutions, with 2 focus on
35 eMISSIoNs 384 323 parameters such as encrgy and resource efficiency,
Total greehhouse gas emissions 6563 588

lower emissions, less pollution, higher qualiry and
less waste. Another important aspect is being able
to offer effective and flexible induserial solucions to
reduce overproduction. The geal is (0 be able ta
manufacture a small number of devices just as
efficiently as through mass production.

Greenhouse gas emissions for each
unit (kg CO,E) 0.60 0.57

The table shows greenhouse gas emissions from
HMS's thres largest business areas Scope 1= from
company cars, Scope 2 15 elecincity and Scope 3 is
transport
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HIGHER EFFICIENCY WITH
DCIGITALIZATION

The industrial sector is in the midst of a commu-
wicaion aad dara cevalution fueled by trends such
as Industrie 4.0, the Induscrial Interned of Things
il1oT) and Smart Manufacturing. There is 4 global
impetus behind chese wends based on the desire to
reclaim manufagturing from low-cost countries,
increase camperitiveness atd future-proof the
individual countries’ exports of machinery and
systems. Anather powerful driving force is sustain-
ability, wich goals that relace to improvements
the work environment and ergonomics, energy
ansd resource optimization, Aexible avgss produc-
tion, reduced environmerral impace and a clearer
understans
creating the smart industrial systems of the future
15 gerting access ro the information and deta thacis
generated by industrial systems, HMS produces

g of our own impact. The basis for

facilitare this by offering intelligent controi func-
tions, and solutiens for capruring and presenting
data in 2n understandable way 1n 2ny monitoring
or analytics software on [T/ToT level. The growing
meed for data collection and remotely connecied
systens lays the foundarion for the creation of new
scrvices and businesses.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

HMS continually develops the capacity of the
offered products and solutions in 2 way that is com-
patible with HMS corporace suscainabiliey goals,
ensuring that they can tiily be integrted inw
induserial systems and provide valuzbie functional-
sty and jnformation ro the customers For sustain-
able decisionmaking, Wich this 15 mind. HMS
parricipates in various wechnical standardization
organizations, thus ensuring thar the company’s
products and solutions remain on the cutong edge

in terms of funcrions such 23 encTgy manageTnent
In the area of industrial communication, rechnol-
ogy is developing at 2 rapid pace, which puts high
demands on the abilicy to offer more powerful,
efficient products without compromising on envi-
ronmenal aspects. Since time to rmarker 1% impore-
ant, methods and placforms also play a critieal role
given that there is more to gain from « yustainabil-
ity peespective when new. encrgy-efficient. smart
solurions can start being used svoner.

HMS5 puts 4 great deal of emphasis on energy-ef-
ficieny technologies and solutions. Powerful, ener-
gy-cflicient solutions are Created nsing processors
and memories with contemporary silicon geome-
tries. Products are designed 1o be used over a long
period of time in demanding environments. And,
10 achieve maximum |ifespan, it must be possible w
mizke repairs and perform upgrades to all solucions
in the ficld. Low weight, small size and efficient
packaging are also considered in the design in order
o conserve marerial resources and create a lower
emvironmeneal impact in the logistics <hain. Only
materials and manufacturing progesses thar meec
the laest imernanonal legal requirernents are nsed.
Hazardous substances and chemicals are avoided 10
the greatcsr extent possible.

FOCUS ON ENERGY EFFICIENCY
HMS serives to develop praducts and solutions that
conuribute o efficient energy consumption and

Estimated

ings through use of

Travel savings (millon km)

Lower carbon diokide Bmissions {thousand

tons COE)

k2R

SHAREHMLOER INFC LONTE
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SUSTAINABILITY

resource-efitiem production. By wsimg, automated
processes and ineelligent industrial communica-
don, it is possible to achieve more cfficicor encrgy
consumprion for industrial equipment, such ay
mutor dreves, pumps and fan systems. HMS prod-
uas for remote control and menitoring with the
associated cloud solutions, can be wilized to
address global challenges in sustainable develop-
ment. Incelligent remote conrol of equipmeny also
enables energy savings thanks w0 more efficient
aperations and fewer site visit required for inspec-
tion and control. With this, HMS's products con-
tribuce significantly to higher energy efficiency and
thus lower environmental impacr. As ao example,
rhe savings potential related to traveiling and lower
carbon dioxide emissions increased by 35% tn
2019 compared ro 2018 thanks to higher customer
usage of Ewon products for remute 2coess and data
connected to the Talk2M cloud solutian.

RECYCLING AND E-WASTE

Through careful control of preduction processes,
it 15 possible to achieve efficient manufacturing
with minital use of matenals, waste and energy
consumprion, HMS minimizes the use of hazard-
ous substances and facilitates recycling by comply-
ing with environmental laws like ReHS$, REACH
and WEEE.

2019 w18
4,837 3.576
617 456

HMS progucts tower the amount of fravelling neaded for our cusiomers The travel savings
angbled through Talk2M usage i 2018 are estmated to 4,837 mition kM pes yaar
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Sustainable business

Respuansibie business dealings and profitability go hand in hand. By combining good business ethics
and innovation, HMS strengthens its competitiveness and is able to offer sustainahle solutions ta
meet the challenges facing our customers.

A key factor for HMS is 10 do business and rake
full responsibilicy for the supply chain, given thac
the company's repuration is one of our most valu-
able corporate assets. Accordingly, HMS is com-
mitted to maintaining the excellent reputation asa
reliable partner for industrial communication and
IIoT and keep on running our business in a
responsible way.

HMS CODE OF CONDUCT

HMS's Code of Conduct is based on international
agreements like the 1L0 {ore Conventions on
Human Rights, the Universal Declaration on
Human Rights and the Conventien on the Rights
of the Child. The Code of Canducr provides guid-
ance on how HMS employees should behave in an
echical way, in ling with the company’s values. Iuis
also used when monitoring direce suppliers. Com-
pliance with the Cade of Conduct ensures that
HMS runs che business in a professional, honest
and echical manner.

HMY's {lode of {londucr cavers opics such as
safe working conditions, responsibilicy for the
environment, ethical interaction with customers
and suppliers as well as positive interaction with
sociery, Qur core values are summarized in HMS
Hi 5, which provides supplemenary guidance for
our employees in their daily acdvities.

The Code of Conduct reflects the company’s
commument o conduct its business responsibly
and ir includes:

= being 2 responsible member of sociery
*+ respecting human righes

*  ensuring health and safety

= striving for sustainable development

*  preventing corruption

32 s NETWOHKS ANNUAL REPORT 2013

HMS has 1nternal procedures that make it possible
for all employees o repore suspected legal or regu-
latory violations without repercussions. All
employees of the HMS Group are encouraged o
report anv behavior that is percewved s serious
misconduct w their manager, or in accordance
with established procedures. It is also possible to
report misconduct anonymously. Managers are
expected o thoroughly deal with reported viola-
tions and strive for a satisfactory solution with
reasonable remedial acton. During 2019, HMS
did not have any cases of improper conduct thac
resulted in remedial action.

The Code of Conduct has been approved by
the corporate managemenr and Board of Direc-
tars. Ic has also been published on the company’s
website. The Code of Conduct is also available to
all employees via the company intranet and it 15
covered during the introduction of new employ-
ces.

PROCESSING OF CUSTOMER DATA

HMS operations involves processing customer
data generated in our syscems when customers use
our claoud services. HMS respeces and protects our
customers privacy and chis is managed by the
HMS Customer Privacy Policy. Data privacy awa-
reness training is required for all data owners w
ensure data protection and transparency. By using
a certified management system for informacdon
safery (18O 27001), we are also assured that data is
protected in the best possible way. Possible vulne-
rabilities in our systems are idenrified using
penetration tests. To meet the requirements of the
EUGDPR, HMS has serengthened the personal
dara protection by adapting our svseems and incre-
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Customer

asing information abour the dara stored and pro-
cessed. HMS neither received zny complaints
during 2019 in relation o customer privacy, nor
identified any leaks of customer data.

SUSTAINABLE DELIVERY CRAIN

It is very important for HMS to respect human
rights in all manufacturing steps and we expect our
suppliers to alse respect human rights and
employee warking conditions, They must also tzie
responsibilicy for their environmental impact.
However, compenencs from a large number of
manufacturers are used in the production process
of HM$ products. For chis reason, HMS does not
always have control over how the compaonents are
manufactured from an envirenmental, social and
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ethical perspective. There is also a risk that the
clectrical components contzin conflice minerals.
As a prerequisite for conducting business with
HMS, we require that our business-cricical suppli-
ers have implemented a management syseem for
their environmental and work environment initia-
tives. HMS seleces and evaluates suppliers based
on such criteria as quality, delivery, price and reli-
ability. The company also considers ervironmental
and sacial responsibilicy and commicment.
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Environment

HMS 15 required to comply with applicable laws
and regulations, fike the RoMS Diceciive and
REACH Regulation. Therefore, we require thac
aur suppliers follow the latest guidelines and pro-
vide declarations of comphance with ntles for
materials and products delivered to HMS,

Human rigits

HMS suppores and respeces human nghes. Fol-
low-up on human rights in the delivery chuin has
been integrated into the monitonng and approval
process for HMS suppliers.

The HMS policy for conflice minerals governs
our feporing effotts in the comtext of wpply dhan
traceability to ensure a conflict-free supply chain,
Conflicy mincrals are defined as wrialum (coltan),
o {uassiteriig), wmgsten {wolframite}, old o1 their
derivatives. IF these minerals gtemn from the Demo-
cratic Republic of the Congo eradjoining countries,
vhere is a tisk that they might Anance conflicss in the
region. Given thar HMS's products conwin metals
from these minerals in the farm of purchased mare-
sials, suppliess of chese materialy ate requested o
provide proof of 2 transparent and conflice-free
supply chain,
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HMS addresses the issue of conflict mincrals,
including complisnce wath the US [odd-Frank
Act {the SLC), by cooperating actively with our
supplicss and reparcing the results on our website,
To succeed in these efforts, our suppliers are
required to comply with HM3$'s policy for conflict
minerals, which includes providing informatien
aboue the source and origin of potential conflice
minerals in deliveries to HMS,

We require our suppliers to take responsibility

HMS pareners and supplicrs are encouraged 1o
apply business principles that comply wich the
HMS Code of Conduct. We also expect them 1o
pass un these values 1o their supphers,

The HMS process for supplier evaluacion is
based on scrutiny before and during our coilabora-
won and is hinked 1o buman tighss, susianabitiny
and social conditions. The process is partly based
an site visits and partly an sell-cvaluarion forms.
The focus of on-sue audits i3 Code of Conduet,
Work Lnvironment and Health, Qualitv and
Safery, Performance 1n thesc areas is evaluated and
if the supplitr does not nacet HMS requirenients.
this results in deviations that must be reported and
recrified, and if this i not done, the collaboration

SRIAPPENDIX
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will be terminated hy HMS,

During the year, visits to key suppliers were
carried out acvording to plan. Preparations have
also been made regarding the HMS Supplier Code
of Conduct, where HMS will conract our suppli-
ers 1o make self-declarations in accordance with
the Code of Conduxt,

HMS's largest suppliers have good guidelines
on hew to conduct their business in an echically,
socally and environmeneally correct way, Working
with HMS, they need co clearly seare thar they
suppore. respect and prioritize these areas. Among
ocher things. vur agreements with key suppliers
require that workplaces are managed 1 way chat
upholds human rights and thar the management
teamns ate prepared o assumc its responsibil eies,

When it comnes to social responsibility, HMS
refers o SARUDDT. whidh is a comprehensive
global standard for sacial respansibility.

Furthermare, HMS encoureges our suppliers
w imredyce cerifiable management systems for
work cnvironmene, quahty. environntent and
safety,

No devistions were idenstied during 2019 in

the envi | or work envi arca.

Realizing social commitments

HMS maintains a close dialogue and long-term
pannerships with universities and schools in sev-
erel pares of the world. This has resulced in celiab-
oration on {npovation and research as well as in
the concext of our core business actividies, where
students gained valuable work experience from
projects and summer jobs at the company. In
20149, HMS has made & major =ffert wo hase more
degree projects. bringing the total sumber of par-
ticipating students during rhe year to 52, HMS
also arranges visits ar our offices in Halmstad

Read more s the [IMS GRI-APPENDIX on pages 107- 113

During the year, we held six visits thar were epen
o swudenss and the public. Tach yeas, in collabuora-
tion with Halmswad University, HMS granes schol-
arships for the best thesis projeces ro outstanding
students in compuser science, elecerical enginees-
ing and mecharronics.

HMS has various spensorship progrems to
help the needy and reduce inequalities. We alsa
provide apportunities and encourage local initia-
tives in the Group. For example, HMS has sugp-
ported and conrributed o ADA — 2 studenr saciery

for female engincers. HMS abso participares in
WO, 2 mecting place for women from different
culrures, which aims to promote 4 better integra-
tion of immigrant women in Swedish socicry. The
organizacions that have seceived donations from
HMS during the year include W/OWE the Swedish
Lancer Socicty, Save the Children and UNICER
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SUSTAINABILITY

Auditor's statement on the
statutory sustainahility report

To the Annus! General Mesting of the shareholdars of HMS Networks AB {pub),
corporate dentily numbar S56661-8954.

ENGAGEMENT AND RESPONSIBILITY

The board of directors is responsible for the statutory sustainability
report for the year 2019 on pages 26-33 and for its preparation in
accordance with the Annual Accounts Act.

THE SCOPE OF THE AUDIT

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with FAR's auditing
standard RevR 12 The auditor's opinion regarding the statutory sus-
tainability report. This means that our audit of the statutory sustaina-
bility report is substantially different and less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with the Intemational Standards on Auditing
and generally accepted auditing practices in Sweden. We believe that
the audit has provided us with a suffisient basis for our opinion.

OPFINION
A statutory sustainability report has been prepared.

Halmstad, 19 March 2020
Ohrlings PricewaterhouseCoopers AB

Fredrik Goéransson
Authorised Public Accountant
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Chairman’s comments

2019 has been a mixed year for HMS where the
management has had to handle both for-
ward-looking activities such as acquis
Izboration  around $C-technology and  che
establishment of new sales offices, while at the
same time adjuse o a weaker marcket and slower
growth in the shorter perspecuive. HMS manage-
ment saw the signals from the market early on. A
slowdown in the automotive industry in Eurepe
affected investments in automation equipment
and thus also temporarily HMS’s growch curve,
However, HMS continues to have 2 unique

ns, col-

positlon in an increasingly digitalized world —
increasing the degree of auromarion of induserial
processes, reducing mainrenance costs for
advanced machines and creating new service offer-
rs linked to digital technology. All to increase
productivity and security and reduce tesource
consumption for end users of HMS products.

For 2 growth company in a fast-growing sector,
the Board has an imporcant role to play both in
rerms of conurol and governance as well as in a
moze supportive role. The latcer is important since
the product and application areas have widened in

recent years. This puts increasing demands on
HMS management to be able to handle a greacer
complexity between markets 2nd produccs.

For the Board, it is important to actively sup-

36 HMS NETWORKS ANNUAL REPOR) 2019

port the corporate management team in strategic
mateers, to ensure a good balance berween risk and
opportunity, access to the right human capical and
ter ensure that plans are followed. The work of the
Board follows a fixed annual cyele with scheduled
meetings and a division of work and responsibili-
ties defined in the Rules of Procedure.

The Board works well, with a good balance
beeween different expenences. Some of the mem-
bers of the Board are in & managerial position with
good insight inte and understanding of HMS
managements challenges. Others add valuable
ons in areas such as

experience from scnior pos

stock markets, corporate acquisitions. wechnology
development and marketing. Nor teast in our stra-
regic discussinns — when the entire management
team participates — this mix creates an exciting and
dynamic atmogphere,

Dharing the year, a Board evaluarion was made
based on a model developed by the Latour Group.
This evaluation is of great importance to ensure
effective board work, but also as a guide o achieve
the right composition and competence of the
board. This years summary showed 2 well-func-
tioning board, with good dynamics both within
the board and berween the board and manage-
ment. The commictee functions also work well;
The Audit and Remuneratian Commirtees work

sterngluntrd repenl - Beard af ieectors - S
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10 ensure that we work effectively wich both capi-
ral and personnel matters, while the Development
Commitree has the task of specifically monitoring
the important issues surrounding preduce and
technology development.

The Board’s challenges in the future are o
assist and encourage the management 1o continue
developing HMS's business in the shore-term with
more hesitant market without losing focus on
HMS’s long-term growth and compeativeness,

Charloue Brogren
Chairman of the Board
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Corporate governance report
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COMTENTS

‘CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

HMS's Board and management taam work to ensure that the company lives up to the requirements that NASDAQ OMX, shareholders
and other stakenholders have on the company. The Board also monitorg all issues having to do with the recommendations and
reguirerents from the company's stakeholders. HMS complies with the directives in the Swedish Code of Corporate Governance
Corporate gavernance at HMS is primarily exercised at the Annual Generaf Megting and through the wark done by the Board. (n a
broader perspective, corporate governance also appliss to managemesnt, its duties ang the Broup's contro! and reporting functions.

STRUCTURE FOR CORPQRATE
GOVERNANCE
HMS's sharehald ible for

i |
are y resp

the size of share capital, sharcholders’ nght e
arrend the AGM and the agenda of the AGM. Any

making decisians on worporace governance. The
Annual General Meeting {AGM) elects the Board
of Directors, the Chairman of the Board and the
auditors. Jtalse decides how the nomination com-
mittee will be ¢lected. The Board is tesponsible to
the shareholders for the organization of the Group
and the administration of the Lraup’s affaivs, The
auditors report their findings at the AGM

SHAREHOLDERS AND AGM
“The shareholders exercise their right w decide on
the company’s affains ac che general meeting of
shareholders, which is the company’s highest deci-
sion-making body. The AGM decides, among
ather dtings, oa the adepdon of the invonre scate-
ments and balance sheets, appropriation of profits,
discharge of responsibility for the CEO and the
Bourd, election of Boand members and auditors, as
well as remuneration o the Chairman of the
Bozard, other Board members and auditors, The
AGM also decides on guidelines for remuneration
to the management team.

In addition, the AGM decides on any changes
@ the company's Artides of Associatian, new
share issues and the wntreduction of any share-
based incentive programs. The Articles of Associa-
tion is the fundamental gaverning document for
the company. It stipulaces the cype of operations,

hareholder who wishes «o have a parucular item
deale wich ac che AGM muse sabmic a writeen
request to the Board well in advance so that the
itema can be included in the notice of the AGM.
Informarion on the deadline for submitting such
requests to the Board isavailable on the company's
website, Tnformation refevant to the AGM and the
minuies from the AGM are available on the com-
pany’s wehsite: www.hms-networks.com,

The AGM rmust be held within six monels
following che end of che financial year. All share-
holders regiscered in he shareholders’ register on
the record day {five calendar days before che day of
the AGM] and who have applied, have the nght to
arend. Each share encitles che shareholder o une
vote, Natice of the AGM must be issued no carlier
than six weeks and no later chan four weeks in
advance by advereising in PDageps Induscri and the
Swedish Gazecte,

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2019

The AGM was held on 25 Apnl 2019 at the com-
pany’s office in Halmstad. Present ac the meecing
were shareholders represencing approximarely
73 (70} % of the number of shares and votes. The
following were present atr the AGM: Chairman
Charlotie  Brogren  and  Board  members
Ray Mauritssen, Fredrik Hansson, Anders Morck.,
Cecilia Wachymeister, UIF Sadergren and Tobias
Persson (employer representauved, Also ar the

mecting were Der Trvgg, representing the nomina-

tion committee and Fredrik Goransson from the

fiem of auditors. Sharcholders at che AGM
decided:

* 10 pay dividends o SEX 1.80 (1.50) per share,
cortespending w0 o pad dividend of SER
83,909 (69.894) thousand

= that the Board of Directors shall consist of six
AGM dlected Board Members without Depu-
dics

10 re-elect Charlotte Brogren as Chairman of
the Board and o re-elect Anders Match, Ray
Mauritsson, Fredrik Hansson, Cecilia Wache-
meister and U Sédergren as Directors

that remuneracion o the Board would be SEK
1,625 thousand for the next term, of which
SEK 500 thousand o the Chairman of the
Board and SEK 223 thousand to exch of the
other AGM elected Board members

that remuneration for work in the audit com-
miceee would be SEK 100 chousand o the
Chairman of the audic commuttee and §EK 50
thousand for othet members

the clection of Ohtlings Pricewaterhouse-
Caopers AB (PwCl as auditer, with Fredrik
Garansson, Auchorived Tublic Accountant, m
charge

an guidelines far salary and ather remuners-
tion for the CEO and other senior exceutives

% R
iR bk

+- Elactslapponts

GROUP MANAGEMENT

= Intormireport

HMS NETINORKS ANNUAL REFORT 2018 3T

SEARCH




Lharsan

HME STICK RKET

UUR UPERAT NG

EESIEEN N e [ 2L Rz L

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

* on the authority of the Board (o issue new
shares

10 set up a share savings plan open 10 all perma-
nent employees of the Group.

* to purchase own shares in HMS Neoworks AB
in connection with the established Share Sav-
ings Plan,

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The AGM decides on how che nominarien com-
mireee is appointed. Tt is the dury of the noming-
tion commiteee 1o, prior to the nexr AGM, prepare
and submic proposals for a Chairman of the Board
and other Board members, as well as remuneration
10 the Chairman and ather Board members, The
nomination committee is also responsible for cval-
uating the work done by the Board of Directors
based on the repart it receives from the Chairman.
The nominaticn committee also proposes the elec-
tion of auditors and their remuneration.

At the 2017 AGM, there was 2 decision on the
criteria for appointing members to the nomina-
tion committee 2t HMS Nerworks AB. In accer-
dance with the nomination committee’s proposal,
the shareholders at the AGM decided that the
romiration cemmittee would consist of the
Chairman of the Board, aleng with represencatives
from the four largest shareholders {as of 31 August)
ugp until the next AGM is held or, when necessary,
until such time as a new nomination commircee
has been appointed.

Suaffan Dahlscrém’s knowledge and experience,
in this context, is considered to be so impgrrant to
the nomination commitree’s work and conrinuigy
of the top management of the company, thar ic
justifies having him represented on the commireee.

The nomination cemmitzee 2ppoints one of its
members as chairman (however, neither the Chair-
man of the Board nor any other member of the
Board of Direcrors may be elected as chairman of
the nominarion committee). Should any of the
four largest sharcholders decline their right o
appoint a representative, the right is transferred w0
the shareholder with the next lacgest shareholding
on the specific date. If a member leaves the nomi-
nation cammictes in advance chen, if apprapriace,
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE FOR THE AGM 2020

Johan Hjertonsson, Invesiment AB Latour

bt} 26%
Staflan Danistrom. oan holdings 18%
Ewart Carisson, Swadbank Robur Fonaer %
Par Trygq, SES Fondar &%
Charlotte Brogren, Chaimman of he Board <1%

a replacement will be appointed b the same share-
holder that appointed the one departing, or i this
sharcholder no longer ranks among the four larg-
est sharehalders, by the shareholder who in terms
of shareholding is nexc in line.

The compasition of the nomination commit-
tee will be published on the company's website no
later than six months befere the next AGM. The
nomination commircee scrives to achieve gender
balance on the Board of Directors. The Board of
Directors currently has 25 (29) % women serving
on it. Of the total number of Board members
clected ac by the AGM, 33 (33) Y% are women

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

Audirors are elected by the AGM. The auditors are
accountable to the sharcholders ac the AGM and
they must provide an auditor’s report on the flnan-
cia! statements and the administravon by the
Board of Directors.

‘T'he audiross report verbally and in writing on
an ongoing basis to the audic commitee about
hew the audic has been carried our and give cheir
views an the level of order and control in the com-
pany. Auditors also report in person at least once
per yvezr to the entire Board abour their audic and
state their views about internal conrols.

At the 2019 AGM, shareholders elecred
(‘)hrllngs Pricewaterhousel.oopers AB (Pw() as
the zudit firm, with Authorized Public Accountane
Fredrik Giransson as the auditer in charge undil
the date of the next AGM. In addition o the
audir, Pw(C also provides advisery services relating
to financial reporting and taxes. This advice is nou
considered te be biased.

51 05 ¥

- Buarc of Owecters -

(R} INED

Lruwp mangjen:ent « b ARIIE R

in 2019 tocal remuneratien paid 0 HMS'
auditors zmounted to SEK 2,305 (3,199) thou-
sand, Further information regarding auditors’

remuneration is avzilable in Note 8.

Fradrki{Garansson .
PAiniiorized Public Accountany
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for how the company is
organized and for administzanon of the company’s
affairs on behalf of the owners. The Board assesses
the company's financial situarion on an angeing
basis and makes sure that it is organized such that
there are adequate controls on its bookkesping,
fund management and other financial matcers.
The Board sers policies and instructions for how
this is to be achieved. I also adeprs rules of proce-
dure for the Board and instructions for the CEO.
These central governance documents specify how
respansihilicies and authority are allocated between
the Board and its committecs, as well as between
the Chairman of the Board and the CEQ). The
Board appoines the CEO. The Chairman is
responsible for evaluating the work of the Board
and providing the nemination committee with the
results of that evaluation.

BASIS FOR BOARD WORK

The fundamental issues concerning the nof
responsibility between che Board of Directors,
Board commitees, Chairman and CEQ zre
expressed in the Board's rules of procedure and
instrucdons for the CEC. The rules of procedure
regulare such chings as how ofien the Board con-
venes and the items that it should address at Board
meetings. The rules of procedure also explain the

SRIAFPEMNCIK
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allocation of responsibility hecween the Board, its
Chairman and the CEQ.

The Board is responsible for adopting strare-
gics, business plans, budgets, quarterly repors,
financial statements and the annual sepore. The
Board is also responsible for appointing and dis-
missing the CEO and decisions involving signifi-
cant changes to the HMS organization and
opetations. The rules of procedure state the
thresholds that 2pply when the Board must decide
on investmenrs, company mergers and acquisi-
tions, loans, etc.

Evaluation of the work duu: by the Board
occurs gontinually, in part on its overall efforis and
in part on the contribution made by each individ-
uzl member. The purpose is te ensure thac the
HMS Board of Directors has the right structure in
terms of its expertise and dedication. Each year,
the work done by the Board is evaluated by having
every member of the Board answer a number of
questions, which the Chairman then compiles and
presents to the Board. This evaluation, which is
also distributed to the nomination commirtee, is
important for ensuring that the werk done by the
Board is effective.

BOARD STRUCTURE

The Board consists of six members elected by the
AGM, one employce representative and one Dep-
ury. The Board consisted of another employee
representative during the period of May 2019 w
February 2020. The Board members that arc
clected by the AGM have extensive professional
experience and are, or have at some time, been
CEQs and/or senior executives in large companies
and many arc also Board members in large compa-
nies, Seme of the company’s Board members have
served on the Board for quite some time and they
are well acquainted with the company’s apera-
tiens,

The Swedish Code of Corporate Governance
stipulates that the majority of elected Board mem-
bers must be independent in relation to the com-
pany and Group management. Furthermore, at
least ewo of the independent members must also
be independent in relation o the sharcholders chat
control 10% or mere of the shares or voring rights
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in the company. The nomination commitree has,
during a joinc assessment of cach members refa-
tionship to the company, Greup management and
major shareholders, found thar all members are
independent in relavon o the wwmpany and its
management. Excepe for Anders Marck, all che
members have been assesscd as being independenc
in relation tv major shareholders, The unique
expertise of each individual Board member and
the resulting comperence of rhe entire Board is
presented on page 44-45.

The total amount of lees paid to the Board in
2019 was SEK 1,625 (1,450} thousand. For a
more denailed description of Board members’
artendance at meetings, please see Note 10.

DISTRIBUTION WOMEN
MEN DN THE BOARD

WOMEN, 25 % EMMEN, 75 %

DIVERSITY POLICY

HMS Nerworks, through the nomination com-
mittee, applies rule 4.1 of the Swedish Code of
Corporate Governance as irs diversity policy when
preparing nominations for the election of board
members, The rule stipulates thac the Board
should have a composicion appropriate 1o the
company’s operations, phase of development and
other relevant circumstances. The Board members
elecred by the AGM must. a5 2 whole, reflece
diversity and breadth in terms of their qualifica-
tions, experience and background. The company
miuse also strive for gender balance on the Board
The aim of the diversity policy is t satisfy the
need of sufficient diversity on the Board regarding
gender, age and natienalicy, and alsa experience,
wotk background and business areas. The nomina-
tion commirtee has concluded that the Board of
HMS Necworks in this respect has an appropriate
composition.
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Board work follows a structure that includes certain standing items, mainty in accordance with the foliowing plan:

Yoar-end cloging and  Annusl
Year-end Reporl

interim Report
Report  for January-Manzh

Imerim Repon
for January-March

Inteqm Report

Budge!
for January-Seplembar

mesling

HR Preparation First Board Financial manitoring Strategy
procasses ?j AGM masting Full-year foracast maeting
of tha yaar

CHAIRMAN CF THE BOARD
The Board’s rules of procedure stipulate thar the
Chairman must ensure cthar che Board’s work is
tun effectively and thac the Board meets irs obliga-
tions. Thiy includes organtzing and leading the
Board’s effores and creating che best possible con-
ditions fbr meeting its responsibilitics, [t is afso the
duty of the Chairman o ensure that Board mem-
bers regularly update and hone their know-how
abour the company and that new members receive
che requisite urtroduction and trainfng. Furcher-
more the Chairman must meet with the CEO to
provide advice and discuss imporanc issues, She
must also evaluae she CEO's work and reporc
these findings o the Board. 1n addition. it is the
Chairman’s duty to ensure that the work of the
Board is evaluared annually and thar a report on
this evaluation is provided to the nemination
commiceee

Ar the AGM on 25 April 2019 Charlote
Brogren was elected as Chairman of the Board.

The Chairman of che Board is net involved in the
opcrational managemen of the company.

WORK OF THE BOARD IN 2019

Since the AGM of 25 April 2019, the Board has
held 19 minuted meetings up 1 the adopuon of
this anaual reparc. It expeces te have one addi-
tional meeting prior (o the AGM on 23 April
2020, Both the CT0O and CFO of HMY Networks
AB participate in Board meetings, with the CEO
serving as rapportenr and the CFOY serving as sec-
retary. At cach of ics meetings, the Board has deale
with the mandacory standing items. as stipulated
in the Board’s rules of procedure. This includes
discussion of the company’s business situarion,
budgets. quarterly reports and annual financial
stacements  The work of the Board otherwise
focused ar the turther development of previously
cstablished macker and acquisition strateges.
Besides its scheduled meeangs, the Board's work
consists of regular follow-up on financial matters,
serategic product development, providing recom-

Risk.
analysis

mendacions on remuncraton levels, dealing, wich
company acquisition issues and mauers having o
do with accounting and auditing.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board appoine some of its members 1o senve
o the femuncration commutiee, which 1 respon-
sible for regularly reviewing the emplovment
terms of senior exccutives by making comparisons
with individuals holding similar positions in other
companics. The Board decides on the prnciples
for remuneration to senior executives and the
EO.

The remuneration commitize consists of the
Chairman of the Board (Charlotre Brogren) and
ane other Board member (Cecilia Wachemeister)
who was appointed by the Board. Charlotte Bro-
gren was elected as Chairman of the remuncration
commiceee. Attendance was 100% ar all the meer-
ings.
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CEQ 3,067
Group management, other
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* Inclughng oihsr remuneration

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board nominates an audit committee, which
monitors the financial reporting by examining all
ceitteal audit issues and other conditions that
might affect the content and qualicty of the finan-
cial statements. The committee alse menitors the
effectiveness of the company’s and Group’ inter-
nal contrels, risk management systems and che
external auditers’ imparcialicy 2nd indcpendence.

The audic commiteee evaluates the audit work
and assists the nominauon commiee n the selec-
uon of auditer. The commitiee aso makes deci-
sions regarding ali purchases of cansulting services
{not related to the audit) from the company’s audi-
tor.

The audit commitiee consists of rwo Board
members appointed by the Board (Anders Mirck
and Fredrik Hansson). Anders Morck was elected
as Chairman of the audit committee. Attendance
was 1009 ac all the meetings.

The commirtee has regular contact with exter-
nal auditers, who reporr to the commictee con-
cerning importane details char arose during the
starutory audit, specifically concerning possible
inconsisrenciss in the internal concrols for finan-
cial reporring.

DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

The Board appoints some of its members to serve
on the development commictee. This commitee is
meant to scrve as 2 sounding board for the HMS
management team on issues having o do wicth
research and develepment, specific projects and
the company’s portfolio of development projects,
the organizational structure of the R&D deparc-
menct znd how it is managed, as well as the training
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660 763
o teer 250 148
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and development of employ ces. Furthermare, the
comminee should serve as a resource when it
comes o preparing and ebtaining suppart bor
R&1) inidatives that require a decision by the
Board duc te the strategic importance, investment
decisions or collaboravon with others. The cam-
mitcee should ensure thar the HMS Board stays up
o date on R&[J issues relevant to the company
and its future.

The deselopment committee consists of three
appointed Board members {Charlotce Brogren, UIf
Stidergren and Ray Mauricsson), Ulf Sodergren was
elected as Chairman of the development commic-
tee. Attendance was 100% at all the mectings.

CEO AND GROUP MANAGEMENT
The CEQ is responsible for developing the co
pany’s business, as well s leading and coordinating

daily operarions in accordance with the instruc-
tions and directions adopted by the Board. This
means, among other things, responsibilicy for the
financial reporung, compiling the supperting
informarion for decisions and ensuring char obli-
gatons, contracts and other legal documents do
not contravene Swedish or international laws and
regulations. The CEQ must also ensure that the
company’s goals, policies and strategic plans are
being followed and tha they are updaced when-
ever necessary. The CEO appoines the other mem-
bers of the Group management tewm.
Furthermore, the CEX 1s responsible for pro-
viding the Board with required information and
supporting documentation for decisions. Such
information must be sent o each Board member
ar least seven davs prior 1o scheduled Board meet-
ings, where the CEQ serves as rapporteur. The
CEQ keeps the Board and its Chairman conscancly

4,854

_ 1227
16.831

updared abour the company’s and Group's finan-
cial position and growth.

The Group manzgement team is headed by the
CEO and its other members are the five individu-
als who hold the following poesitions: Chief Finan-
cial Officer, Chief Technical Officer, Chicf
Commercial Officer, Chicf Marketing Officer and
Chicf Product Officer. For additional information
abour the Group management team, please see
page 46.

The Group management team has overall respon-
sibility for ensuring that the activities of the Group
are in accordance with the stracegy and long-term
objectives stipulated by che Board. The Group
management team meets approximacely 10-15
times per year. These meezings deal with strategic

issues that concern the entire Group. The meet-
ings are led by the CEO, who makes decisions
after consulting with the other members of the
{iroup management team.

In 2019, the total remuneration (including
pension provisions) to the CEO amounted to SEK
4,654 (4,449) thousand. For more informarion
about remuneration te the CEQ and Group man-
agement team, see Note 10.




Board’'s internal contro! report

HMS's work with internal controls has been
designed 1o ensure that the company's financial
reporting is correct and reliable” 2nd that its finan-

staternents have been prepared in accordance
with applicable laws and reguliaions, accouncng
standards and other requirements for listed com-
panies. The work with wrernal controls provides
value by clarifying roles and responsibiliries,
improving the efficiency of processes, increasing
tigk awareness and improving the reliability and
qualicy of finsncial reporcing and follow wp.

DESCRIPTION

At HMS, cthe internal controls over Brancial
reporting are an incegral part of corporate gover-
nance. They consist of processes and methods for
protecting the Group's assees and ensuring che
accuracy of its financial reporung. The purpose of
such internal conrrols is to protect the owners'
investment in the company. To organize and fur-
thet improve this work, HMS uses the C0SO
framework, which provides structure when evalu-
ating and monitoting the internal conerols over
financial reporting,

CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

The foundation for internal controls consists of
the overall control environmenc that has been
established by the Board and managemens ream.
This is builc on an organization wich clear dect-
sion-making paths where authority and responsi-
bility are defined with clear inscrucdons. Tt is alse
buitc on a corporate culture with common values
and individual awzreness of each person’s role in
maintaining good internal control.

The Group strives to ensure that the entire
organizadon lives by these values. There is much
emphasis on making sure that these core values
guide all behavior, both internally and externally.

HMS has esablished a Code of Conduct. It
explains the desired behavior i different sirua-
tions. In 2019, a global security awareness pro-
gram was initiated for ali our cmployvees. The
program runs over several months with the goal o
better understand the risks related 0 informarcion
security and che operational, reputziional and
financial consequences

The Board has oversil responsibility for the
internal comrols concerning financial reporting,
The Bourd has established writeen rufes of proce-
dure chat clarify the Board’s responsibilites and
how work should be allocated within the commit-
tees, The Board has also appeinted an audit com-
miteee, which is primarily responsible for ensuring,
the reliability of financial reporting and adequacy
of internal controls. It also interacts wich the com-
pany’s auditors for thae same purpose. Further-
more, the Board has drawn up inscructions
pereaining to financial reporting for both the CEQ
and the Board of HMS. Responsibility for main-

OVERALL CONTROL ENVIRONMMENT

A

wining an effective control environment and the
ongetng work concerning internal controls is del-
cgated to the CEO who tn turn delegates fane-
tion-specitic responsibulity © managers at differen:
levels throughout the Group.

The purpose of HMS's incernal conerol efforts
15 to ensure that the Group achieves its goals for
financial reporting, A minimum requiremnent is far

the conerol acivities to address the key identified
risks within the Group
Responsibi

inscructions for the right to sign on hehalf of the

ity und aucharicy are defined in the

company, manuals, policics and routines. Fxam-
ples include HMY's manual for accounting and
reporting, the finance and credit policy, informa-
tion palicy, IT security pehey and HR paolicies.
These guidelines, together with laws and other
external regulations, are the components of the
control environment. Every employee must follow
these guidelines.

During 2019, in accordance with established

ARCHOLOER INFO
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guidelines, HMS continued its revicw of the exist-
ing internal controls so thar the Baard has ade-
quare supporting documentation for establishing
the appropriate level of stringency. The result uf’
this effort will be zn evaluation and verification of
the governing documents and guidelines that
form the basiy of corporate governance,

RISK ASSESSMENT

Risk asscssmenc scems from the Group's financal
cargees. The averall fiaancial risks are liquidicr &
financing risk, currency risk, interest rare risk and
customer credic risk. These are primarily dealc
with via the zccounting and finance Funcdons, in
accordance with the Group's financia) palicy. For
more derailed informadion, please see Note 3.
Thiough quantitacive and qualitative sk analyses
based on the Group's balance sheer and income
scatement, HMS identifies che key risks that could
posc a threar to the company achieving its business
abjecrives and financial targers. Risk assessment
invalves identifying the risks that could arise if the
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fundamenual requiremencs on financial reporcing
{completeness, accuracy, valuation and presenta-
tien) by the Group are not fulfilled.

The focus 15 on risks i the financial reporting
relaced to significant income statement and bal-
ance sheer items, which, on the whale, are more
dependent on an underlying complex process or
where the effece of errors could be very large,
since the tansaction amounts are significant,
These investigations result in specific measures
such as improved control rowtines for furcher
safeguarding correcr financial reporting,

CONTROL ACTIVITIES

Conrrol acti

es mitigate che identfied risks and
ensure that financial reporting is both correct and
reliable and thac processes are efficient, The con-
trel acrivities include both the overall and specific
contrals and they aim to prevent, disconer and
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correct inaccuracies and deviation.

The ceneral Group Finance function is respon-
sible for the consolidated financual statements, as
well as the financial and administrative concrol
systems. The deparrments responsibilicies alsa
include ensuring that relevant instructions for the
financial reporcing are made known and available
ta the employees concerned.

Group Finance regularly perform reconcilia-
tions and checks of reporied amounts, along with
analysis of the income stacements and balance
sheets, cash flow and working capital. The fune-
tion analyzes and follows up on any budger devia-
tions, makes forecasts, moniwrs significanc
fluctuations over defined periods und reports find-
ings to the rest of the company, thus minimizing
the risk of errors in the financul reporting. The
funcrion performis concrol activities ac all levels of
the company.

GLOSS

PRENDIY

The financial managers of the subsidiaries are
responsible for ensuring that the control acrivities
for the financial reporcing of cheir respective units
are adequate, which means that they have been
designed to prevent, discover and correct errors
and deviations, and that they comply with internal
guidelines and instructions.

A high degrec of 1T sccurity is required for
good incernal conrrol in financial reporting. Rules
and puidelines are therefore in place w ensure
accessibility, accuracy, confidencialiey and trace-
abilicy of the informartion in the ERP. Access o
the varipus components of the ERP is limited,
based on the employee's authorization level,
responsibilities and positien. Furchermore, segre-
gation of duries helps prevent bath intentional and
unintentional enrigs.

As part of the effort to ensure the qualicy of the
financial stacements, the Board has set up an audic

committee consisting of two Board members
appointed by the Board. The committee deals with
such things as critical auditing issucs and monitors
the effectiveness of incernal contrals and risk man-
agement concerning the financial reporting.

INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION
Information and communicarion about risks, con-
trols and cffectiveness of controls chroughaue the
HMS Group help ensure thac che righe business
decisions are made, The Group strives to make
certain that the information and communication
toutes for the internal controls pertaining to finan-
cial reporung work as intended and are known
throughour the Group.

The guidelines for financial reporting are com-
municated to all employees concerned within the
Group via policies, manuals and work instruc-
tions. The information includes methods, instruc-

tions and practical checklists, descriptions of roles

HAREHILTFR INFL

and responsibilities and 2 comprehensive schedule.
The HMS Group's published financial statemenes
far external reporting purposes are derived from all
of its legal entities and they are prepared in accor-
dance with standardized reporting rousines.

The HMS Group's accounting policies and
any changes that are made to them are always
communicated by direct mail to all employees
concerned within the organization. Furthermore,
each month, all subsidiaries prepare a reporr,
which contains information abour irs financial
status and performance.

To ensure that information reported externally
is cotrect and complete, the Board has established
an informartion policy. It specifies which items
must be communicared, who is responsible for
communicating the information, and how this
should be done. There are also instrucuens for
how financial information should be communi-
cared between managers and other employees.
There must also be adequate informanon securicy
routines 10 ensure carrect dissemination of infor-
mation.

HMS% information routines and systems aim
at providing the marker with relevany, reliabie,
correct and current information about the Group's
development and financial position. HMS's infor-
mation pelicy meets the requirements thar have
been established for listed companies.

Financial information is regularly published in the
form of:

* Quarterly and year-end reperts, which are
published as press releases.

+ Annual Report

*  Press releases sbout impartant news and evenrs
thar could have a significant impact on the
share price.
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* Presentations and celeconferences for financial
analysts, investors and the media on the same
day as the financial statements and quarterly
reports are published and in conjuncuon with
the publicarion of other imporant informa-
ton.

Meerings with financial analysts and investors
All repores, presentacions and press releases are
published simulran¢ously on the Group's web-
site ag: www hms-networks.com.

FOLLOW UP

Fallow up and tests of controls are regularly per-
formed 10 ensure that all nisks have been taken into
account and dealt with sausfactorily. Follow up
includes boch formal and infarmal routines wsed
by managers, process owners and contzel lers, They
include such things 2s comparing resalts t bud-
gets and plans, analyses and key figures.

Tf controls fail, actions are taken to address the
problem and correce wharever weaknesses were
identified.

The Board studics and appraves alt the Group's
quarterly reperts, vear-end repores and annual
reperts prior t«w publication. The Board alse
receives meonthly financial reports concerning the
Group’s positon and eamings uend and the
Group's financial situarion is discussed at each
Board meeting. The Greup Finance function and
management team carey ouc detailed manzhly
analyses of financial reporcs.

Budgecs and forecasts are other important com-
ponents of Group-wide internal conwol. Sales are
budgeted ar the product level by managers within
the sales organizafion. They are ther consolidared
and validated in conjunction with compilation of
the camplete, overall budger for operations. Thisis
done during the fourth guaner of the wear. to be
approved by the Board. Besides the budget, a fore-

cast is zlso prepared during May-June. Besides the
farecast and budget, Group management alsa
works with overall scrategic plans.

The audit commiree follows up the financial
reports and receives informarion from the compa-
ny's auditor about their findings and recommen-
dations. Checks on how well inernal controt

activiries are working are regularly performed ac
wrarious levels within dhe Group and reported back
w the Board by the audit commitee. In view of
rhe scope of the business and the existing cantsol
activities, the Board has decided thar there is no
need to introduce a special internal audit funcrion.
The Board is of the opinion thac the company
complies with the Swedish Code of Corpurace
Governgnce, except for the following:
»  Internal audic.
¢ Compositien of members in che nomination
committee.

The reasons for these deviations are explained in
this corporate governance report.
Halmstad, 12 March 2020
Charlotte Brogren  Fredrik Hansson
Ray Maaritsson Anders Mérck
UIf Sodergren Ceciira Wachtmeister

Tobix Persson

CORPORATE GOWERNANCE

Auditor’'s statement on the
corporate governance report

To the ganera) meating of the sharehoiders iIn HMS Networks AB [pub)), corporate
rdentity numbar 55686 1-8854,

ENGAGEMENT AND RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Directors is responsible for the 2019 Corporate Gover-
nance Report on pages 3743 and for ensuring that it has beer pre-
pared in accordance with the Annual Accournts Act.

THE SCOPE OF THE AUDIT

Qut review has been corducted in accerdance with Revt) 16, Audi-
tor's Review of the Cerporate Governance Report. This means that
our review of the Corporate Gavernance Report has a different focus
and significantly smalfer scope that the focus and scope required for
performing an audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing and generally accepted auditing practices in Sweden. We
believe that this review provides a reascnable basis for our opinion
set out below.

OPINION

A corporate governance report has been prepared. Disclosures in
accordance with Chapter 6, Section 6, second paragraph, items 2-8
of the Swedish Companies Act, along with Chapter 7, Section 31,
second paragraph of the Swedish Companies Act are consistent with
the financial statements and consolidated financia! statercents and
they are in accordance with the Annual Accounts Act.

Halrnstad, 19 mars 2020
Ohrlings PricewaterhouseCoopers AB

Fredrik Goransson
Authorised Public Acceuntant
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GOVERNANCE —-BOARD OF HRECTORS

Board of
Directaors

Board position
Spacial skills to contribute to HMS

Current employment

Education

Year slacted
Barnin

Resident of
Other posts

Depandence

Previcus expertence

Shareholding®
(own and related parties)

Audit committes
Remuneration committee
Development committes
Aftendance at Board meetings
Remuneration 2619
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CHARLOTTE BROGREN

Charman of the Board

FREORIK HANSSON

Board member

RAY MALRITSSON

Board member

ANDERS MORCK

Boerd member

Years of expenence m automation and
development.

Leadership, business development and inter-
nationalizalicn with a strategic perspective in
sales and marketing.

Several years of experience as the CEQ of a
fast-growing technoicgy company

Mergers and acquistions, company business
values, stack exchange experienca and finar-
cial management.

Chief Technology Officer ({CTC) at Almak
Group AB {publ)

Active in own company.

CEO of Ais AB (publ).

CFO at Investment AB Latour (pubrf).

PhD in Chemical Engineering from Lund
University

Bachelor of Science, Economics and Finance
from the University of North

M.Sc.in EHgmearlng Physms;nd Executive
MBA from Lund University.

M.5c. in Business and Economics, Vaxjo
University.

Alabama.
2010 2015 2007 ) 2016
1983 T 1962 1963
Stockheim 7 Karlskrona Malmd Gathenburg
Board member of Gunnebo AB Chairman of the beard at Hedson Tech- "None Beard membar of Caljan A/S, Bwegon Group

Independant from the company and its main
OWners.

nologies International AB and Scanbox
Thermoproducts AB and board member of
Mord-Lock International AB, Anocca AB and
Troax Group AB {publ}.

A8, Hultafors Group AB, Lateur Industries
AB, Nord-Lock International AB and Aritco
Group AB.

Independent from the company and its main
OWNBrs.

independent from the company and its main
OWNETS.

Indepencdent from the ccmpany. Not
independent of the major sharehalders.

Development Manager for ABB Robotics and ~ GEQ at Roxtec Group AB Various senior positions in TAC (now Schnei- Experience of management position and
executive postions within ABB's research der Elactrics). Division Manager and other organizational issues, businass dealings,
organization as well as Genaral Director of senior positions in Axis Communications. stack market experisnce and financial man-
Vinneva agement.

5,500 - T Zaoo 20,000 4,000

) X X {ohair)

X (Chair)

x o x

160% 100% 100% 100%

500,000 275,000 225,000 325,000

* Portains 16 DG as of 31 Docomber 2018
* Periains to he penod between AGM 2013 aid AGM 2020
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ULF SODERGREN

Board member

CECILIA WACHTMEISTER

Board member

TOBIAS PERSSON

Employee reprasentative

Innavation and industry processes

Several years of complex system sakes in the
telacommunication industry.

Empleyee of HMS

"Board member

Executive Vice President Business & Group
Funcions at Kambi Plc

Senior Development Engineer atHMS

MIKAEL MARTENSSON

Employse representative (deputy)

Emp\oyee’ of HMS.

gsnlor Field Application Engineer at HMS

M.Sc in Mechanical Engineering from KTH
and Bachelor In Economics from Stockholm
Univarsity

M.Sc in Industrial Engineering from The
Institute of Technology at Linkdpmg
University.

M Sc. in Computer Systems Engineering
B Sc. in Information and Commurication
Technology B Sc in Electrical Engineering
University degree m mechalronics

B Sc._ in Computer Systems Engineering

2018 2618 2016 20189
1953 1966 1978 1972
Stockhoim ‘Stockhoim Halmstad Halmstad
Board member of AF Péyry AB (publ], IV Board member of Smart Eya AB {publ) Chairman of the Board at MedicWave AB _\ng;" T
Produkt AB and Lagercrantz Group AB (publ) Partner of Lypson Intedliganta
{publ) Systern HB
Independent from the company and its main Independent from the company and its main Employee of HMS Employee of HMS
owners OWners
CTG of ASSAABLOY AB (publ} and prior Several years of axpenencs In leading More than 20 years of expenence in
to that various positions within the ASSA positions at Ercsson AB Industnal Autormation / Communication as
ABLOY Group. such as Regional Managar product manager and developer at HMS
and COO. Before thal active within Elactrolux
and ABB.
10,000 3.000 1.026 27.095
X
X {Chair)
90% 100% 100% 100%
225,000 225,000 Q o
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GOVERNANCE - GROUP MANAGEMENT

Group management

Current position

Education

Bomin
Nationality
Othar poats

Previous experlence V

Shareholding (own
and refated parties)

Employed sinca

Member of Group
management taam
Since:

P4

STAFFAN DAHLSTROM

Chief Executive Officer - CEQ

"Degrea in Computar Systams
Engineering from Halmstad

a

ANDERS HANSSON

Chiaf Marketing Officar - CMO

Vialras'tér;'siDégraé 1n Industral

Management and Economics.

MNABILITY

COVERNAMLE G

ad of Derectury

SHVE

FINARZIAL IMEL GH

sl

HANS LARSSON

Chief Commercsal Officer -
cco

B.Sc‘. in Innovation Enginesnng
from Halmstad University.

JGAKIM NIDEBORN

Chief Financial Officer - CFO

AFPENUIX

et

AREHOLOER INFO

JORGEN PALMHAGER

Chief Technology Officer - CTO

TIMO VAN'T HOFF

Chief Product Officer - CPO

M.Sc. in industnal Economics
from Lund Institula of

B.Sc. in Camputar Syslams
Engineenng from Halmstad

B.Sc in Automotive Engineer-
ing from HT S Aulotackniek.

X Tachi u L Apeldoam, The Nelherlands.

Usivarady and Exqoulwa MBA Fom Haknetad Uriverady, achnology niversity. W 5. in Tachnology Manags-

from Lund University. S ot ment from Cha'mers University

Economics and Managamant of Tachnology, Gothanbu

1967 1958 1970 1983 1968 1971

Swedish Swedish Swedish Swadish Swadish Swadish, Dutch

Board member of Myconic A8 Nore Board member of Bemsig AB None None Board mamber of Unimar Plast

(publ} and Clavister Holding & Gummi AS

AB {publ)

Sales and Marksting Manager  Pravious positions at HMS: Vice President Lifa Scienceal  GFQ at Beyer Electronics “Daveloper, Project Manager, CEQ &l Volvo Car Retall

at HMS. Head of Global Key Account Getinge AB, General Manager Group AB. Management and Cevelopment Manager and Sclutions, Director Product
Management Team, Global Key ~ Sweden at GEA Food Soluions  Strategy Consultant st COO at HMS Management and R&D a1
Account Managsr, Sales and AS. Axholimen Consulting and 2‘,:23“ Tank Man:gememn;,"fm-
Markating Manager for Celarant Consuiting. Manager Diagne: suP:gESWDL
France, Benelux, Spain and Tools, AB Volvo, and Consultant
Portugal, Product Manager. at Capgemini.

5490745 84082 1,044 508 240087 768

1969 2000 017 2017 T e T 2017

2007 ) 2010 2017 T 007 2019
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Extended management team

’n

PATRIK ARVIDSS0ON

Global Supply Menager

THILO DHRING

General Manager,
Market Unit Continental
Europe

=
5 -]
A
MAGNLUS HANSSON

Global Systemns and
Secunty Manager

R
ALEXANDER HESS

General Manager,
Business Unit Ixxat

FINANCIAL INFO)

KEVIN KNAKE

General Manager,
Market Unit Amencas

GRE APPFNOIX
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GOVERNANCE - EXTENDED MANAGEMENT TEAM

FRANCIS VANDER GHINST

General Manager,
Business Unit Ewon

B Sc.in Production and
Quality Managsment from
Chalmars Univarsiy of
Tachnelegy, Gothenburg.

B.Sc. in Computer Tachnoiogy
from Univarsty of Technol
gy n Wailburg, Germany
and Techrical Businass
Adminstration from SGD in
Darmstadt, Germany

M Sc. i Computer Systems.
Engineenng fram Haimstad
Unmversity,

B Sc inGomputer Enginser-
ing from Esslingsn Univarsity
of Applied Sciences. Germany
and MBA from Steinbeis Uni-
versity in Berlin, Germany

Rachalor s degres in
Ingustrial Engingering and
Comouter Science from
Central Mictigan University.
UsA

B Sc in Elecincal Eng from
INRAGI, Brussels, B S¢ in
Computer Sarence from IPL,
Brussels. Exec_Master in
Management, Soivay Busi-
ness Scheol/ULB, Belgium

1969 1871 1675 1981 1861 1864 .
Swedish German Swedish &n‘iﬁn ’ Amer\}:an ’ ) @g;ﬁ
None None Mona Nore Chasrran of CDVA Roundtabie of — None

EtheretP

Dristribution Manager at Retlog,

Head of Planming at Svenska
Fader, Section Manager for
Mechanics el SF Tekniska
Forskningsinslitut AB and the
followng positions at Nolata,
COQ Europe, Purchasing
Manager, Site Manager and
Logistics Manager.

Bales Manager at Mitsubishi
Electric

Development Manager at
HMES.

201

2010

1997

Business Unit Direcler Safety
at Leuze electroric GmbH &
Ca. KG, Marketing Director,
Senior Product Manager at
Hengstler GmbH / Danaher
Corp and Team Manager,
Software Enqmnest at SMART
Eleciranic Davalopmant
GmbH

2020

Engineering Manager at
Rackwell Automation, Micro
Processaor Systems Inc. and
Pyramid Solubions Inc.

2003

Product Marketing Manager
and Head of Sales for HMS
Industnial Networks SA and
IT Consullant and Partner for
Objact Salution

2006
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Financial definitions

No. of outstanding shares
The number of registered shares, less repurchased own sharesthat
ara held as treasury shares.

Return on shareholders’ equity
Share of the profit after tax attributable to the parent company's
shareholders as a percentage of the averags equity.

Return on capital employed
Share of the profit alter financial income in relation to the average
capital employed.

CAGR
Compound annual growth rate.

EBIT
QOperating income according to income statement.

EBITDA
Operating profl excluding depreciation and amaortization of tangible
and intangible assets.

Equity per share

Average equity attributable to the parent company’s sharehold-
ers divided by the number of cutstanding shares at the end of the
periad.

Flnancial assets
Leng-term- and current financial receivables plus cash and cash
equivalents.

Average number of outstanding shares
The average number of registered shares during the year, less

repurchased shares that are held as treasury shares.

Adjusted profit
Profit excluslve items affecting comparabllity.

Capital turnover
Net sales in relation to average balance sheet total.

A8 1 NETWORKS ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Cash flaw from operating activities per share
Cash flow from operating activilies 2s a percentage of the average
number of outstanding shares.

Net debt
Non-current- and current interest-beanng financiat liabilities less
finangial asssts.

Net debt/equity ratio
Net debt in relation to sharehalders equity.

PiE ratio
Market price as a percantage of earnings per share.

Earnings per share, undiluted

Share of the profit after tax attributable {o the pzrent company’s
shareholders as a percentage of the average number of outstand-
Ing shares.

Earnings per share, diluted

Share of the profit after lax attnbutable to the parent company’s
shareholders as a percentage of the average numhber of outstand-
ing shares plus an adjustrsent for the average number of shares
that are added when converting the outstanding number of con-
vertibles and options.

Working capital
Current assets less cash and cash equivalents and current liabili-
ties, calculated on average values.

Operating margin
Operating profit as a percantage of net sales.

Equityfassets ratio
Shareholders’ equity as a percentage of total assets.

Capital employed
Total assets less non-interest-bearng habiities, provisions and
deferred income lax liabilities.
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Glossary

CBM — Chip Brick Module, the formats in which HMS’s Anybus
embedded concept 15 offered.

Design-Win - a framework agreement with an OEM company. It
enables a company to use an HMS-produet in its products for as
long as the products are manufactured.

Discrete manufacturing - involves manufaciuring volumes con-
sisting of discrete units of & product, which are manufactured
according to a description and component's list, such as computers,
cars and loasters. This type of manufacturing 1s usually in batches
and the final product can typically be disassembied into its original
components.

EMS — Electronic Manufacturing Services, EMS is 2 contract man-
ufacturer of electronics. Their end customers are typically OEMs
{Original Equipment Manufacturers).

ESD protection — Protechon from electrostatic discharge.

FPGA - Field Programmahle Gate Array, programmable semicon-
ductor devices that are based on 2 matrix of configurable |ogle
blocks. The FPGA crrcut's logic funclion can be adapted to different
functional raquirements, which makes possible flexible solutions
with high, optimal performance.

Gateway — a connection point between different natworks where
some form of address and data conversion takes place. Itis actuaily
a collection of hardware and software, such as routers that convert
data between networks, or between networks and equipment with
different standards.

10T {Internet of Things) —loT typically pertains to ordinary physical
devices that connect lo the Infernet. Such devices make “things’,
i.e. information available o IT systems so that the information can
be managed and analyzed.

HoT {industrial Internet of Things) - pertains to industrial devices
and machines that can exchange information with manufactunng
systems, control systems and operators,

NP40 - One of the base technologies in HMS' embedded concept.

ABILITY  GOVFRWANCE ARY  FINANCIALINFO

Network — is a general term for a system with interconnected com-
puters that can be constructed in different ways. In an indusinat
network, such as a manufactunng facilty, machines and egupment
are connected and controlled by programmable logic controllers
(PLCs), which enable the devices to interact with one another.

Network protecol —a collection of rules or a standard, for how two
or mare computer programs communicate and exchange informa-
tion with each other. Examples of communication protocols are
HTTP (transfer of websites between computers over the internet).
TCP/IP {for basic internet communicaton} and SMTP (transfer of
emails)

OEM - Onginal Equipment Manufacturer 1s a company that manu-
factures and sells products under its own brand, even thaugh therr
products can contain products and components from other compa-
nies.

PFOS - EU Dirgchive 2006/122/EC restnets the use of perfluorooc-
tane sulfonales and substances that can be broken down into
PFOS in chemical producis and goods.

PLC - Pragrammable Logic Controller. Programmable control sys-
tem that controts all or parts of an automation system or equipment
in discreet manufacturing

PPM - Parts per million.

Process manufacturing — a branch of manufacturing that is asso-
ciated with formulas and manufactuning recipes, such as quantities
of hquid, gas or powder. Once an output 1s produced by this pro-
cess. in cannot be distilled back to its basic compenents.

REACH - EU framework legislation {2006/1907/EC) governing the
registrahon, evaluation, authonzation and restnction of chemicals
Trus legislaton came into force on 18 December 2006,

RISC - Reduced Insiruction Set Computing, a processor arcihntec-
ture that requires fawer logic leveis and thus achieves higher clock
speeds while consuming less silicon. It prowides high performance
and high cost effectiveness.

RoHS — EU Directive (2002/65/EC) on the restnction of the use of

GAIAPPENGIX  SHARFHOLOFR INFO

certain hazardous substances in electrical or electronic equipment.
The Directive has been in force since 1 July 2008, The banned
substances are mercury, lead, cadrmium, hexavalent chromium, po-
hy-brominated bipnenyls (PBB) and polybrominated diphenyl ethers
{PBDE). The govermment authority in charge of enferaing this n
Sweden 1s the Swedish Chemicals Agency.

RTA — Real Time Accelerator. HMS's unigue IP that makes it pos-
sible for HMS network interface cards to be used n the most
demanding real-ime apphcations.

Serial port — a traditional physical interface through which informa-
tion is transferred seraily {one bit at 2 ime).

WEEE - EU Dirsctive (2002/96/EG) on waste that ts compnised of,
or contains, electrical or electronic equipment. The Directive has
been in force since 27 January 2003 The government authority n
charge of enforcing this in Sweden is the Swedish Environmental
Protection Agency.

VPN - wrrtual private network 1s a technology used for creating
strong connechion “tunnels” between twa points In a computer net-
work.
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COULD YOU EXPLAIN
HMS'S FINANCIAL TARGETS?
HMS has 3 finznaal rargers:

1. Ta have an average annual net sales growth of
20% during = business cycle. We believe that
2/3 of that growth will be organic, and the re-
maining 173 will come from acquisicions.
(ver the past en years, the annual growth rate
{CAGR) has been 18%.

2. HMS also has a target operating margin
{EBIT} of 20%. Over the past ten vears, the
average operating margin has been 18%.

(=

. Qur third target is to distribute 509% of the
profic per share as dividends. Dwver the past ten
years, the average has been 47%.

WHAT IS HMS’S MARKET SHARE AND
WHAT IS THE RATE OF GROWTH IN THE
MARKET?

HMS operaces in several niches in various indus-
tral markers, bur it iy difficalr to judge exacely
how large these niches are, HMS is the market

HMS YE [WORKS ANNUAL REPCRT 2018
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leader in the two main niches - industrial commu-
nicarion and solurians for remore monitoring of
industrial equipment. Market growth varies de-
pending on the market and produa offenings
from HMS, The majonty of HMS wale are gener-
ated in the tndusirial auviomaiion market where
HMS enables communication beoween industrial
cquipment over industrial networks. This market
is expected 1o grow by 4-7% CAGR over the next
five years bused oninformation i vanous industry
repores and rhe knowledge chat HMS has of this
market.

Approximately 20% of HMS sales come from
remote momroring where HMS enables remore
access to machines and their data lor visualization
in solutions often linked to Industrial Intemert of
Things (IleT}. This market 1+ expected to grow at
a much quicker rate, with growth of 10-20% per
yeaL over the next five years

COULD YOU TELL US ALITTLE ABOUT
THE HMS ACQUISITION STRATEGY?
Orpanic growth s sull the highest priority for
HMS. However, complementary acquisitions are
still an impertant component of the company’s
growth strategy. HMS primarily secks strong tech-
nology companies tha have demenstrated rabuse
growth and proficabiliy and which worle i bine
with the HM5 moue, “Connecting Devices™.
Synergies may exist as regards both technology
and market.

COULD YOU DESCRIBE THE HMS BUSI-
NESS MODEL AND CUSTOMER TYPES?
HMS has two main customer caregories: Makers
arc the manutacturers of automatien products and
machines  {lers is how we describe the context
around end-users where all of the auomadon
cquipment winds up.

For Makers, HMS strives o establish long-
erm relationships with customers who integrate
HMS products into their automation products

Joard el b
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and machines. When a customer decides 1o inte-
grate an HM$ produce in this way, we call it a
Design-Win. Onee 5 Design-Win has been com-
pleted, HMS assises the customer in getting pro-
duction underway. The customer chen cypically
arders the HMS praducis concained in the Design
Win for many years o come. We typically sell di-
reetly to Makers via our own sales force.

For Users, HMS typically engages with system
inregrators, offening them Cateway solutions thae
help them arrive at well-integrated systems of an-
tomacion products, machines and software in
end-user factories. For this, HMS ordinarily sells
indirectly to system integraters and end-users via
discributors in our wide nerwark thar covers more
than 50 councries. Accordingly, even though our
solutions are represented in many end-user indus-
tries {primarily factory automation), the end-user
is seldom a direct customer o HMS.

COLLD YOU DESCRIBE HMS’S COMPETI-
TIVE ADVANTAGES?
HMS is a well-known company in the industrial
arenz and has been doing business for more than
30 years. HMS offers proven, high-quality wolu-
tions trusted by thoesands of zuromation compa-
nies, including several indusery giants. Qur strong
position is reflected in the fact that we currently
have 1,797 active Design-Wins. HMS also has 2
reputation of being flexible and adapring its prad-
ucts to the customers requirements, Doing so
hefps establish long-term relationships wich them.
Ancther impertant part of HMS's offering is
making all products Future-proof. By continuous-
ly offering sofrware updares, certifications for the
latest standards and, most importantly, high-qual-
ity products, HMS cnsures that the customer's
product will not only wark today, buc also meec
Future requirements.

AREHOLOFRINF] CENTENTS

IF ONE COMMUNICATIONS STANDARD
BECOMES ADOPTED, WOULD HMS'S
MARKET DISAPPEAR?

We've been asked this question frequencly since
our IPC in 2007 and it is relevant o the business
related to our Anybus brand. Part of the success of
Anybus is rooted in the wide variety of industrial
nerwarks on the marker, Over the last 10 years, it
has consolidated to around 5-7 networks thac are
currently most popular for new installatons.
There are no indications whatsoever that we are
moving towards a single saandard for all applica-
tions. Buc if that were 0 happen, HMS would still
be needed for conpecting the new equipment w
thar specific nerwork and for delivering reerofic
solutions for connecting new and existing equip-
ment that has already been installed in millions of
industrial applications. Anybus is thus sill very
important to HMS. However, the company is less
vulnerable now than it used to bein thar the pare-
folio 15 more diversified, having added the Ewon,
Intesis and Txxar brands.

COULD YOU SAY SOMETHING ABOUT
THE FUTURE FOR HMS?

We believe thar industrial communication willt
continue o be interesting growth marker, which
many leading market analysts agree with, HMS
has a solid, established customer base thar is
spread across many vercicals and geographic mar-
kets. We have many active product lines that pro-
vide continual stabilicy and health revenue
streams, along with new technology for HoT and
wireless communication thar enabies us o serve
bath existing and new markets. In 2019, our cf-
forts assoctated with 3G increased and HMS has
already eswablished a position as a visionary for
industrial connection and we have ongoing col-
laboration with several leading induscrial players.

STARTH
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Oirectors’ report

Operations

HMS is a market-leading supplier of solutions for industrial cornmu-
nication and Industrial Internet of Things, 110T. HMS develops and
marnufactures products sold under the Anybus®, ixxat®, Ewon®
och Intesis™ brands. Preduct development takes place atthe head
affice in Halmstad (Sweden), in Ravensburg, Wetzlar and Buchen
(Germany), Nivelles (Beigium} and Igualada (Spain). Local safles
and support are managed by cur sales offices in Germany, USA,
Japan, China, Singapore, Italy, France, Spain, Netheriands, India,
UK, Sweden, South Korea and United Arab Emirates (UAE), aswell
as via a wide network of distributors and partners across the globe.
HMS has more than 600 empioyees and its sales in 2019 were SEK
1,519 million. HMS is listed on the NASDAQ-OMX in Stockholm in
the Mid Cap, Information Techriclogy category.

Seasonality

HMS does nat have any significant seasonal variafions in its oper-
ations, except for higher costs in the fourth quarter, primarily asso-
ciated with the number of large marketing events that eccur in that
period.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

HMS ended the year with growth at 11 {15)% and annual sales at a
new record level, SEK 1,519 (1,366} million. Order intake for the
yearwas SEK 1,470 (1,433) million, which corresponds to a grewth
rate of 3 (19)%.

in Aprit 2019, HMS acquired 74.9% of the shares in WEBfactory
GmbH located in Buchen, Germany. liis 2 leading supplier of web-
based software solutions for {ndustrial Internet of Things, 1loT. The
caompany has 32 employeses and sales for the full year 2018 were
approximately SEK 22 million.

in May 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the shares in the
Dutch company, Raster Preducts B.V. located in Dreumel, Nether-
iands. For severa! years, the company has bgen the main distribu-
tor of HMS's Ewon products in the Netherlands. The company has
7 employees and salas for the full year 2048 were approximately
SEK 21 million.

On the market side, aconomic growth slowed down, particularly
during the second half of the year. Because of the weaker growth,
an action planwas implemented during the fall, whereby 43 employ-
ees ware made redundant.

Geagraphically, alt the markets have showed relalively stable
growth during the year, while the Japanese market's growth rate
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weakened somewhat during 2019 compared to the other markets.

Growth for the Anybus®, Ewon® and {ntesis™ brands was
good. There was only slight growth for the [xxat® producis, how-
ever. The stable, upward trend in the number of new Design-Wins
also continued in 2019, in total, there were 199 (177) new Design-
Wins during the year. It brings the total number of active Design-
Wins to 1,797 {1,693), which is an increase of 6% compared to iast
year. Of these Design Wing, 1,399 (1,304) are in preduction and 398
{389) are expected to enter production in the coming years.

Efforts to launch products in accordance with HMS's strategy
for industrial Internet of Things (ileT) continued in 2019.
New technology resuiting from the acquisition of Beck IPG has
been implemented in the existing technology platform and the first
products based on that were launched in 2018.

On 25 April 2019, HMS heid its AGM. All the propasals by the
Board and nomination committee were adopied by the AGM. Char-
fotte Brogren was re-elected as Chairman of the Board anc Ray
Mauritsson, Fredrik Hansson, Anders Morck, Cecilia Wachimeister
and UIf Sodergren were re-elected as Directors.

At the first Board meeting following election, Staffan Dahlstrom
was appointed President and CEO of HMS Networks AB.

Cn 31 December 2018, the Share Savings Plan from 2015 was
concluded and in 2019, a total of 89,826 shares (of which 44,913

HMS Group's revenue distribution by market in 2019

USA 17% ——

Japan 9% ———

W EMEA, 83%
D ASIA, 16%
O NORTH AND SOUTH AMERICA, 21%

AL e
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were performance shares), were distributed free-of-charge to the
remaining participanis. For this distribution, the company used
shares that were held in treasury

Based on the authorization from the Annual General Meeting,
tha Board of Directars decided during the year to purchase own
shares. The purpose of the repurchase is to ensure that HMS is able
to fulfill its commitment to defiver shares in accordance with the
company’s Share Savings Pian. In lotal, 40,000 shares were
acquirad for a value of SEK 6 million. That, however, occurred sub-
sequent to the end of the financial year. The tota! holding of own
shares at the end of the year was 202,995.

] 1t avenis subseq ttc year-end

The recent COVID-19 pandemic has fed 1o a higher {evel of uncer-
tainty and the impact this will have on the Group’s operations is very
difficult to predict. No other significant evenrts have occurred sub-
sequent to the end of the penod, but prior te the signing of this
annual repert.

Nat sales

The Group's net sales increased by 1 (15)% and amounted to SEK
1,519 (1,3686) milkon. Exchange rate fluctuations positively affected
net sales during the year by SEK 73 miliien, compared to last year.
In¥oicedsaies by regramwereiasiokows: EMEA (Eurape, Middle

Netsales, SEKm 1,368
Operating income before depreciation
(EBITDA), SEKm 2
Operating margin before depracialion
(EBITDA), % 2
Operating incoma after depreciation
j (ERIT), SEKm 251
f Operating margin afier depreciation
{EBIT), % 18
Profit after financial tams, SEK m 232
Profit {lass} far tha year, SEK m 171
Eamings per sham, basic, SEK 4.43 368
Earnings per shara, diluted, SEK 440 365
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Eastand Africa) 63 (62)%, North and South Amenca 20 (21)% and
Asig 17 (17)%. The Group’s largast markets are Germany, USA and
Japan.

Profit {loas)
Operating profit before depreciation and amortization (EBITDA}
amounted {0 SEX 334 (302} willion, which comesponds to an oper-
ating margin of 22.0(22.1)%. Operating profit after deprecation and
amartization (EBIT) amounted to SEK 243 (251) million, which
corresponds to an operating margin of 16.0 {18.4)%. Incfuded in
P ing profit are ing costs of SEK 22 mitiion ang a
positive effect of SEK 19 million associated with settlement of the
contractual contingent consideration for the Beck IPC acquisition.
Currency translation effects had a positive impact on cperating
profitof SEK 31 {23) millien. Due to a decline in the value of the SEK
currenzy, forward 58 BY; had animpact on
oparating profit of SEK -14 (-5) milion. The acquired companies
tvave not had any sigrificant impact an apecating profit after depre~
ciation and ashortization (EBIT) for the year.

Nat finencial income/expense emounted to SEK -15 {-20) million
and profit affer financial ilemns amounted to SEK 228 (232) milfion.
The reportad tax expense amounted to just SEK -23 (-81) mrillion,
whicht s primarily attributable fo one of the Belgian subsidiary's
products having received a significant tax exemption, which has
had & posifive impact on tax by SEK 1% million {of which SEK 10
million is related to 2018 and SEK 9 million to 2019}, There was also
2 positive impact on tax of app SEK 3 milien
with conditional consideration transactions. Profit after tax thus
amouated to SEK 205 {171} million.

In 2018, several items affecting comparabiiity were reporied.
The main iterns ware: restructurirtg costs of SEK 22 milfion, contin-
gent consideration of SEK 18 million and tax credils attributable to
last year for SEK 15 million. The adjusted profit after these items
amounted o SEK 188 million.

tnvastmants

The year's investments in property, plant and equipment, slong with
intangible asgets, amounted to SEK 66 {30} million. The acquisition
of new subsidiaries (WEBfactory GmbH and Raster Products B.V.)
akso impacted investing activities by SEK 24 (26) milfion. Invest-
ments in financial assets amounied to SEK 2 (6) milfion. Invest-
ments in intangible assets primarily consist of the costs associated
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with dewt 1t of new technology p Amortizatian of
capitalized development costs amounted to SEK 30 {24) million.

Financial position

Asof 31 December 2049, the Group had cash and cash eguivalents
of 51 {58) miflion, excluding unublized cradit facilties of SEK 176
{158} million. The Group's net dett amounted to SEX 402 {242)
million and net debt in refation to EBITDA was 1.20 (113}, The net
debt to equity ratio was 40 (40)% and the quily ta assets rate was
5B (54)%.

During the year, the financing agreement with: the existing bank
was extended. The agreement applies to & revolving facility of EUR
45 miflion which runs until September 2022.

In total, amartization of the Group's external loans was SEK 58
{56) miltion. Repurchase of shares for the year was 0 {42) miliion
and tividends of SEK 1.8C (1.50) per share were paid, fotaiing SEK
84 (70) milion.

Cash flow from oaperating activities amoumted fo
SEK 254 (193) million. After netinvestments of SEX -82 (-62) million
and new borrowings, amortization, repurchase of own shares and
dividends paid, fotaiing SEK -173 (<166} miliion, the cash flow for
the year amounted to SEK -12 (-35) million,

Group structure

HMS Networks AB (publ), CIN 556661-8954, is the Parent Com-
pany of the wholly-owned subsidiary, HMS industriat Networks AB,
which, i tum is the Parent Company of several subsidiaries, see
Note 35. The following two subsidiares were liquidated during the
year; FAR S.p.rd in Beigium and HMS Induslrial Networks ApS in
Denmark. HMS Industrial Networks AB, HMS Technology Center
Ravensburg GmbH, Beck IPC GmbH, HMS industrial Networks
SA, Intesis Software SLU and WEBfactory GmbH comprise the
development canter for the HMS Group while the other sub i
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Sustainability report

In acgordance with Chapter 8, Section 11 of the Annual Accounts
Act, HMS Networks AB (publ) has elected fo prepare its sustainatnl-
Ry reportas a separate report from the Annual Report. The sustain-
ability report is provided on pages 26-33 of this annual report.

Research and developmaent

The Group expensed SEK 180 (152) millian for research and devel-
apment during the year. in addition, capitalized development costs.
were SEK 53 (24) million, of which SEK 11 {7) million has peen
acquired. Total costs for t

h and d P p
make up 15 (14)% of sales. The Group's poiicy is 10 only <apitahize
major projects for developing s own integrated Gircuits and new
platiorms for products intended for use in embedded sysiems.
D of products or apphications based onihese
are not capitalzed. Customerspecific projects are capitalized
when it has bean determuned as lkely that the develapment costs
will be covered by future voiume commitments.

Empioysas
At year-end, the number of employees for the Group was 624 (592).

New guidelines for remuneration to senior executives (Group
management team}
Remuneration 1o the CEC and other senior executives (currently the
CFO, CTC, CCQ, MO and CPOY is decided in actordance with the
guidelines en 10 senior . The gui
were adepted at the AGM an 25 Aprd 2019 and they apply through to
the next AGM.

According to the guidelines. remuneration fo the GEO and other
senior executives shall consist of basic salary, shori-term and long-
term i and pension. In this context, other senor

are responsible for saies, marketing and suppert in their respective
geographic markets.

Forelgn branch offices

The Group has branch affices in China and France that are respon-
sible for sales, marketing and support of these local markets. The
branch offices m Finland and Switzerland were shut down durnng
the year.

execulives are the membars of the Group management team that
also includes the CEQ. Other benefits and remuneration are awarded
on the same terms that appiy 1o other employeses.

The aim of the HMS remuneration policy for senior exgcutives s
1o offer revuneration thal promotes the retention and recruitment of
qualified expertise to HMS. Basic salary is estabfished on the basis
that it, in combinatian with bath sharct and tang-tecm incentives, will
be competitive. The absolute lavel depends on the position in ques-
tionand individual per Remul ton to the CEQ s estab-

HIS NETWORKS ANNUAL REPORT 2018 DD
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lished by the Beard based on the proposal from the remuneration
committes. Remuneration to other senior executives is decidad by
the GEO after approval by the remuneration committee.

Shert-tarm incentive schemas to the CEQ and senior executives
are based on the financial targets for the Group. Incentive schemes
must be primarity based on growth and profitability. In addition to
that. other personal guals may be established. For the CEQ and
other senior execitives, the highest possibfe amountis 50% of basic
salary in 2019.

The retirement ags for the CEO and other senior executives 1s
65 years. The pension premium for the CEQ must amount to 35% of
fixed monthiy salary up to 28.5 times the price base amount. For
satary above that level, the pensien premium is 25%.

in the case of notice of termination, the mutual period of notice
for the CEQ is six manths. In the case of notice of termination of the
CEQ from the company's side, a severance payment is made cor-
responding {0 12 month's salary. Other earnings are not deducted
from the severance pay. in the case of notice of termination from the
CEQO's side, no severance payment is made. The mutual notice of
fermination period between the company and cther senicr execu-
tives is six menths. For more infarmation on remuneration to senior
executives, please see Note 16

The Board of Directors' proposed guidelines on future remu-
neratlon to seniorexecutives

Whom the guidelines apply {o and their applicability

These guidelines apply to persons who, during the period of ime
that the guidelines are in effect, are member of the HMS Group
management {eam. The guidelines shali be appled to contractual
remuneraticn, and any changes made 1o glready agreed remunera-
ticn, after the guidelines are adopted at the 2020 AGM, The guide-
jines da not apply to remungration that is decided by the AGM.

Alignment of the guidelines with the HMS business strategy, long-
term interests and sustainability

HMS is a market-leading supplier of selutions for industrial commu-
nication and Industrial internet of Things, |loT. Tha company's vision
is to, in @ world where machines and devices are intellgent and
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in strategic markets, focys an ble product pment, ba
a global player with & tocal presence and have a sustainable supply
chain. A successful implementation of the HMS business strategy
and safeguarding the company’s interests, including its sustainabil-
ity, depends on HMS being able to both recruit and retain skillad
employees. The goal for the HMS remunaration policy for senior
executives is thus to offer competitive end market-based remunera-
tion, so that itis possible to attract, motivate and retain talented and
skilled employees. These guidelines make it possible to offer senior
executives a competitive total remuneration package.

HMS has ongoing jong-term share-based incentive schemes
that have baen edopted by the AGM and which are not covered by
these guidelines. The incentive schemes apply 1o all employses of
HMS, with the aim of motivating them to take greater interest in the
business and its performance, while creating a sense of selidarity
with the cempany by establishing long-term ownership interests.
The intentive schemes also help make it poss:ble for HMS to offer
compettive total remuneration packages and thereby create the
prerequisites for being able to recruit and retain talented emplayees.
Performance requirements are currently linked to profit per share.
The incentive schemes require own invastment during & certain
holding period.

Types of ramunaeration, etc.

Remuneration to senior executives shall be market-based and it may
consist of fixed cash salery, variable cash cempensation, pansion
henefits and other benefits, as well as additional variable cash com-
pensalion in certain extraordinary circumstances. The AGM may
also, and independent of these guidelines, decide on share-based
and share-price-hased remuneration.

Fixed cash salary shall be estzblished on the basis that it, in
combination with both short and long-term incentives, will be com-
petitive. The absolute level shall be established based on the per-
son's position, expertise, experience and performance. The fixed
cash satary ameunt shall te reviewed and revised each yaar.

Variable cash compensation shall be based on predetermined
and measurable financial and non-financiai targets for the Group
and may amount to a maximum of 50 percent of the fixed cash sal-

connected, be a leader in enabling industrial devices and syst
ta communicate for a more productive and sustainable world. In
brief, the HMS business strategy aims to achieve profitable growth
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ary. The distribution b 1fixed and variable cash compensation
shell he proporticnate to the executive's responsibilities and auther-
ity. The goat shali primarily relate to growth and profitability, where
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tne relationship between these KPIs shall be used for determining
the amount of variable cash campensation. In addition te that, other
individus! goals may be astablished. The goals shall be formulated
such that they promote HMS's business strategy and fong-term
interests, including sustainability. For example, there should be a
clear link to the business strategy or promoting the senior execu-
tive's long-term development at H\MS. The measurement period for
goals on variable cash compensation can bs one or several years,

For the CEQ, both pension and insurance benefits shall be
defined contribution benefils. Variable cash compensation shatl ba
pensicnable. The pension premium shall amount ta, at most, 35
percent of the pensionable income up to 28.5 times the price base
amountand at most, 25 pereent on salary amounts in excess of thet.
For other senior executives, bath pension and insurance bensfits
shall be defined contribution benefits, Variable cash compansation
shall be pensionable. The pensicn premiums shall follow the ITP-1
plan and amount o, at most, 30 percent of the pensionable income.

Other banefits may include such things as health insurance,
occupational health care and car benefits. (n totat, such benefits
may asnount to, at most, 10 percent of the fixed cash salary.

Additional variable cash compensation may be awarded in
extraordinary circumstances, provided that such decisions are anly
made for the purpose of recruiting ar retaining senior executives.
Such compensation may net exceed an amount corresponding to 50
percent of the fixed cash salary and an employee may only receive
it, at most, once per year. D on such comp ions shall
be made by the Board of Directors based on recommendations by
the remuneration committee.

As regards employment tarms for pension benefits and other
benefits that are subject to niles that apply outside Sweden, adap-
tations may be made to conform with such rules or the established
tocal practices. In doing so, there must stil be, to the extent possibie,
adherence with the cverriding goals of these guidelines.

Detarmining the outcome of variable cash compensation elc.

The remuneration committee is tasked with preparing, monitoring
and evaluating matters having to do with variable compensation on
behalf of the Board. When the measurement pericd for fulfilling cri-
faria for payment of variable cash compensation has elapsed, an
assessment shall be made or the exient to which the criteria have
been fulfilied. Assessments on the extent to which financial targets
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have been fulfilled shalt be based on adopted financial statements
and documentation pertaining to that period. Remuneration to the
CEO shalt be decided by the Board based on the fecommendations
of the remuneration committee. Remuneration to other senior exec-
ulives is decided by the CEC after ¢ with the ion
committee.

Variable cash remuneration may be paid after the end of the mea-
surament period. Or, it may be deferred for iater payment. The Board
of Directors is entitied to, by law or agreement. fully or partially
demand repayment of vaniable remureration that has been paid out
on incorrect grounds.

Termination of employment

Senior executives shzll have permanent employment. In the case of
notice of lermination, the mutual peniod of notice for the CEQ is six
menths. In the case of notice of termination of the CEO from the
company's side, a severance payment corresponding $o 12 month's
salary may possibly be awarded. Other earnings are not deducted

Dacision process for ishing, monitoring and the
guidelines

The Board of Directors has set up a remuneration committee. The
committee's tasks include prepanng the material upon which the
Board's decisions will be based and making proposals for guidelines
an remunaration to senior executives. The Board must rake prapos-
als on new guidelines for remuneratien every four years and present
those proposals for decisions to the AGM. The guidelines shall apply
until new guideiines have been adopted by the AGM. Theremunera-
tion committee is also required to foliow and evaluate the variable
remuneration schemes for senior executives, applicaton of the
guidelines for remuneration fo senior execolives and applicable
remuneration structures and fevels at HMS. Members of the remu-
neration commitiee are independent in relation to the company and
its senior execulives. When the Board considers and makes decr
sions on remunaration issues, the CEO and other members of the
Group management team are not present and do not participate.

from the severance pay. In the case of notice of irom the
CEO's side, n0 severance payment is made. The mutual notice of
termination period between the company and other seniar execu-
tives is six months, without the right to severance pay.

ft shall be possibie for senior 1o obiain ¢
for a non-compete clausa that they have signed after termination of
theiremployment. However, this is only allowed if severance pay has
simultaneously been awarded during that same period. Such remu-
neration shalt be aimed at compensating the senior executive for the
ditference between the fixed cash salary at the date of lermination
and the {ower) ncome ihat is receved via 2 new employment con-
tract, assignment or own pursuits. Yhe compensation may be paid
during the period of tima that the non-compete clause isin effect. The
maximurm pariod of time that it may be paid, howewver, is for 12 months
subsequent to the termination of employment.

Ssigry and empioyment terms for empicyees

Tha Board of Directors’ propasgl for these remurneration guidelines
has been made after having grven consideration to the salary and
employment terms for employees of HMS, which has included their
total rernuneralion package, the various companerits of that package
and the rate of increase over time. The reasenabdeness of the guide-
fines and the limitations that follow have been based on that.

Deviation from the gui

The Board of Directors may decide on temporary deviations from the
guidelines, either in part or fully, if there are special reasons for doing
son individual cases andit has been deemed necessary for meeting
the kang-terr needs {including sustainability) of HMS or for safe-
guarding the company's economic viability. As slated above, the
remuneraton commitiee's tasks include preparing the malerral upon
which the Boand's decisions will be based, which includes decisiung
on deviating from the guidelines.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTY FACTORS

Market-related riaks

HMS is exposed lo market-related risks that are beyond the Group's
control. These risks are mainly c ted with the b climate,
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cempany's control, such as inlerest rates, Gurrency exchange rates,
inflation, defiation, political uncertainty, taxes, stock market trends,
unemployrment and other factors that impact the econormic outlook.
These factors could impact the Group's praofit and averalf financial
$rtuation.

Competitors

The market far HMS's products is comgetitive. HMS competes in
local markets where there are a number of competitors and itis pos-
sible for new to become HMS's strategy 1s to
improve the Group's already strong market position and thereby
prepare it for possidly tougher competiion in the fulure. A change in
the competitive situation affects both sales volumes and gross profit
margins. HMS must be able to fully compete by a
failura to do s0 could affect the Group's prafit and cverall financial
posibon.

Operational risks

The company is exposed to operational risks in its business. These
risks are associated with the company's strategy, activities and its
relations with the world at large.

Suppliers

RKMS is dependent on well-funchoning cooperation with suppliers.
HMS is also dependent on its component suppliers, but ather suppli-
ers are important as well. If cooperation with these suppliers should
deteriorate or be terminated, the Group would be forced to replace
them with new suppliers, allernative components or it might possibly
even need to redesign its proguats. This couid have a negatve effect
on the Group's earrings and financial posiion.

C

compedtitive situation, wortd market demand and access to resources
that are essential to the Group's eperations. The recent COVID-19
‘pardieTnic hers ¥ed 10 a highet leve; of unceriamty ard the impact this
will have on the Group's operations is very difficult to predict.

Businass cycle

The company's products are primarily used in jndusty. Industry is
affected by the general economic situation and invesiment levels,
which in um may be affected by a number of factors beyond the

The Group’s sales are to professional firms. It 1s of the utmostimpar-
tance for HMS to be able to offer attractive and competitive products
in oraer 1o maintain ts market position. s therefore essential thag
HMS is able fo deveisp and market new products that are both
accepied by the market and fulfill customer requirements. HMS must
also have the capacily for improving its existing products. H major
changes should oceur in the purchasing patterns of the Group's
iargest customers, this would affect the company's profitability. How-
ever, because HMS has such a large number of customers, its
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dependence on any individual custamer is limited. Nevertheless, it
the Graup were te encounter difficulty in maintaining its relations
with one or more customers, this could negatively affact the compa-
ny's business, eamings and financial pasition.

Employees

The Group's future growth is parlly dependent on retaining key
employees. There are no guarantees that HMS can succeed in
refaining such individuals. The loss of one or more key employees
could have a nagative impact on the business. Thus far, HMS has
not had difficulty recruiting qualified employees, However, the
Group cannot guarantee that it will be able to recruit equally skilled
individuals in the future. Going forward, if HMS is less successiul in
recruiling and retaining highly gualified managers and other skilled
employees, itcould find it difficult to maintair and furtherdevelop the
business.,

Acquisitions
In the future, HMS could acquire, divest or discontinue cerfain oper-
ations and/ar companies. All such transactions are associated with
uncertainties and risks. A thorough vatuation is carriad out prior to a
transaction in order to reduce risks and avoid inaccurate price set-
ting for acquisitions. However, that is not always sufficient to ensure
success or minimize the assaciated risks,

Risk related lo new products

H HMS is unsuceessful in introducing new, innovative products orin
keeping up with technolagical developments, there could be a neg-
ative impact on the business and revenues. HMS is cenvinced that
much of ifs success stems from the Group's &bility to intraduce new,
innovative products anc further develep its existing products on a
continual basis. Thera could be a negative impact an the Group's
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associated risk of warranty ctaims and product liability. Therefore,
HMS typically designs its products according to detailed technica!l
specifications in order fo meet the requirements of industry. Even
though tha company tests its products thoroughly to ensure that they
meat the relevant specifications, the aclivities in this area could
nevertheless be associated with an increased risk of warranty
claims and product Fability. When HMS carries out detailed studies
on product safety, it relies on both internal and ext | J to

SEARERILOERING D

has endeavored to protectits brand by registering it in each country
where it currently has operations, or expects to soon become estab-
lished, HMS has also sought patent protecion where the company
cansiders it to be commercially justified. Nevertheless, there is no
guarantee that these measures are, or will be, sufficient to protect
the company's inlallectual properly rights. HMS cannot prevent its
competitors from using the HMS brand and logotype fo market their
own products in a way that infringes or in any other way poses a

ensure that its products cormespond to the agreed product specifi-
cations. Even though the Group considers that these measures are
sufficient in each individual case, it cannot guarantee that warranty
claims or product lizbility suits will not occur, despite its efforts to
prevent this from happening.

The purchasing and ordering of companents from subcontractors
also carries a risk that issues in the supplied components are only
discovered at a later stage of production or after the product has
been soid. In thase types of siluations, it can be difficult to pinpoint
where the problem occurred and obtaming compensation for lest
revenue and the costs associated with warranty ¢laims and product
liabiity suits from the supplier who was responsible for the problem
can also be difficult.

Even though HMS considers that it has adequate insurance
protection for product lability, it still cannot guarantee that the
insured ameunt wilt be sufficient to cover ciaims that could be
brought forth against the Group in the future. Product liability or
warranty claims can result in significant costs of litigation and dam-
ages. Claims suceessfully made on HMS that exceed the Group's
insurance cover, or claims that entail considerable negative public-
ity. could significantly impact the Group's earnings and financial
position.

Legal risks

revenues and market shares if its competitors are more st ful

Legislation and reg

inintroducing new orimpreved pracucts or services that customers
find attractive. If HMS doesn’t succeed in keeping up with produst
developrnent and technological developments, or fails 1o meet cus-
tomers requirements, it could have an impact on the Group's earn-
ings and financia! position.

Praduct safaty
When manutacturing and selling industrial products, there is an
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HMS and its markets are, to a certaln extent, affected by legislation
and other directives that reguiate the business, Changes in legisla-
tion, or pofitical 15, can thus neg: ly affect HMS's ability
to run or develop its husiness.

inteflectual property righls
HMSE's intellectual property rights are essential to its business. HMS
has registered patents and drands in a number of countries, HMS

threat to the company'sinte!lectual property rights. If the intelleciual
property righis cannot be proteciad, regardiess of the reason, the
Group's business could be affected in a negative way,

Disputes

The company is not currently involved in any disputes. However,
although no potential future disputes have been identified, the
Group coutd nevertheless still become involved in disputes that
could have a negative impact on its earnings and financial positicn.

Financlal risks

Tha Group's internationat operations entail a number of financial
risks, which are dealt with in accordance with policies that have
been established by the Board. The overal objective is for the Group
io be able to provide financing to its companies and manage is
financial risks so that there is minimal effect an the Group's earn-
ings. The Group is mainly exposed te liquidity, currency, interest rate
and credit risks. For further information, ses Note 3.

Currenzy exposure
Assats and liabilities in foreign currencies are revalued at each clos-
ing. Hedging contracts are alse revelued af each batance sheet date
and there is also an effect when they are settled. The revaluation of
balance sheet items associated with operations and the result from
settiement of any hedging contracts are reported in eithar Other
operating income or Qther operating expensas. Any value change
pertaining 1o hedging of net investments is reported in other com-
prehensive income. Changes in the value of other balance sheet
itemns i foreign currency, such as cash and cash equivaients, are
reported in netfinancial items. Operating income and expenses are
alsc affectad by changes in exchange rates. Thess changes have a
direct impact on income and expense items,

The currency compositien of operating incoma is appreximately

SEARTH
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B0% in EUR, 23% in USD, 8% in JPY and 8% in other currsn-
cies. The currency compaosition of cast of goeds sold is approxi-
mately 58% in EUR, 25% in USD, 0% in JPY and 16% in other
currencies. The currency cemposition of aperating expenses is
approximately 46% in EUR, 12% in USD, 3% in JPY and 37% in
other currencies.

The Group's policy is to minimize currency exposure by entering
into forward exchange agreements.

FUTURE QUTLOOK

The Group's iong-term growth is supported by a continued inflow of
Design Wins, a wider praduct offering. particularly for the Gateway
products and Remote Management, further strengthened by prod-
uct offerings from Ewon and Intesis, supplementary technology

platforms from |xxat and improved focus with axp:
of HMS's sales channels, in accordance with the astablished strat-
egy-

The giobal economic situation is assessed as unaven with a
careful, positive undertone. Iis effects on the market for HMS's
product offering and the currency impact is difficult to asses, but
HMS's lang-term goals femain unchanged: Long-term growth aver-
aging 20% per year and an operating margin that exceads 20%.

HMS stoch

HMS Networks AB (publ} is listed on the NASDAG OMX Stockholm
Mid Cap list. in the Information Technalogy sector. On average,
41,061 (38,038) shares were iraded each day. The shares’ vol-
ume-weighted average price in 2019 was SEK 150,89 (139.91). The
tatal number of shares was af the time of completion of this annual
report 46,818,868, of which 154,916 are held in treasury. Alishares
have the same voting rights.

PARENT COMPANY

informatton about the business

The Parent Company's activities focus on Group-wide administra-
tion and financing. Apart from the CEQ, the Parent Company has
noemployees.

Proposed distribution of profit in the Farent Company
The fallowing profits are at the disposal of the AGM:

Profit brought forward and other nan-restricted

reserves 97,347
Profit for the year 180,794
SEKt 278,138

The Board of Directors proposes the
following appropriation of profits:

Distributing dividends to sharaholders of SEK

1.90/share* 88662
Carried forward 189,476
SEKt 278,138

* The dividend is calculated on the totat number of outstanding
shares as of 2020-03-19.

Htis the Board's opinion that the proposed dividend would notinhibit
the company, or any other company belonging to Group. from meet-
ing its obligations ever the short or long term, nor would it prevent
the Group from being able to make necessary investmants. The
proposed gividend s thus justifiable, having considered what is
stated in Chapter 17, Chapier 3, sections 2-3 of the Swedish Com-
panies Act (prudence rula).
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SEK t Note 219 2013 SEK t Nete 2019 2018
Netsales 5 4,518,708 1,365,804 Frofit for the year 204 857 171,238
Cost of gocds and services sold -580,925 -531,807

Other comprehensive income:
GROSS PROFIT 927,783 833,997 ltems that can later be reclassified

to profit and loss
Selling expenses -348,714 -310.427 Cash flow hedges 35682 =208
Adminisirative expenses 123,767 -111 487 Hedging of nel investments 2073 10,424
Research and development expenses -189,666 -162,233 Exchange differences arising from translation
Restructuring costs 210 =22,000 - of foreign operations 15,243 47,728
Other operating income 210,86 19,7684 6,352 Inceme tax atiributable to the items above 17 -323 2,275
Other operaling expenses 2.10.6 20,505 4,852 Qther comprehensive income for the year, after tax 18,428 39,31
CPERATING PROFIT 7.8.9.10. M 243124 251,351 Total comprehensive income for the year 221,388 210,608
Fi '}

fnancialincome 2 ™ st Total comprehensive income for the year attributable 1o,
Financial expenses 13 -15,110 -19,587
P HMS Network AB's shareholders 222,689 210,808

Total i from fi ial i -15,009 =19,536

Non-controliing interests -1,303 -

Total 221,388 210,609
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 228,11% 231.815
Income tax 210,14 -23,158 -60,577
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 204,957 171,228

Profit attnbutatle to:

HMS Network AB's shareholders 206,260 171238
Non-controling interests -1,303 -
Tatal 204,957 171,238
Earnings per share, basic, SEK 15 4,43 3.88
Earmnings per share, dituted, SEK 15 4.40 3.65
Average number of shares, basic, 000s 15 46,598 45540
Average number of shares, diluted, 000s 135 46,844 46,859
Paid dividends per share, SEK 16 1.80 1.50
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Consaolidated halance sheet

SEK t Note  2019-12-31  201M8-12-31
ASSETS

Non-current aasats

Intangible assets 18

Capitalized development work 123821 100,080
Goocdwill 875,848 840,855
Customer ralations and technology platforms 85479 53.891
Brands 100,706 100,524
Total Intangible assels 1,165,854 1,095,330
Property, piant and equipment

Buildings and land 19,20 5,023 3.500
Plant and machinery 19,20 17,423 35141
Equipment, insiallations and facilibes 19, 20 22,343 12,913
Construction-in-progress 19,20 19 228
Rights-of-use asssts 21 111,430 -
Total property, plant and equipment 156,418 51,782
Financial assets

Deferred tax asset 17 3,675 3,638
Other long-term recenvables. 9,333 7,423
Total financial assets 13,008 11,064
Total non-current agsets 1,335,280 1,158,173
Current assets 23

inventores 24 158,799 157 465
Accounts receivable - trade 25 142,854 160,574
Current tax assets 26,871 2,499
Denvative instruments 26 4,042 2,357
Cther recewables 20,867 21,562
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 27 17,605 16,223
Cash and cash equivalents 28 51,241 58,951
Total current assats 422,279 418,631
TOTAL ASSETS 1,757,559 1,576,804

SEK t Note 20191231 2018-12-31
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equily

Share capital 29 1170 1170
Other comtributed capital 24 218,318 218,318
Reserves 09,748 83.319
Retainad earnings mneluding profit for the yaar 679,204 554,089
Equity attnbutable to HMS Networks AB's 998,480 856.907
shareholders

Non-controlling interests 14923 -
Total aquity 1,010,383 856,907
Non-current liabllities 23

Norn-current interest-hearng habiities leg 338,399 377,587
Non-current lease iabilities al 82,047 -
Deferred tax hability 17 78,553 76.278
Total non-current liabilities 497,999 453 875
Current liakilities 23

Current interest-beanng liabihies 30 1,185 23.829
Current lease liabilibes 21 30521 -
Accounts payable - trade 75,803 104,610
Current tax liability 9,986 14,235
Cerwvative instruments 28 1212 3.108
Other habilities 33,893 32,974
Accrued expenses and deferred income AN 85,468 85712
Other provisions 32 11,029 1.554
Total current liabikities 249177 266,023
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,757,559 1,576,804
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Consalidated cash flow statement

SEK t Note 2019 2018
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before 1ax 228,415 231,815
Adjustment for items not included in cash flow:
Depreciation/arnortization 80,444 50672
Share Savings Plan 9 2,774 5,449
Unrealized exchange differences 3,890 10,553
Other provisions 8,200 -2,705
Impairment of inventories 1,611 13,449
Gain on settlement of contingent consideration™” 210 18,721 -
Qther non-cash items on the income statement 6,818 1,750
Income tax paid 58,414 78,783
Cash flow from cperating activities
before changes In working capital 253,617 232,200
Change in working capitat
Change in inventones 572 -42 B43
Change in accounts receivables - trade 27,842 -10414
Change in other current recevables 6,334 12.062
Change in accounts payable - trade -37 558 1,700
Change in gther current liabilites -7.108 3.444
Cash flow from operating activities 253,801 192,749

* Pariaina to Beck |PC (mbH, 868 also Note § and Nota 33

Closing

balance 2M8

New sccounting
stanga

Closing
balance 2073

8ank lans 35,38 -37.302 26823 324,039
Leases - -20.438 - 142,006 112,588
Additonal consideration 41,102 -21,188 -9.480 10,434
Defined benefit pension plan 2458 2855 §,a1
Total 379,086 -87.528 19,898 142.006 453,183
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SEK ¢ Note 2018 2018
Investing activities

Investments in intangible assets 18 -41,608 -16,523
Investments in PPE 19 24710 -13,434
Investments in subsidianes 33 -24,355 -25,609
Change in nan-current financial assets -1,878 -6,164
Sale of property, plant and equipment 9% -
Cash flow from investing activities 22,453 61,730
Financing activities

Borrowings 107,716 102,254
Loan amortization ~166,080 -158,416
Lease payments 21 «20,438 -4
Repurchase of own shares - -42,223
Dwvidends pad to the Parent Company's sharehalders 18 -83,909 69,894
Change in other current nterest-bearing habiltes ~1,305 1,953
Cash flow from financing activities -173,016 -166,330
CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -11,888 -35,311
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 28 58,851 90,982
Exchange rate differences in cash and cash equivalents 3,959 3,280
Cash and cash equivalents at year-end 28 51,287 58,951
Interest paid and received

Interest paid -T.590 -5,817
Interest received 1™ 52
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THE GROUP

Consolidated statement of changes in eguity

Retained Relained
earnings oarnings
Other including Other including
Share contribut- peaifit fr Totaf Share contribut- Pt afit far Non-controlling
Note capital ed capital Reserves the year equity capital edcapital Reserves the year interasts

Cpening balance on Opening balance

1 January 2018 as per on 1January 2019 as

the adapted balance per adopted balance

sheet 1,170 218,318 43,948 457,859 721,295 sheet 1,170 218,318 83,319 554,099
Profit fof the year - - - 171,238 171,228 Profit for the vear - - - 206.260
Other comprehensive Other comprehensive

fncome: income:

Cash flow hedges - - 208 - -208 Cash flow hedges - - 3,582 -
Hedging of Hedging of

retinvesiment % - - -10.424 - 0424 netinvesiment iz} - - -2,073 -
Exchange rate Exchange rate

differences - - 47,726 - AT 728 differences - - 15.243 -
Incorne tax attributable Income tax attributable

to components of cther to components of other

comprehensive incorme 14 - - 2275 - 2,275 comprehensive Ncorme 14 - - -323 -
Tota) comprehensive - - 38,371 171,238 0,600 Total comprahensive - - 15,428 2085 260
income income

Transactions with Transactions with

shareholders in their shareholders in their

capacity as owner; capacily as owner:

Costs for Costs for

share-related share-related

remuneration - - - 5,449 5,449 remuneration - - - 2774
Repurchase of own Hotdings without a

shares - - - 10,553 -10,553 controlling influence

that have ansen

Cividend (SEK 1.50 upon acquisition of

per share) 16 _ _ n 60,894  -69.804 subsidiaries . _ _ _
- Dividend (SEK 1.80
Total transactions with
sharehordors. reported per share) 18 - - - 83909 83,909 - 83,909
directly in equity - - - -74.998  -T4,098 Total transactions with
hareholders, reported
Closing balance as of st | Oers, T
31 December 2018 1170 218318 83319 554099 eseegy  OIreENYIn equity : - - A s 13,226 57,009
Closing balance as of
1 December 2019 1170 218,318 99,743 679,224 B5B.480 11,923 1,010,383
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1HE FAREN | COMPANY

Parent company’s income statement

SEK t Note 2019 2018
Net sales 5 16,224 17,314
GROSS PROFIT 16,224 17,314
Administrative expenses 8,8, 10, 1 -16,224 -17,314
OPERATING PROFIT 0 0
Profit from participation in subsidiaries 34 179,123 164 679
Interesl income and similar tems 4,806 563
Interest expenses and similar items =2,551 -B32
Total income from financial items 181,378 164,410
PROFIT AFTER FINANCIAL ITEMS 181,378 164,410
Tax on profit for the year 14 -588 -593
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 180,701 163,517
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Parent company’s balance sheet

SEK 1 Nete  2018-12-31  2018-12-31
ASSETS

Non-current assets

Financial assets

Participatins in Group companies 35.36 337,324 337,324
Total financial azsets 337,324 337,324
Total nen-current assels 37,324 337,324
Current assets

Current receivables

Recenables from Group companies 95,794 64.415
Cumrent tax asset 97 263
Other receivables 83 x|
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 27 67 168
Total current racaivables 96,041 64,909
Cash and bank balances 828 1,307
Total current assets 96,567 66,216
TOTAL ASSETS 433,891 403,541

THE PARENT COMPANY
SEK1 Note 20181231 2018-12-31
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Restricted equity
Share capital 29 1,170 1,170
Stalutary reserve 19,446 19,446
Total restricted equity 20816 20,616
Non-restricted equity a7
Retaned earnings. 202 -80,244
Share premium reserve 97,549 97.549
Profit for the year 180,791 163,817
Total non-restricied equity 278,138 184,122
Total equity 298,754 201,736
Current liabilities
Accounts payable - trade 5 256
Liabilities to Group companies 128,069 185,780
Other liabiities 1,063 1,723
Accrued expenses and deferred \ncome 31 5,040 4,044
Total current liabilities 135,137 201,303
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 433,881 403,541
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Parent company’s cash flow statement

SEK t Note 2019 2018
Opuerating activities

Profit after financial items 181,378 164,410
Adjustmenis for items that do not affect cash flaw:

Share Savings Flan 134 199
Income tax paid -422 563
Cash flow from operating activities

hefore change in working capitai 181,091 163,945
Change in working capital

Change in other current recevables a2 -184
Change in accounts payable - trade -191 -891
Change in other current liabilities 1,236 1,561
Cash flow from operating activities 182,217 164,421
Investing activities

Cash flow from investing activities - -
Financing activities

Repurchase of own shares - -42,223
Divdend paid -83,809 -69,8%4
Change in interest-beanng items. internal -99,090 -51,286
Cash flow from financing activities -182,998 -163,413
CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -781 1,008
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,307 299
{Lash and cash equivalents at year-end 526 1,307
Interest paid and received

Interest paid 4 -6
Interest received 1,388 563
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Parent company’'s statement of
changes in equity

Opening balance on 1

Restricted equity

Share
capttal

Staiulory
reserve

Naote

Non-restricted equity

Retained
earnings

Pront
for the
year

Share
premium
reserve

COMTEMNTS

January 2018 1170 19,446 0 97,549 3 18188
Transfer of profit (loss)

from 2017 - - a - -3 -
Repurchase of own

shares. - - -10.553 - - -10,583
Costs for share-based

remuneration - - 196 - - 199
Dividend {3EK 1.50

per share) 16 - - -59,894 - - 89,804
Prafit for the year - - - - 163,817 183817
Closing balance

as of 31 December 2018 1,170 19,446 -80,244 97,549 163,617 MM, TH

Opening balance on 1

Restricted equity

Share
capital

Statutory
reserve

Nen-restricted equity

Retained
earnings

Prott
for the
year

Share
premium
reserve

January 2019 1,170 19,446 -80,244 97,548 163,817 201,738
Transfer of profit (loss)

from 2018 - - 163,817 - -163.817 -
Costs for share-based

remuneration - - 134 - - 134
Dividend (SEK 1.80

per share) 16 - - -83,909 - - 83,908
Prafit for the year - - - 180,791 180,791
Closing balance

as of 31 December 2019 1,170 19,446 -201 97,549 180,791 208,754
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Note 1General infermation

The HMS Group is a market-leading suppiier of solutions for indus-
trial communication and Industria) internet of Things, lloT. HMS
develops and manufactures products sold under the Anybus®,
Ixxat®, Ewon@ach intesis™ brands. Product development and man-
ufacturing take place at the head office in Halmstad (Sweden), in
Ravensburg, Wetzlar and Buchen (Germany), Nivelles (Belgium)
and Igualada (Spain). Local sales and support are managed by our
sales offices in Germany, LISA, Japan, China, Singapare, italy,
France, Spain, Netherlands, India, UK, . South Korea and
United Arab Emirates (LIAE), as well as via a wide network of distrib-
utors and partners across the globe.

The Parent Campany, HMS Networks AB (pubt), is a listed Swed-
ish limited liabitity company based in Halmstad, Sweden. The head
office is Stati 3t d . The com-
pany is listed on the NASDAL OMX Nordic Exchange inthe Mid Cap,
Infermation Technalogy category.

This annwal report and the cansolidated financial statements
were approved for publication by the Board of Directors on 18 March
2020.

Note 2 Summary ofimportant

accounting policies

This rote contains a summary of the important accounting policies
applied inthe p afthese Gor fr i .
These policies have been consistently applied te all the years pre-
sented, unless otherwise stated. The consolidated financial state-
ments cover HMS ABand its idi

2.1 BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Tha i d ofthe HMS Graup have been
prepared in accordance with the Swedish Annuat Accounts Act and
RFR 1 Supplementary Accounting Rules for Groups and the Inter-
national Financial Reparting Standards {IFRS) and interpretations.
from the IFRS Interpretations Comemitiee (iFRS CC) that have been
adapted by the EU.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the cost
method, except for certain financial assets and liabilities measurad
at fair vatue in other comprehensive income.

The Parent Company applies the Swedish Financial Reporting
Boand's ion RFR 2, Ac: 1%or Lagal Entities. RFR

2 amounts to that parent companies, in groups that willingly have

using the so-called aiternative rule, accerding to RFR 2, I1AS 27 0.2,

chosen 10 apply IFRS/AS in their consoliated fi
shall, as the main rule, apply the IFRE/IAS that are applied in the
Group. Hence, the Parent Company applies the principles that are
applied in the lidated financial stah and which are pre-
senled in note 2 in the conschdated financial statement, with the
exceptions accounted for below. The principles have been consis-
tently applied for all presented years. unless otherwise stated.

The Parent Company recognizes revenue that consists of Group-
wide services that have been prowvided and invoiced costs.

Shares and participating interests in subsidiaries are accounted
for using the historical cost, after deduction of possible Imparments.
Received dividends are accounted for as financial income. Dividends
that exceed the subsidiary’s comprehensmve income for the period,
or implies that the book value of the holding's net value in the consal-
idated financial staterent falls short of the book vaiue of the shares,
indicate an impairment need. When there 1s indication that shares
and participating i in idiaries have d in valye,
a calculation of the recovery value is made. if this value is less than
the carrying amount an i t 15 made. Impait ts are pre-
sented in section Profil/loss fram shares in group and assocciated
companies,

Shareholder's contribution is recognized in the equity of the
receiver and as shares and participating interests ofthe sharehclider,
if impairments are not required. Group centributions are reported

Standard mendin,

The rule means that group contributions, both received
and paid, are recognized as appropriations in the income statement,

Preparing financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires
the use of perfain critical accounting estimalss. )t also requires the
management taam to make certain judgments in the precess of
applying the accounting policies. Note disclosures are pravided for
areas invoiving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, which is detailed in Note 4.

2.1.1 New stendards end amendments

a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The new and amended statements are presented on page 88, along
with interpretations that have heen published and that must be
applied by the Group for the first time for the financiat year that starts
on 1 January 2019.

b) New d and Interp!
adopted by the Group

A umber af new standards and interpretations enter into force far
the financial year starting after 1 January 2019, but which have not
been applied whan preparing these financ:al statements. Thesanew
standards and interpretations are not expected {o have a material
impact on the Group's financial statements in current or future pen-
ads, nor on future transactions. See the table, below.

that have not yet bean

to 1AS 1and IAS 8

aAS 1

Significant require- The IASE has made

of Fmnangial

andlA8 8 Pohties, Changes i Accounting

ments Eshmates and Emors whichuse a

immaterial information
In parucular, the amendments clanty

much of the financial information they need

definition of
cepiusl Framework lar Crrancra! Repormng. charfy when mformation 15 matcnal snd ncarporate same of the guidance ot fAS 1 about

Il Finangial Reparting Standards ang the Con-

i+ that the reference 1o obscuring information addresses situations in which 1he affgt s SIMAarto omithing or msslating thatinfermation 1t
also slates that an entily assesses matenality in the contéxt of the finaneial slalements as a whale,

« elanfies the meaning of 'primary users af general purpose hnanaial statements’ to whorm thase financial statemenls are directed. by
dafining them as 'existing and potantial Investors, lenders and other craditors” that must rely on general purpuse financial statements for

Effective as of 1 January 2020

Standard

Signdica require-
ments

To be considered a business, an acquisilion would have 1o include an inpul ang a substanive process that togather significantly contntiute

Lo the abikty 10 creata nutputs The delintion of the term ‘oulpuls’ 15 narrowed Ip fogus on gaads and sarvices srovided to cuslomers, gen-

erating mvestmant ncome and ather meame It exctudes réturns in the form of lower costs and other ecanomic benehts
The changes o the definiion of 3 busiNess will ikely result in mare acauisitions baing accounted for a5 asset acquisinans

Effective as of 1 January 2020
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CONT.NOTE 2 Accounting palicies

Standard IFRS 16 Lcasces

Sigmificant IFRS 16 will affect primanty the accounting by fessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on balance sheet. The standard removes the current distinclion betwsen operating and financing lsases and requires recogni-
rgquirements | yon of an asset (the nght to use the leased item) and a financial Bty to pay rentals for virtually 3l leass contracts An opbonal exemption exists far short-lerm and low-valug leasas.

The statement of profiLar loss will also be affected because the total expense s typically twgher n the earlier years of a lease and lower i [aler years. Additionally, operaling expanse will be replaced with interest and deprecaton, 5o
key metrics ke EBITDA will change.

Operaling cash flows will be higher as cash payments for the principal portion of the lease lability are classified within financing actiibies Cnly the part of the payments thal rellects interest can cantinue 10 be presenied as operating
cash llows

Effect The Group applies the standard ratroactively from 1 January 2018, but hes not reststed comparatives for the 2018 reporting petiod, as permited undar the specific transilion provisions in the standard The reclassifications and the adjust-
mants arising from the new laasing rules are rherefore recognisad in lhe opening balance sheet on 1 January 2018, The new accounting polices are described in Nole 2.7,
With the transion ta (FRS 16, the Group reports Its leasing habilities attribwable to lease agreements that had previqusly been ciassified as opaerating leasas in accordance with Ihe rulesin IAS 17 Leases. Thase liabiliies have been
measured at the present value of the remaining lease fees. For this calculation the lessee’s iIncremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019 was used. The lessee’s weighted average incremental borowing rale that was applied for these
leasing hiabilities
as of 1 January 2019 was 1.8%
Forlease agreements previcusly classified as finance Isasas, the company racegrises tha carrying amaunts of the lease assel and iease lrability immed|ately prior to the transllen as the carrylng amount of the right-of-use and the lease
Iizbility at the Lransillon date. The measurement principles of IFRS 16 are applied only after Ihat date Thisr j its tolalng SEK 256 thousand. The remeaswement of lesse Nabllity was recognised as an

i tothe altril right-of-use ir i afiler the transithon date.
Inappiying IFRS 16 for the first ume, (he group has used the following practical expedwnts permitted by tha standard:

= The same discount rate was used on laasad assels with similar characterishcs

» Operatinglaases wilh a remaining laase term of lass than 12 months as of 1 January 2019 were reparted as short-term leases.

= Laler assessments were used when assessing be duralion of a lease in inslances where therg is an oplion o extand or cancal the laase.

Measuremen| of lezse lizbilibes

Opersting & disch asof 31 D ber 2018 125,878
Diacounted using the isssee's incrementad berrowing rate et the ranaition date 3807
for e, af 31 2018 2234
(Less): short-term laases and iow-value leases that have not been reported as a abiity 4,705
(Laaa): adfisstments ralated to other ofoptions to extend ar -14,075
Luass liahility recognized as of 1 January 2059 123,837
OF which are;
Cument lease Hablites 20978
Non-current leasa Kabllies 83.558
123,587

Measurements of rights-of-use asssts
Rights-of-usa assets have baen measured at the value of the lease l|zbility, with an adjustment for any prepald or accrued leasing fees reported in the balance sheel as of 31 December 2018

Ad]usiments recognized in the balance sheet 1 January 2019

Progperty, plant and equipment decraene of SEK 19,448 thousand
Rights-of-ute asaats ncreana of SEK 121,036 thousand
Daferrad tax assals increase of SEK 112 ihousand
Interaut-basng liabities decreass of SEK 22,344 thousand
Lasss lisbilties increase of SEK 123,537 housand

Effactive as of [ 1 January 2019
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2.2 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all companies that are controlled by the Group. The
Group has a controlling interest over a company when it is exposed
1o or entitied o a variable retyrn from its holding in the company and
itis abde to affect the return wia its controlling interest over the com-
pany. Si are fully con as of the date when the
Group obtains a controliing influence. They are Ho tenger consol-
dated as of the date when the Group no fonger has a comrolling
influerce.

The acquisition method is used for reporting the Group's busi-
ness combinations (see Note 2.8}.

Intra-Group transacticns, batance sheat items and unrealized
gains and losses on fransactions between Group companies are
efiminated. Intra-Groug losses coild be an indication of impairment
that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements.
The accounting policies of ies have been where

y, fo ensure with the palicies applied by the

Group.
Nan lling interest in idiaries’ and equity are
p ted sep Jy in the lidated income stat 1, stare-
mentof comp: ive of chy in equity and

the balance sheet.

h) Divestment of a subsidlary

When the Group noionger has a controliing interest, each remaining
holding is measyred at fair valye as of the paint in time when the |gss
of control occurred. The change in carrying amount s reported in the
income statement. Fair value is used as the first reported value and
provides the basis far fultire repaorting of the remaining halding as an
associated company, joint venture or financial asset. All amounts
congeming the divested unit that were previously reporied in ather
comprehengiva income are raported as if the Group had directly
divested the atiributable assets or liabifities. This could mean that
amounts previousty recognized in other compreheneive income are
reclassified and recognized in profit or loss instead.

2.3 REPORTING OF SEGMENTS

Segment discl es must be p: ted from the Il s
perspective, i.e. in the same way that they are presented for intemal
reporting purposes. The point of departure for identifying reportable
segments s the intemal reperting used by the highesat-ranking exec-
utive decision-maker. Management has analyzed the intemal report-

PMANCE  GLOSSARY  FINANCIAL INFG
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ing and concluded that the Group's highest-ranking executive deci-
sion-maker, the Group management team, regularly analyses the
sales reports, quality reports, cor income and
cash flow staternent. This reporting is based an the fact that the
cornmon technology platform, development process, manufackuring
process, markst strategy and sales resources do not motivate fur-
ther segmentation of the business. Therefore, there is no follow-up
on the profit of any particilar segment of the business,

2.4 TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCY

a) Functional currency and reporting currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary ecenomic
environment in which the entity operates {i.e, the functional cur-
rency). The consclidated financial statements are presented in
Swedish kronor (SEK), which is the Parent Company’s functional
currency and the Group's reporting currency.

b} Tranaactions and balance sheet itama

Forelgn cumrency tions are into the fu
currency using the exchange rates prevaliing on the transaction
dates or the date when iterns were remeasured. Foreign exchange
gains or (osses resulting from the settiement of such transactions
and from the translation of tlosing day rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized m the
income statement. However, this does not apply 1o trangactions that
fulfilt the requirements for hedge accounting of cash flows or net
investments. Sych gains or loases are recognized in other compre-
hersive income.

Foreign exchange gains and {osses attributable to loans and
cash equivatents are reporied in the income statement 2s financial
revenue or financial expenses. Exchange profits and iosses alirib-
wtable o the purchasing of raw materials and products are reported
in the income stalement as cost of goods sold. Other fareign
exchange gains andlosses are reported in the income stalement as
‘Other gperating income’ and 'Other operating expenses’ respec-
fively.

<) Group companles

The profit or loss and financial position of all Group entites (rane of
which has the functionaf currency of a hyperinflatanary economy)
that have a different functional currency than their regorting cur-
rency, are franslated inte the Group's reporting currency as follows:

SHAREMOLOER INFO CONTENTS

4) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet are transiated at the
closing rate;

b} income and expenses for each income statement are translated
at the average exchange rate, and

¢) ali resulting exchange differences are recognized in other com-
prehensive income.

Recogmized in the ¢ ted financizl (in ather com-
prehensive income), are exchange rate differences attributable to
the translatian of a net investrment in a foreign operation, atong with
exchange rale differences alirfbulabie 1o oans or other financial
instruments designated as hedges for such investments. Accumu-
iated gains and losses in equity are recognized in profit orloss when
forgign operations are sold, either entirely orinpart.

Goodwill and fair value adjusirnents anising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
antity and translated at the closing rate.

2.5 REVENUE RECOGNITION
The specific accounting policies for the Group's revenue from con-
tracts with customers are explamed in Note 5.

Interestincome is recognized using the effective interest method.
When the value of a receivable becomes impaired, the carrying
amount is lowered to the recoverable amount. which is equal to the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effectiva inter-
estrate for the instrument. The discounting effect then continues to
ba dissolved as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan
receivables is recognized using the original effective interest rate.

2.6 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Tax expense for the period.s comprised of current tax calcuiated on
nettaxable income for the period using the current tax rates. Current
tax expense is then adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
tax liabilities altributable to temporary differences and unutiized
loss carryforwards.

Current tax expense (s calculated using the tax regulations that
have been decided crannounced at year-end in the countries where
tha Parent Company and its subsidiaries have operations and gen-
erate taxable income.

Deferred tax is reported in the consolidatad financiai statements.
an ali differences arising between the tax base and the carrying
ameunts of assets and liabilties (temporary differences). However,
a deferred tax liability i not reported f it arises in conjunckon with
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CONT.NOTE 2 Accounting policies

the initial recognition of goodwill. Furthermare, deferred tax is not

recognized if it arises from a transaction asscciated with the initiai
recognition of an asset or liabliity that is not abusiness combination
and which, at the time of the transaction, has no effect on either
reported profil or taxable profit.

Deferred income tax is deterrined using tax sates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax
asset is realized or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized 1o the extent that it is proba-
ble that future taxable profit wilt be available aganst which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred taxes aftributable to temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries ara recognized only o the extent
that the Parent Company is able 1o contrel the reversal of the tem-
porary differences and it is probable that the difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Ceferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when
there is a legal right to settle the current Lax assets and tax liabilities
on a netbasis and the tax liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and relate to either the same taxabie entty or
different taxable entities that intend fo realize the asset and settle
the liability attha same time.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in the income statement,
excepl when the tax relates to items reported in other comprehen-
sive income or directly in equity. in such cases the tax is also recog-
nized in other comprehensive income and equity respectively,

27 LEASING
As mentioned in Note 2.1.1 a) above, the Group has changed its
accounting policies for leasing. The new policy is described below
{Note 2.7.1} and the effect of the transition in Nete 2.1.1 a).
Through 31 December 2018, leasing of items of property, plant
and equipment in which the Group as lessee essentially holds the
financial risks and rewerds associated with ownership, were classi-
fied as finance leases {Note 20). At the start of the lease term,
finance leases were capitalized at the lower of the leased asset’s
fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments,
Corresponding payment obligations (after deductions for financial
expenses) were included in the balance sheet items: long-term
borrowings and short-term borrowings. Each lease payment was
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allocated between interest and reduction of the principal. interast
was recognized in the income statement over the leasing period $0
that the amount of the expense in each reporting period corre~
sponded to a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
kalance of the liability, items of praperty, plant and equipment that
were obtained through afinance iease agresment wera depreciated
over the assat's useful life or the terrn of the lease {whichever is
shorter), provided that it could not, with reasonable certainty be
eslabiished that there was a transfer of ownership to the lessee at
the end of the lease peried.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
associated with ownership were retained by the lessor were classi-
fied as operating leases (Note 20). Payments made during the
leasing period were expensed inthe income statement linearly over
the leasing pericd.

2.7.1IFRS 16 Lsases
a) The Group's leasing actlvities and reporting of loasas

The Group leases buildings, faciliies, machinery and automo-
biles (see Note 21). Depreciation of leased assetsis typically over a
fixed period, but there may be an option te extend the agreement.
The terms are negotiated separately for each agreement and many
terms and conditions exist. Lease agreements do not contain any
special terms cr restrictions that would result in the agreementbeing
canceled if the terms are not met. However, leased assets may not
be used as collateral for loans.

Lease agreements are recognized as righi-of-use assetswith a
corresponding lfability as of date when the laased asset is available
for use by the Group. Each lease payment is divided into amortiza-
tion of the debt and financial expense. Interest is recagnized in the
income statement over the leasing period so that the amount of the
expense in each reporting perind corresponds to aconstant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. The righi-of-
use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life
of the asset or the length of the lease, whichever is shorter. If the
Group is reasenably certain of exercising a cafl option, the right-of-
use iasset s depreciated over the useful life of the undeslying asset.

Assets and liabilities that arise from the lease agreement are
initially reported at present value. The lease labilities include the
present vatue of the following fease payments:

+ fixed fees (including fees that are inherently fixed), less incentive
claims
+ variable lease fees that are based on an index or a price

St s Gl s e e
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+ the guaranteed residual value that the lessee axpects o pay to the
lessor

+ tha exercise prica for a call option, if it is reasonably certain that
the lessee will exercise tha eption, and

+ penafty for terminating the lease, if duration of the lease reflects
the assumption that the lessee will utilize that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the implicitinterest rate if
such can be estebiished, Otherwisa, the incremental borrowing rate
iz used,

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or interest rate, which are not
included in the isase liability until they ake effect. When adjust-
ments o lease payments based on an index or interest rate cccur,
the lease liabiliy is revalued and adjusted to the right-of-use asset.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, which inciudes the
following:

« the amount that the lease ability was originally valued at

» fease fees paid at or before the inception of the lease, less a
deduction for any banefits raceived in conjunction with signing the
lease

+ initial direct expenditura, and

» expenditure associated with returning the asset to the condition
specilled in the lease agreement.

Payments for short-term agreements and lease agreements with
insignificant velue are expensed on a straight-line basis in the
income statement. Short-term agreements are those with a lease
termof 12 months or less. Agreements of insignificant value consist
of iT equipment and varicus office equipment.

b} Optlons to extend or cancel agreements

{Options 1o axtend or cancel agreaments exist in several of the
Group's lease agreements, primarity those for buildings. The options.
are used to obtain maximum flexibility in managing agreements.
Most of the options to extend ar cancel an agreemsnt may only be
utilized by the Group and not the lessor.

When the length of a iease agreemeont is established, manage-
ment takes into consideration all availabie information that provides.
an economic incentive to utilize an extension option or not utifize an
option o cancel an agreement. Oppertunities to extend an agree-
ment anly add to the duration of an agreement if it is reasonable to
assume that the agreement will be extended {or not canceled). The
assessment is ra-evaluated if significant events arise, or a change
in circumstances, which impact the original assessment and also if
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the change is within the lessor's control.

2.8 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The acquisition method is used for reporting the Group's business

combinations, regardless of whether the acquisition consists of

2quity interests or other assets. The purchase price for the acquisi-

ion of a subsidiary is the fair value of

« the transferred assets

+ liabilities that the Group incurs to former owners

+ shares issued by the Group

« assets or liabiliies that resuft from an agreement on contin
consideratian

~ previousty held equity interest in the acquired company

d agsets, d lishfities and assumed con-

tingent i ed In combination are measurad,

with very few exceptiona, initiafly at fair value on the acquisition date.

For each acquisition, i.e. acquisition by acquisition, the Group deter-

mines whethier the non-centrolling interest in the acquired company

should be reported at fair value or at the holding's proportionate

share ot the carying amaunt of the acquived compaay's identifiable

net assets.

Thecosts

Goodwifl is the amount that the

- purchase surn,

+ ary non-controlling interest in the acquired company and

- the fair value as of the acquisition date of any previously held
equity interest in the acquired {ifthe b i
tion was done in siages)

with ar as

exceeds the fgir value of the identifiable nel assels that were
acquired. if the amount is lower than the fair value of the acquired
net assets, e.g, acquisition at & low price, the difference is reported
directly to profit or loss.

In cases where all or part of the purchase sum is defesred, fulure
payments are discounted to their present value at the acquisition
date whi the di ing effect is si The discount
rate is the company’s marginat lending rate, which is the interest rate
the entity would have paid for financing through foans during the
same period and with simiiar terms and conditions.

Cont i haon is classified either as equity or financiai
fiability, Amounts classified as fi ial fiabilities are d each
periad at fair value. Any gains and fosses from revaiuation are rec-
ognized in eamings.

[ FINANCIAL INFG
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Ifa business combination is carried aut in several steps, the prior
equity i inthe i paly are ed at the (ai
vafue at the time of the acquisition, Any profil or l0ss that afises from
revaluation is reported in the income statement.

2.9 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Goodwill and iMangibie assets with an indefinite usetul iite or intan-
gible assets not ready for use, are not amartized. They are however,
tested annually fer impairment, or more often whenever there is an
ndication of impairment. Assets subject to amortization are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indi-
cate that the carrying amount may not be recaverable. An impair-
ment oss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
i the asset's farr value less selling expenses or its value-in-use,
whichever is higher.

For the purpose of assesaing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lewast levels for which there are essentizlly independent cash
fiows (cash generating units). At each reporting date, an assess-
meni is made regarding possible reversal of impairment loss on
assets (other than goodwill) that have previously become impaired.

Capitalized development work is tested annually forimpairment
before it is ready to be putinto use.

2.10 ITEMS AFFECTING COMFARABILITY

Items affecting comparability are reported separately in the income
slatement when doing so is necessary in order to explain the
Group's profit of loss. (tems affecting comparability are significant
ievenue and expensea items that are reported separately due to their
fature of the amounts.

In 2019, the Group reported restructuring costs of SEK 22.0
million related to a cost reduction program that had been imple-
mented. The Group has also reparted non-1axable operating income
of SEK 19.7 millon associated with settlement of the contractual
confingent consideration for the Beck IPC acquisition. The revenye

is reported as other operating income in the income stats it
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and cash flow statement. They include cash in hand and deposits
held in bank accounts.

Utilized overdraft facility 6 recognized as borrawings in current
habilities.

2.12 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES - TRADE

Accounts receivable are amownis to be paid by customers for goods
of services provided by the company as part of its operating activi-
lies. Accounts receivahle primarily fatl due for payment within 30-60
days and all accounts recervable have thus been classiied as cur-
rent assets.

Accounts receivabie are initially reported at the transaction price.
However, accaunts receivable that have a significant financing
component are measured at fair value. The Group has accounts
receivable for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows and
it thus measures them at subsequent reporing dttasions at amor-
tized cast using the effective interest method.

See Note 3.1 d} for a description of the Group's impaimient pol-
icies.

213 INVENTORIES

Inventories are recognized at the lower of cost and net realizable
value, Costis determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) principte.
Raw materials are measured 3t cost. Finished goods are measured
at standard cost. The cost of finished goods and work-in-progress
consists of raw materials/components, directiabor, and other direct
and indirect directly atiributable manufacturing costs (based on
normal manufacturing ¢apacity). Borrowing costs are not mcluded.
The net realizabie value s the estimated selling price in the orciary
course of less app e sefing expenses.
Inter-company profit from sales between Group companies i elim-
inated.

2.14 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS

tion

There has baen a positive impact on tax expense for the year from
tax credits attributable to last year totaling SEK 15.6 million. Because
the revenue and expenses are significant and nonrecurring, they are
reported as iterns affecting comparability in the income statement.

211 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents are reported in both the balance sheet

2141 Ck; fit

The Group ciassiies its financial assets in the foilowing categories:

+ Financiai assefs measured atfair value through other comprehen-
SIVE INGOTNE

+ financial assets measured at fair vatue through prefit or loss, and

« financial assets measured at amortized cost.

jon of results from the

Thecl indebtinstry
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CONT.NOTE 2 Accounting policies

Group's business model for managing financiai assets and the con-
tractual terms for the assels’ cash flows.

Tha Group reclassifies debt instruments only when the Group's
business model for the instrument changes.

2.14.2 Recognition and derecognition in the balance sheet
Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade
ctate, which is the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are rernoved from the balance sheet
when the rights to receive cash flows from the instruments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has substantially
transferred all risks and rewards of ownership.

2.14.3 Valuation

Financial assets are initizlly measured at fair vaiue pius (provided
that the asset is not measured at fair value through profit o foss)
transaction casts that are directly attributabte to the purchase, Trans-
action costs far financial assets that are reported at fair value through
profit or oss are expensed in the income statement.

a) Investments in debt Instruments

The Group's investments in debt instruments that are reported

among assets in the balance sheet consist of other leng-term receiv-

ables, accounts receivable, other receivables and cash/cash equiv-
alents, all of which are classified in the categary: amortized cost.

Subsequent valuation of debt/nstruments is based on the Group's
business model for management of the asset, along with the type of
cash flow the asset generates. The Group classifies its investments
in debt instruments in three measurement categories:

» Amortized cost: Assets held for the purpose of eollecting contrac-
tual cash flows and where the cash flows only consist of principal
and interast, are reported at amortized cost. Interest income from
such financial assets is reported as financial income by applying
the effective interest methed. Gains and losses arising from
removatfrom the balance sheet are recognized in earnings. Impair-
ment losses are reported as a separate item in the income state-
ment.

+ Fair valus through othar comprehensive incoma: Financial assets
that are heid for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows
and for sale of the assets, where the assels’ cash flows only consist
of capital amount and interest, and not an identified asset mea-
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sured at fair valus, are measured &t fair value threugh ather com-

prehensive income. Changes in the carrying amount are reported

in other comprehensive income except for impairment losses,

interest income and exchange rate differences, which are reported

in the income statement, When the financial asset is removed frem

the balance sheet, the accumulated gains or lossas, which were

previously reported in other compr income, are reclassi-
fied from equity to the income statement. Interest income fram
these financial assets is reperted at financial inceme by applying
the effective interest method. Impairment losses are reperied as a
separate item in the income statement.

+ Fair value through profit or Joss: Assets that do not meet the
requirements for being reported at amortized cost or fair value via
ather comprehensive income are measured at fair value through
profit or foss. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is measured
atfair value through profit or loss and which is not part of a hedging
arrangementis reported at the netamountin theincome statement
in the pericd that the gain or loss arises.

b) In ts In equity |

The Group measures all of its equily instruments at fair value. In
cases where Group management has alected 1o report fair value
changes in equity instruments via other comprehensive income,
there will not be any subsequent reclassification of fair value changes
to the income statement when the instrument is removed from the
balance sheet. Dividends from such investments are reported in the
income statament as other income whan the Group'’s right to obtam
payment has been ished.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets that are reported at
fawr value through profit or loss are included in “"other gainsfiosses”in
the income statement. impairment losses (and reversal of impair-
ment lossas) on equity instruments reported at fair value via other
comprehensive income are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

¢} Impatrment

The Group measures its future expected credit losses related to
investments in debt instruments at amertized cost or fair value with
changes in other comprehensive income, based on whether or not
there has been a significant increase in credit risk. The Group reports
a provisian for such expecied credit losses at each reporting date.
See Note 3.1 d) for a description of the Group's impairment policies.
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2.15 DERIVATIVES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

Derivatives are reported in the balance sheet on the contract date.
They afe reasured at fair value both at the first reporting date and
upon subsequent revatuation at the end of each reporting peried.

When determining the fair value of a hedging instrument, the
quoted rate of the currency on the closing date is used.

The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss arising o
revaluation depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

The Group identifies derivatives as;

+ hedgirg of a specific risk linked to the cash flows from a recognized
assetorliability or a highly probable forecast transaction (cash flow
hedge), or

» hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation {net investment
hedges).

When the transacticn is entered into, the Group documents the rela-
tionship between tha hedging instrument and the hedged #em, as
well as the Group's objectives for risk management and its risk strat-
egy for the hedge. The Group alse documents its assessment, both
at the start of the hedging period and on an ongoing basis, ofhow the
derivative instruments used in the hedging transaction have been
and will continue to be effactiva in terms of counterbalancing changes
in fair value or cash flows aftributable o the hedged items.

Information about the fair value of various derivative financizs
instruments used for hedging is provided in Note 26. Ali derivative
instruments are classified as either cumrent assets or current liabifi-
ties.

2.15.1 Cash flow hedging

The Group uses currency fulures contracts to manage the risks of
changes in exchange rates for very probable forecast transactions,
both externaliy and internally, in foreign gurrency. The holdings of
derivative financial instruments consist of currency fulures.

Hedges are designed with the expectation that they will be effec-
tiva. The effective partion of the fair value change in a derivative
instrurment, which is identified as a cash flow hedge and qualifies for
hedge accounting is recognized in ofher comprehensive income in
the hedging resarve in equity. The inaffective portion of the vaiue
change is immediately recognized as cther income or other expenses
in the income statement.

The Group typically only identifies the change in fair value of the
futures contract’s spot price as a hedging instrument. Gains and
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lossas atiributable to the effective portion of the change in the spot
price are reported in other comprehensive income in the hedging
ragarve, which is a component of equity. The change in the forward
points aktributable to the hedged item is reported in cther comnpre-
hensive income.

Amounts accumutated in equity are reclassified to the income
statement in the periods when the hedged item affects earnings.
They are reported in operating profit or loss where the income or
expenses arising from the agsociated hedged itemn are recogrized.

‘When a hedging instrument expires or is sold orwhen the hedge
na longer fulfills the criteria for hedge accounting and accumnulated
gains or losses for the hedged Hem exist in equity, these gains/
losses remain in equily and are taken up as incomesexpense when
the forecast trangactions are uitimately recognized in the incame
statement, When a forecast tion is no fanger expacted to
oceur, the accumulated gains or losses that have been retained in
equity must be immediately recognized in the income statemant.

2.1£.2 Hadging of et investments

Tha Group hedges net investments in EUR. Hodging of net invest-
ments in foreign operations are reported in a similar way as cash
fiow hedges.

The portien of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating
ta the ff hedgeis gnized in other cormprehensive income
and accumulated in equity, The gain or losa relating to the ineffective
portion is recogaized immediately in the income Statement as other
income or ather expensas.

Accumulated gains and losses in equity are reclassified to the
ingome statement when foreign operations are sold, either entirely
orinpart,

2.16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are reporied at cost less accumu-
lated depreciation. Cost i diture that is directly attrit-
utable to the acquisition of the asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognized as a separale asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future ic benefits i with the asset will
flow o the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured refiably.
Tha carrying antount of a replaced part is derecognized. All ather
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the same penad that they
incurred.

Pepreciation is based on original cost and the estimated useful
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Iife of the asset as foliows:

Bu:dings 10-50 years
Machinery and equipment 3-Syears
Equipment, installations and tacilities. 3-Syears

The residual value and useful life of assets are tested at the end of
every reporting period and adjusted if necessary. In cases where
the carrying amount exceeds the estimated recoverable amount,
the asset is immediately written down 10 its recoveratie amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are defermined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and they are reperted under
‘other operating income’ or ‘other operating expenses’.

217 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
a) Goodwill
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amortization and any impairment lesses.
Amortization is on a straight-line basis to sliocate the cost over
the estimated usetul Ife of 3-10 years.

d) Capltalized development work

HMS's technology is based on mternally developed selutions
(including but not iimited 1o) for connecting industrial equipment to
various networks, di sting information b ions and
IT enviconment and to provide smart industrial data and information
solutions. MMS has made several acquisitions over the last few
years, which have given the company a more complete, yet alse
more complex offering. In order to gain economy of scale, cne part
of the product strategy is to develop and maintain different proguct
platforms to be able t¢ share a common framework across the dif-
ferent technological offerings.

Goodwiliis calculated in accordance with the pringip ined:n
Note 2.8. Goodwill resulting from business combinations s included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is nol amortized, but 1s tested for
impairrnent on an annual Hasis, or more often if events or changed
conditians indicate possible impairment. Goadwill is recognized at
cost less accumulated isnpairment losses. When a ynit is sold, the
carrying amournt of goodwil is included in the resulting gainfloss.

Forthe purpose ofimpairmentesting, gocdwill that was acquired
in a business combingtion is aliocated to cash-generating units or
groups of cash-generaling units that are expectad to benafit fromthe
synergies of the acguisition. Each unit or group cf units to which
goodwill has been allocated correspond 10 the lowest level in the
Group at which the goodwill is monitered as part of internal gover-
hance.

Impairment losses are immediately expensed and they are never
reversed.

b} Brands

Brands have been acquired via business combination and they are
measurad at fair value on the acquisition date. Brands with an indef-
inite useful life are tested each year for impairment. Brands with a
finite useful life are amortized aver the estmated useful kfe of 10
years.

G r and technology pi
Cuslomer relations and technology platforms have been acquired
via business combinatons and thay are recognized at far value on
the acquisition date. Customer relations and technology platforms
have a finite useful life and are recognized at cost less accumulated

The exp directly attri to focused ondevel-
oping new, unique platforms, products, suftware, technology or
patents, and that are also controlled by the Group, are recognized
as intangibie assets whan the following critena have been met:

+ the development project is related to a new product, a new product
generation or a technology platform package that is used as a
basic technology in several products,

= it13 technically possible to complete the above development proj-
ect so thal the development results can be used,

+ the company's intention 1§ 1o complete the development project
and to either use storseltit,

+ 1t is likely that the development results can be used or sold,

* it can be shown how the development results generate probable
future economic benefits,

+ there 15 access to adequale technical, financial and other
resources to complete development and to ether use or sell the
deveicpment results, and

~ the expenditure attributable to the project duning its development
can be estimated in a reliable way.

Customer-specific projects are capitalized when it has been deter-
mined as likely that the develop costs will be d by future
volume commiiments.,

Costs inclute the employes tosis for internalwork with develop-
ment, external expenses and a reascnable share of the indirect
costs.

intangibie assets resulting from development work are reported
at cost, In cases where the carrying amount exceeds the estimated
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CONT.NOTE 2 Accounting policies

recoverable amount, the asset is immediately written down to ils
racoverzble amount.

The development of new product platforms is capitalized during
the devalopment phase. Maintenance of scftware and expansions
of existing preducts and product lines are treated as adjustments of
the core product and are not capitalized. Projects in the develop-
ment phase are not capitalized.

Development costs that were previously expensed are not cap-
italizect as assets in later periods.

Advances attributable to external development are reported as
intangible assets pravided that the company has cantrol over the
asset.

Amaortization of capitalized development costs begins as spon
as the asset is ready for use. Amortization is cglculated on the artg-
inal cost andis based on the assessed useful life of the asset, which
is a maximum of 7 years.

218 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Accounts payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
acquired by suppliers as part of operating aciivities. Tre amounts
are not hedged and they are usually paid within 30 days.

Accounis payables and other liabilities are classified as current
fiabdlities if they fall due for payment within 1 year or saoner (or over
a normal business cycle if this is longer). Otherwise, they are
reporied as non-current liabilities.

The liabilities are initially measured at fair value and subse-
quently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

2.19 BORROWING AND BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing is initially reported at fair value net after tr loncosts.

SJETAIMABILI Y
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ognized in earnings.

Bark overdraft facility utilized are reperied as borrowings among
current liabilities in the balance sheet.
The company does nol have any major development projects that
would hec jon of b ing costs. All borrowings
costs ara thus expensed as incurred.

capil

2.20 PROVISIONS

Provisions for legal claims, guarantees and restoration measures
are recognized whenthe Group has a legal or informal obligation as
a result of pastevents, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required o settie the obligation and the amount has baen rediably
estimated. No provision is made for future operating losses.

Whien there are several similar obligations, an assessment is
made of the likelihcod that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligations. That assessment covers the entira group
of similar obligations. A provision is made for the entire group of
similar cbligations even if the likelinood of an outflow of resources
to settle a particular item in that group is low.

The refurns and warranty provision is based on a routine deve!+
aped specifically for the company.

2,21 REMUNERATION TO EMPLOYEES
Liabilities for wages and salaries, incli:ding non-monetary benefits
and compensated absences that are expected to be settled within
12 months afterthe fiscal year-end, are recognized as current liabil-
ities at the undiscounted amount that is expecied to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The expense is recognized at the rate that
emgloyees perform the services.

Liahlities for long-term paid absence are not expected to be
regulated in full within 12 months afterthe end of the reporting period
in which the employees perform the services that are eligible for

Afterwards, borrowing costs are reported at amortized costand any
difference between received amount (net after transaction costs)
and the repayment amount is reportedin profit or loss allocated over
the loan period, applying the effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obfi-
gaticns have been settied, canceled or in some other manner axtin-
guished. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability (or part of financial liability) that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including
transferred assets which ere not cash or liabilites assumed, is rec-
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1. They are reported as non-current liabilites.

a} Pension commitments

The Group companies have various plans for post-employment
benefits, defined benefit and defined contribution pensions. A
defined contribution ptan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions to a separate legal entity. A defined benefit
planis a pensicn plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typi-
cally, defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that
an employee will receive on setirement, usuaily dependent on ore
ar more factors such as age, years of service and salary.
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Some of the pension cbligations for saleried employees in Swe-
den are secured through insurance with Alecta and Skandia, which
are defined benedit plans covering a number of employers. For the
2019 financial year, the company has not had access to sufficient
information to enable it to report these plans as defined benefit
ptans. The pension commitments are thus reported as a defined
contribulion plans.

Otherwise, for foreign entities, pension obligations are classified
as defined contribution plans.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
privately administered pension insurance plans on 2 contractual
basis. The Group has no further payment obfigations once the con-
tributions have been paid. The contributions are recognized as
employee benefit expense when they fall due for payment.

1} Share-based remuneration

The Greup's incentive program aims to facilitzle recrutiment and
stimulate long-term commitment from employees regarding the
Group's profit and business development.

During 2019, al! permanent employees of the HMS Group were
offered the opportunity to participate in a Share Savings Plan, where
payment is made in shares and where the Group receives sefvices
from employees as consideration for the Group's own equity instru-
menis.

Fair valus for the services that entitle employess to allotment of
shares are expensed in the income statement as perscnnel costs,
with the carrespanding pesting 1o equity under retained earningsin
the balance sheet. The total ameunt to bs expensed is based on the
fair value of the allocated shares, which is established on the date
they are allocated. Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of shares expecied to vest. The tetal
expense is recognized over the vesting peried, which is the period
during wkich all the specified vesting condilions are to be fulfilled.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its esti-
mates of tha number of shares expected to vest based on the
non-market vesting conditions. Any deviation from the original
assessments that are disc d during the ent, are
recognized in the incems statement with a corresponding adjust-
ment to equity.

Social security contributions that arise from the alfocation of
shares are regarded as an integral pari of the allocation anc the cost
is treated as a cash-settfed share-based compensation, which
means that social security contributions are calculated based onthe
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{air value of the shares at each reporting date.

222 SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary shares are ciassified as equity.

Transaction costs directly atiribyiable 1o a new issue of shares
or options are recognized, net after tax, in equity as a deduction
from the emission proceeds.

When any of the Group ies P Parent G
shares (repurchase of own shares), the purchase sum that was
paid, including any directly attributable transaction costs (net after
tax), reduces equity uniil its shares are canceled or soid. If these
ordinary shares are iater sofd, the receivad amount (net after any
directly attributable Iransaction costs and tax effacts) is reported in
equity.

2.23PROVISIONS

TAINABRNATY  GUVERNANGE  GLOSSARY  FINANCIALINFO

Mg - Beand’s st fienetics and @

NOQTE 3 Financial risk managernent

314 FINANCIAL RISKFACTORS

The Group's ivities are d with 2 variety of
financial risks; marke! risk (including cumency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and financing/liquidity risk. The Group's overall nsk
management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial results.

Risk mahagement is carried out by a central finance department
according to policies approved by the Board of Directars. The head
of ihe Group's financial funckon igentifias, evaluates and hedges
financial risks in close cooperation with the Group's cperating units.
The Board of Directors has pravided written paticies far averall disk
management and for specific areas such as currency nsk, interest
rate risk, credit risk, use of denvatives and non-dervative financizi

Otherpr in equity are ¢ ised of ing and ign
resarves. The hedging reserve is comprisad of unreakzed gains
and losses on futures, along with hedging of netinvestmants, which
are recognized in prafit or loss in the periods that the hedged trans-
actions impact profit or loss. The transiation reserve is comprised
of exchange differences arising when the income statements and
balance sheets of all the Group companies are translated to the
Group's reporting currency.

2,24 DIVIDENDS
Dividends are ized as when the right to receive
t has been d, This applies even if the dividends
are paid out of profits arising before the date of acquisition. How-
ever, it may be y totest the i 1 t forimpairment.

2.25 CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The cash fiow has been prepared in accor-
dance with the indirect method. The year's change in the cash
bai is appartioned bety perating ing and financing
activities. The starting point far the indirect methed is profit before
tax adjusted for items that dig not invoive actual cash receipts ar
payments. Cash and cash equivalents inciude cash and bank bai-
ances.

and of excess liquidity.

When the criteria for hedge accounting have been fulfiiled,
hedge accounting is applied 1o sliminate the effect of differences
between the reparted amounts for the hedging instrument and the
hedged item. The Group uses derijvatives to hedge some of its risk
exposure.

a} Darlvative Instrumants

The Groyp has financial derivatives in the form of cumency futures
contracts that hedge purchasas and sales n foreign currency.
Derivativas are only used for commercial hedging purposes and
not as speculative investments.

Information about the fair vaiue of various dervative financial
instruments vsed for hedging is provided in Note 3.3,

Exposure arises from

Markel risk,
— cufrency fisk.

Future business transacons

are not denorninated in SEK

Market risk
— Intérest rate nsk

Recegnized financial assets and financial agsets that

Long-term borowings with a variable interest rate
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Hedging reserve

The Group's hadging reserve is reported in the Consolrdated state-
ment of changes in equity (page 62) and they relate to the following
hedging instruments:

Spot price of currency futares.

Balance on 1 January 2018 -518
Change in the fair value of
hedging instruments reported in GGI -206

Deferred tax 44

Batance on 31 Dacembar 2018 -681
The yaar's change in farr value of

hedging instruments reported In QCH 3,582
Deferrad tax <766
Balance on 31 Decembar 2012 2,135

Ineffective portion of hedge accounting
Hedge effectiveness is a farward-locking evaluation that is made
when the hedge agreement is entared into. Tha hedged item and
the hedging instrument are continually evaluated to ensure that the
enuirements for effectiveness are met.

When the Group hedges frar in foreign y, the
critical conditions in the hedging instrument exactly match the con-
dilions for the hedged item. Accordingly, 8 quantitative evaluation
of effectivenass of the hedge is thus ensured.

When hedging transaction in foreign currency, an ineffective
portion can arise i the timing of the forecast transaction changes
compared to what was inifially estimated.

Measurement Management

Cash flow forecasts
Senstivity analysis

Curency futures confracts

inlerest rate denvatives, whan
they are expecled to lower the
Groyp's merest expense

Sensitiity analysis

Credit nsk Cash and cash eguivalents. accounts receivabie and
dedvates

Aging analysis Credit limits

Credd ravng

Liguidity risi Borrowings and other liabifihes

Access to binding credit facil-
hes and credit

Rolling cash flow forecast
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CONT.NOTE 3 Financial risk managemsnt

There were no ineffective portions in currency futures contracts in
2019 or 2018.

b) Currency risk

Exposure

The Group's risk exposure (o the moest important foreign currencies
at the end of the reporting period, in SEK thousands, was as fol-
lows:

Exposure 31 December 2019
EUR usp JPY
Accounts receivable - rade 90,747 35377 7331
Bank loans -288.840 - -
Additional congideration 10,434 - -
Accounts payable - trade -a7.814 -25,482 852
Currency futures {cash flow
hedges) 164,288 36,253 54,165
Exposura 21 December 2018
EUR UsoD JPY
Accounts recsivable - trade 95,689 42550 12,106
Bank loans -280,517 - -
Additional consideration 41,101 - -
Accounts payable - trade -48,516 -36,678 -1579
Currency futures (cash flow
hedges) 191,423 58073 69,720

Instruments used by the Group
The Group dperates internationally and is exposed 10 currency
risks arising from currency exposure to, primariy, the USD, EUR
and JPY. The Group's currency risks comprise the transaction risk
from future commercial transaclions in foreign currencies, as well
as the translation risk of recognized assets and liabilities and net
nvestaments in foregn subsidianes.

Transaction risk 18 lowerad by the Group's use of currency
futures to manage its exposure o currency risk. The Group's risk
management policy means that:

« the firs? future quarter’s exposure 1s hedged between 60-80%
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+ the second future quarter's exposure is hedgecd between 50-70%
+ the third future quarter's exposure is hedged between 4G-60%

- the fourth future quarter's exposure Is hedgad betwsan 30-50%
+ the fifth future quarter's exposure is hedged between 0-40%

+ the sixth future quarter’s exposure is hedged between 0-30%

The Group identifies the spot price of futures contracts. The spot
price is based on relevant spot prices in the spot market. The differ-
ences between contracted forward rates and the rate oa the spot
market are defined as forward points.

The change in future peints of a futures contract attributable to
the hedged item are reported in reserve for hedging costs.

Transtation risk arises because the Group's equity amount is
affected by currency rate fluctuatians on its investments in subsid-
izries in foreign currency. Currency expasure that has arisen from
the net assets cbtained from the businesses acquired by the Group
are primarily deal with by borrowing in the currency concerned.

Hadging of net investments in foreign operations

In conjunction with the prior acquisitions of HM$ Industrial Nei-
works SA and Intesis Software SLU, a bank Joan was obtained for
EUR 23 million, which was increased by EUR 4.2 million in crderto
help finance last year's acquisition of Beck IPC GmbH.

Irs 2018, the Group amortized EUR 2 million of its prior acquisi-
tion loan and ingreased existing credit in EUR corresponding to
EVUR 2.4 million. This loan, which was acquired for the purpose of
financing the acquisition of the German company, WEBfaciory
GmbH and the Dutch company, Raster Produets BV, tagether with
the prioricans {totaling EUR 27.6 million) has been identified as an
item that hedges net investments in the subsidiaries mentioned
above. Thara was no ineffective portion to be reported from hedges
of net investments in foreign operations.

Hedge ecceunting's impact on the Group's finarncial position

and earnings

The effects of the hedge accounting of currency risks’ impact onthe
Group's financial position and aarnings are reported in the following
{ables:

LN P LTI R
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Derivative instruments

—currency futures 2019 2018

Carrying amount {asset) 4,042 2357

Nominal amount 210,938 191,423

Maturity March 2020 - March 2018 -
Aprl 2021 March 2020

Hedge ratic* 11 11

Change in value for cutstanding 3.808 2357

hedging instruments since 1

January

Value change in the hedged item =3,808 -2.357

for determining effectivenass

Weighed avarage for forward SEK10. 8004 1EUR, SEKIT 3463 1ELR

EKS 864611190,
SEXO.OAP1IPY

*Currency futures contracts are in the same currency as the highly

probable forecast future transactions, which is why the hedge ratio

is 11

rates during the year

Derivative instruments

—currency futures 2013 2018

Carrying amount (iiability) -1.212 -3,109

Nominal amaunt 43,767 127,793

Maturity March2020-  March 2019 -
Apri 2021 March 2620

Hedge ratio* 11 11

Change in value for autstanding B34 -3,109

hedging instruments since 1

January

Value change in the hedged itern 8 3,109

for determining effectiveness

Weighed average for forward SEXIDAO0LIEUR,  SEKE 4B0G1USD,

rates during the year SENADG46:1UBD,  SEKO D797 1JPY

SEKD.O87R14PY

*Currency futures contracts are in the same currency as the highly
probahie forecast future transactions, which is why the hedge ratio
is 11
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Met investment

foreign operations 2019 2018
GCarrying amaunt (Sank loans) 288,168 300,038
Carrying amount in EUR 27819 29,200
Hedge ratio " 11
Change (n the loan's carmrying
amount due to changes in the
exchange rate since 1.January 2073 -10.424
Change in the value of the
hedged item for determmning
effactiveness -2,073 -10,424

Weighed average for currency
rates durmg the year SEK105884 1EUR  SEK10 3058 1EUR
Senstivity analysis

i the SEK had weakened/strengthened by 5% against the EUR with
all other held stant, the aperating p: asof 1
December 2018 would have been SEX 17.1 (14.7) million highes!
lower, mainly as a result of purchases and sales in foreign currency,
and from the gaina/losses that would arise upon translation of
accounts receivable, financial assels and liabilities measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

If the SEK had weakened/strengthened by 5% against the USD
with all other variables heid conatant, the operating profitloss as of
31 December 2018 would have been SEK 5.9 (4.5) mitlien higher/
lower, mainly as a result of purchases and sales in foreign currency,
and from the gains/losses that would arise upon translation of
aceounts receivable, financial assets and lizhilities measurad at fair

it

value through profit or ipss.
If the SEK had weakened/strengthened by 5% against the JPY
with afl other heid the profitloss as of

31 December 2019 would have bean SEK 3.5 (4.2) million higher/
lower, mainly as a result of puschases and sales in foresgn currency,
and from the gains/losses that would arise upon translation of
accounts receivable, financial assets and fiabilities measurad at fair
value through profit or foss.

<} Interast rats risk

The Group's primary interest rate risk arises tromiong-term horrow-
ings with variable interest rates, which expase the Group ta interest
rate risk on the cash flow, The Group's financial policy states that
interesi expenses should be as low as possible. in order to minimize

INABILITY  SOVERNANMCE  8I Q) Y
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the Group's interest expenses, interest rate derivatives may be ufi-
lized. For 2019 and 2018, it was assessed that the use of interest
rate derivatives would not decrease the Group's interest expenses.

Hinterest rates on borrawings in EUR during 2019 hadbeen one
percentage point higher/lower with all other variables constant then
the profit befere tax for the financial year would have been SEK 3.0
(2.8) miltion higherflower.

1# fne SEK had weakenedistrengihened by 5% against the EUR
during 2019 with all other variabtes he!d constant, profit before tax
for the financial year would have baen SEK 0.2 (0.2} million highes/
lower due to increased d interest

FINANCIAL INFO
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assessed that the amount of possible impairmentis insignificant.
The Group applies the simplified methed for calculating its
expecied credit fosses. With this method, expected credit losses
during the entire duration of the receivable are used as the starting
paint for accounts receivable and contract assets. To measure the
expected creditlosses, accownis raceivable and contract assets are
grouped based on allocated creditrisk characteristcs and the num-
‘per of days that payment is overdue. The Group appiies future-oni-
ented variahles for expacted credit fusses. On each closing date,
1he company assesses whether the credit risk for a financial instru-
ment has increased significantly since initial recognition. For this

ITinderest rates on borrowings in EUR as of 31 2018
visedall by 1% in 2020, protit before tax for 2020 will be SEK 28
million higherlower.

If. compared ta 31 December 2019, the SEK weakens/strength-
ens by 5% against the EUR during the coming year, with ali other
variables held constant, profit before tax for 2020 will be SEK 0.2
million higherflower due to increased/decreased interest expenses.

o) Credit risk

ent, the cormpany must use the change in the risk of a
default during the expected duratian rathes than the change in
expected credit iosses.

The company has determined that transition to IFRS 9 will not
have any significant impact, since bad debt lesses have historically
been very low and the future outlock is that credit nsk will remain
iow. See Note 25 for more infarmation about the Group's reported
credit losses,

e} F g and liquidity risk

Credil rigk arises from heldings in cash and cash equivalents, deriv-
ative instruments, deposits with banks and credit instituticns and
other credit exposures, inciuding outstanding receivables. See Note
25 for more information about the Group's outstanding raceivables.

Credit risk is dealt with at the Group leve!, except for credit risk
associated with overdue accounis recsivabie. Each Group com-
pany is responsible for men:toring and analyzing credit risk for sach
customer before offering the standard terms for payment and deliv-
ery. There are clear guidelines in the Group's credii pelicy forwhen
to grant credit to customers and when security is required. The
Group management team has concluded that there is no significant
credit risk asscciated with any particular customer, counterparty or
geographical regior.

Impairment of financial assets
The Groug has two types of financial assets that lie within the appli-
cation areg for the model for expected credit losses:
= Accounts receivable attributabie to the sale of goods sold and
services provided, and
+ Contract receivables attnbutable to development confracts

Cash and cash equivalents aiso lie within the appication area for
impairment in accordance wit IFRS 9. However, it has been

Financing risk is the risk that maturing loans cannot be refinanced
without difficulty or added expense and that this situation would
make itdifficult for the Group to fulfill its payment oDligations. Liquid-
ity risk is the risk of difficulties in fulfiling obiigations that are asso-
ciated with financial liabilities. See nate 30 for an analysis of the
Group's interest-bearing liabilities, classified according ta the ime
remarning untit maturity as of the closing date.

Cash fiow forecasts are drawn up by the Group's operating com-
pames and aggregated by Group finance. The Group carefully
manitors rolling forecasts of its hquidity reserve (which consists of
unused lines of credit and cash equivalents) to ensure that the
Group has sufficient cash to meet the needs of its operating activi-
t#es, At the same time, the Group must maintain a sufficient rargin
inits granted unused cred:t so that it does notbreach any ofts credit
limits or loan terms. This is done centrally for all subsid:aries betong-
ing to the Group in accordance with the practices and Emits estab-
lished for the company. Liquidity management also involves caley-
lating the expected cash flows in major currencies and determining
the amount of various lguid assets thus required, monitoring sol-
vency i relation to internal and ext | supervisory
and drawing up plans for debt financing.

quirer
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CONT. NOTE 3 Financiat risk management

Financing risk arises when, at a given pointin time, it becomas
difficuit obtaining financing. To minimize the costs of the Group's
borrowings and financing, the finance function must provide credit
facilittes that adequately meet the Group's need for working capital
credit. HMS's goal is to always have access o approximately 8%
of sales in cash, excess liquidity including unutilized credit facilities,
which aty d corr ded to app 15(7} %.

According to the Group's financia! policy, excess liguidity may
be invested in interest-bearing securities with a maximurn maturity
of cne year. Counterparly risk is anaged through regulations in
the financial pelicy regarding the long-term rating of issuers. The
policy states that investments may be made in Swedish corporate
bonds with a Standard & Poor's rating of at least BBB+, Swedish
commercial papers with a rating of at least K1, Swedish morigage
institutions and the Swedish State. All borrowing is done in consul-
tation with the Parent Company’s finance functian,

Analysis of maturity

Between
3 months
and 1 year

Less than 3
menths

As of 31 December
2019

Accounts payable - trade -75,893 -
Dervative instruments. -T48 -166
Bank loans* -1,354 -3.689
Lease liabilities -76830 22,891
Total -$5.4823 27,048

Between
As of 31 December Less than 3 3 months
2018 manths and 1 year
Accounts payable - trade -104,610 -
Derivative instruments 925 -2,184
Bank inans* -1,150 23,915
Finance leases -817 -2,187
Total -107,502 -28,2686

*incl. additional consideration.

SUSTAINABILITY
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Analysis of maturity for financial iabiities

The table below analyzes the Group’s non-derivative financial liabil-
ities and net-settled derivatives that are financial ligbilifes, grouped
according to the time remaining as of the batance sheet date until
the contractual maturity date. The amounts reported in the analysis
of maturity table are the contractual, undiscounted cash flows.

3.2 MANAGING CAPITAL RISKS

The Group's objective with regard to capital structurs is to

+ safeguard the Group's ahility fo continue operations, sathatitcan
centinye to generatae raturns for shareholders and value to other
stakeholders, and

« maintain an optimal capital structure in crder to keep the cost of
capital down.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group can change

the dividend paid to sharehelders, repay capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sall assels to reduce debt.

Between Between More than 5
1and 2years 2 and 5 years years
- - - -75,863)
- - - -1,24%
-14,691 -328,741 - -348.475
-28,760 42,162 13,1256 -112,588]
41,451 -370,803 13,125 ~538,148)
Between Between More than 5
t and 2 years 2 and 5 years years
- - - -104.610
- - - -3,109
-25,099 -340,438 - -390,603
-5,598 -5,673 -8,168 -22,341
-30,698 -346,011 -8,166 -520,663

* Amortization and interest in foreign cumency have been caiculated based on the closing exchange rates in effect and Interast rates in effact at the time.
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The Group evaluates its capital structure by calculating and
monitoring the net debt/equity ratio. This key figure is calculated as
net ligbilities divided by total equity. The net debt is calculated as
the total borrowings (including current interest-bearing liabilities
and non-current interest-bearing liahilzies in the consolidated bal-
ance sheef) and short-term and long-term lease labilites less cash
and eash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity in the
consolidated balance sheet plus net dabt.

The net debt/equity ratios on 31 Decamber 2019 and 3t December
2018 were as follows:

2019 2018

Interast-beanng liabilities (MNote 30} 340,504 401,426
Lease liabkhes {Note 21} 112,568

Less cash and cash equivalents (Note 28) 51244 -58,951
Net debt A, aa 342,475
Total aquity 1,010,343 856,807
Tata) caplial Rt e30a) 1,199,332
Nat debb/equity ratio - 40%

3.3 CALCULATION OF FAIR VALUE

The financial instruments measured at fairvalue, ba'sed onhowthe
classification in the fair value hierarchy was made, afe shown in the
table below. The varicus levels are defined as Tollows:

Levef 1: The fair value of financial instruments that are traded on an
active market (such as listed derivatives and gq].liiy securitiés) is
based on listed market prices as of the closing date. The fisted mar-
ket price used for the Group's financial assets is the curent bid rate.
Levs! 2: The fair value of financial assets that are not traded on an
active market {e.g, OTC derivatives) is established using valuation
techniques which, to the greatest extent possible, are based on
market information and company-specific informaticn is used as
litle as possible. Allimportant input reguired for fair value valuati
of an instrument is observable. '

Level 3: Instances where ene or more important inputs-are not
based on observabie market information. This applies, for example,
1o unlisted instruments.
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The failowing table shows the Group's assets and liabilities valued
at a fair value as of 31 December 2019:

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Long-term securities
heldings - - 5313 EAES
Denvative instruments
used for hedging (Nota
26) > 4,042 - 4,542
Tolal asssts - 4,042 5313 9355
Dervative instruments
used for hedging {Note
28) - 1,212 - .12
Other {comingent
considaration) {Note 30} - - 10,434 -10,434
Total liabilities - 1212 1043 -11.846

The following table shows the Group's assets and iiabilities valued
at a fair value as of 31 December 2018:

Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total

Long-term securities
heldings - - 5312 5313
Dervative nstrurhents
usad for hadging (Note
26} - 2.357 2,357
Tatal assats - 2,357 5,313 1,670
Denvative instruments
used for nedging (Note

6) -3.109 -3,109
Other (conbingent
consideration) (Note 30} - - -M102 41102
Total liabilities - -3,108 41102 44211

Tiwe fair volue of derivalive istruments is detarmined uSing marked prices for
the currency on the closing date.

NOTE 4 Important estimates and

assassments for accounting purposes

The Group makes estimates and assumptions about the future. The

estimates for accounting purposes that rasult from these, by defini-

tion, will rarely equate to the actual result. Management also makes

estimates when applying the Group's accounting policies.
Estimates and agsessments are evaluated continucusly and

they are based on past experience and other facters, including

PJSTAINABILITY  GLVYERMANCE  SLU Y  FINANCIAL INFO
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expsciations of future events considered reasonable under the
prevailing conditions.

The estimates and assumptons that involve a considerable risk
of needing to make significant adjustments to the carrying amounts
during the next financiai year are shown

a) Test of Impalrment for goodwill and brands
Each year, in accordance with the accounting policies described in
Note 2.9, the Group tests goodwill and brands with an indefinite
useful fife for impairment. Tha recoverable amaunt for the Group's
cash-generating units {for the Group excl. Intesis and WEBfactory
and for Intesis and WEBfactory sep ly) has been by
calculating value-in-use. Various estimates must be made in order
o make these calculations {Note 18}, For the Group excl. Intesis and
WEBfactory, the reported value of goodwill amounts to SEK 717.0
{712.9) midfion. The amount for Intesis alone is SEK 120.9 (127.9)
mithon and the amount for WEBfactary alone is SEK 28.9 million.
The total is SEK B75.8 (840.9) milion. The carrying amount for
brands with an indefinite useful life is SEK 92.2 (91.0) million.
Sensitivily anatyses reveal that the retum requirement after tax
could increase from 10.1% ta 21.3% (for the Group exci, intesis and
WEBfactory), From 10.1% to 25.0% for Intesis and from 12.5% 1o
13.2% for WEBfactory, without needing to recognize impairment
losses.

b} Revenue recognition

The Group uses the percentage of compiletion method for reporting
fixed-price agreements for sales of development services. The
percentage of compietion method means that the Group must
8ssess services already performed by the closing date as a propor-
tion of the total services to be performed.

¢} Capltaiized developmant costs

The company capitalizes costs associated with the development of
identifiable and unigue integraled circuits wihen the cniena
described in Section 2.17 d} have baen fulfilled and when the coats
are expected tc be covered and exceeded by future revenus. Four
times per year, the Group determines whether s products, for which
€arrying amount has been recorded, are in the process of being
sold, or are expected to be sold. The Group records impaimmentloss
on products for which the future economic benefits are expected o
be less than the carrying amount. In 2019, this impairment tasting

GRI APPENDIX  SHAREHGLGERINFD GOMNTENTS

resulled in a write-down of SEK 1.2 (0) million.

4} Contingent consideration
Incanjunction with the acquisition of Beck IPC GmbH in 2018, there
was an agreement on contingent consideration. The additional con-
sideration, which amounted to EUR 2.0 million, was contingent on
Beck achieving certain defined financial targets during the period
2018-2020. Based on an agreement between the parties, the con-
ditional consideration was settied in 2019, That event resulted in a
gain of SEK 19.7 milkton that has been reported as part of other
operating income.

in conjunction with the acquisition of WEBfactory GmbH, there
was 280 an agreemeit on contingent consideration. The additional
consideration, which amounts to EUR 1.5 milkon, is contingent on
sales growth during 2020, Based on how the company performed
during the first nine months afterthe acquiston, and the forecast far
the next two years, management's assessment is that two-thirds of
the amount of additional consideration will be paid out. Should
WEBfactory perform below expectations, a lower level of additional
consideration could be paid than the amgunt reported as a liability
on 31 December 2019. In that case, the difference would be recog-
nized in prefit or foss.

#) Lsasing

When the length of a lease agreement is established, management
takes into consideration all available information that provides an
econamic incentive to utilize an extension option ar not utilize an
option to cancel an agreement. Opportunities to extend an agree-
ment only add ta the duration of an agreement if it is reasonable
certain that the agreement will be extended (or not canceled). The
leasing period is re-evaluated if an oplien is exercised (or not exer-
crsed) or if the Group will have to exercise the option {or not exercise
it). If the assessment is reasonably certain, it will only be re-evalu-
ated if significant events arise, or achange in circumstances, which
impact the criginaf assessment and alsa if the change is within the
lessar's control.

f} Recognition of deferrad tax assets on losa carryforwards
included in deferrad tax assets is SEK 2.3 millon, which is the toss
carryforward for Beck IPC GmbH, The Group has assessed that the
loss carryforwards will be able 1o be used agamst future taxable
profit. The assessmentis based on a business plan and budget that
has been decided for the subsdiary. The subsidiary is expected to

HMS NETWORKS ANNUAL REPORT 2078 T3
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CONT.NOTE 4 Important estimates and
assessments for accounting purposes

generate future taxable profit from 2020 and onwards, The loss
carryforwards can be rolled forward and they do net have any expi-
ratiors date.

g} Inventory obsolescence

When ing inventery obsol 1ce, an impairment loss is
recorded based on an cbsclescence calculation model, which is
based an the mostrecentdelivery receipt date forinventory. ltisthe
managemeni’s assessment that the applied salculation moder
reflects actual ot A suppt y manual write-down
for cbsolescence may also be recorded for products where man-
a2gement has assessed that there [s an additional write-down
requirement,

NOTE 5 Revenue from contracts with
customers

51PRODUCTS

over time.

“Right to use” means that the customer is entitied to use an
irtellectual property right as designed at a certain point in time.,
“Right to access” means thai the custemer is entitled to use an intel-
lectual property right as designed throughout the license periad.
To identify a license as “right fo access” all of the following three
criteria must be met:

the licensor runs activities that have a significant impact on the
intellectual preperty right,

the right exposes the customer fo the effecis of these activittes
and

the activities do not consist of a separate geod or service.

The Group sells both "right to use® and "right to access® licenges.

5.3 CLOUD SERVICES

Certain agreements include, besides products and licenses, aiso
cloud services. In most cases, cloud services can be separated
from the products, The service is then reperted as a separate
perfarmance obligation. Revenue from the deliverad services is
recognized over ime, in the period when the services are provided.

Most revenue fram development services.is- recognized:over
‘time. Tt

Estimates that are made conceming revense, expenses or
percentage of completion for a project are revised if the conditions
or circumstances change. Increases or decreases in assessed
revenus or exgenses that are due to a revised estimate are recog-
nized in profit or loss in the peried when the Group management
team became aware of the circumstances giving rise o the revised
estimate.
6.5 CATEGORIZATION OF REYENUE'FR_QM_ ONTI
WITH-CUSTOMERS .
The HMS Group sells products’and services pnwmarllyyli'l:sev'eh
countries, as shown in the following table. Thesecountries are not
considerad to be geographic segments. For information about the
Group's segments, see Note 2:3. Categerizition is,based on the
counlry that a product or service is delivered to.

RACTS

The Group manufactures and sells products to connedt industrial ¢y jq ot possinie to separata the service from the product, the  Germany 347,397
z;‘:iipmir:tt:::;::::s:::ﬁ:t:::iz:;:;ar: 2:}:;'::':‘:‘?;?::1 entire performance obligation will then be recognized overtime at  usa 241,397 -
The products for industrial communication are sold under the Any- tha rate that perfarmanca is fulfilled. Japan 135.9M -
bus®, Ixxal®, Ewon® och Intesis™ brands. Communication solu- 5,4 DEVELOPMENT SERVICES Franca 72883 -
tions for building automation are cffered via the subsidiary, intesis.  The Group also sells development services associated with indus- Italy 71416 -
The ravenue from product sales is racognized at the pointin - yria| petwerk technoiogy. Revenue from the delivered services s China 51,222 -
time when control over the product is transferred to the customer.  recognized in the period that the services were provided in cases Sweden 59,999 17314
This typically occurs when the product has been delivered to the  where the Group does net have any altemnalive use for the work ) ’ '
customer and ownership rights have been transferred. and is entilled to payment for work provided at any given time. If  —ooo countries ERRAISAEO1 365,520 -
Product sales amountta approximately $5% of the Group'stotal e Group is not enlitted lo payment for the work that was provided  Total i oesons EERD  v7ane

sales.

5.2 LICENSES

Agraements with the Group's customers could also include a soft-
ware ficense. The software is considered to ba a separate perfer-
mance chligation in cases where the software is not an integra!
part of the product and is essential io its function. Licenses thatare
identified as separate performance obligations are either “right to
use”, which means that the revenue for the licenses is recognized
ata specific pointin time, .e. when the cusiomer gains control aver
the software, or as “right to access” for which revenue is recognized

80 HMS NETWORKS ANNUAL REPORT XH9

at any given time, revenue is then racognized at a specific point in
time, i.e. when the customer cbtains control over the service. The
assessment is made for each contract, individualiy.

In cases where the Group is entitled to payment for work pro-
vided at any given time, revenue is recognized over time. For fixed-
price contracts, revenue recognition is base on the percentage of
the tota! agreed service that was delivered during the financial year.
Revenue is recognized based on the percentage of completion as
of the closing date. Percentage of completion is determined by
comparing the services already rendered to the lotal amount of
services 1o be performed.

*The Parent company’s nat sales amourted to SEK 16:224 (17,314) thau-
sand, of which 100% wera sales to Group companies:-Purchases om
Group companias amounted to SEK 0 (0) thausand.

Revenue of approximately SEK 58,361 (52,931} thousand is
derived from a single external customer in USA..

The products for industrial communicetion-and oT .ere sold
under the Anybus®, Ixxai® and Ewon® drands. Communication
sofutions for building automatior: are sold under tha intesis™ brand.
The breakdown of net sales by brand is shown in the table below. All
HMS brands ere based on common technologies and they are mar-
keted and sold through the shared salas channels. For this reason,
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compleie sagment accounting is not reported.

Net sales per brand 2019 2018
Anybus 873,011 791,547
Ixxat 176,319 165 841
Ewon 291,885 2683734
Intesis 117378 98,385
Other 680,015 46,197
Total 1,518,704 1.365,004

5.6 CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The Group reports the following revenue-retated contract assets
and liabilities:

ecember 31 D
2019

Current contract assets attributable

ta development services 2873 4373
Impairment reserve - -
Tolal contract assets 2873 4,373
Contract izbilities - license

and service agreements 8,576 5,882
Total current

contract liabilities 8,576 6,882
5.6.1 Significant changes in contract fiebilities
Contract assets have by the Group pl a

large portion of its fixed-price assignments, which were ongoing
last year. Thers has not been any Joss raserve recognized for con-
tract assets.

5.6.2 Remaining non-current development agreements
The table below shows the performance obligations that are unful-
filled on long-term development contracts at a fixed price.

31 December 31 December
2019 2018

The total amount of the transaction 7757 15,343
price that was allocated to long-

term development contracts that

ars unfulfilled or partalty unfutfilled

as of 31 December

AEILITY GOWERNANCE  GLOSSARY  FINANCIALINFG
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Management expects that 100% of the transaction price that has
been altocated te unfulfilled contracts as of 31 December 2019
will De recognized as revenue during the next financial year (SEK
7,767 thousand).

All other contracts for development services have an onginal
expecied duration of at most 1 year or they are invoiced based
an the time spent. in accordance with what is stated in IFRS 15,
disclosures have not deen provided on the transachon price for
these unfulfilled obligations.

5.7 REPORTING
In i where an agi 1t contams several separate per-
formance , the price is ali d to each

performance obligation based on their independent sales prices.
Management assesses the independent sales price at the start
of the contract based or: cbservabie prices fer the same type of
products to be delivered and services that wilt be performed under
similar conditions for similar customers. If observable prices are
not i , r 1t must the price using 2 suit-
able method, such as the cost-plus approach. if the Group offers a
discount, itis sliocated 1o all of the performance obiigations on the
basis of their relative independent sales prices.

Forfixed-price agreements, the customer pays the agreed price
at the agread payment due dates. If the services that the Group
detfivered exceed the payment. a contract esset is recognized. I
the payments exceed the delivered services, a contract liability is
recognized.

If the agreement is based on price perhour of price for materiai,
revenue is recognized lo the extent that the Group is entitled to
invoice the customer,

Even though, as arrexception, nt terms
they will never exceed 12 months. The transaction prce is therefora
not adjusted far affecis of financing cormp ts.

The Group's obligation to 1ssue a refund for defective products

d y rules is reported in accordance

in with normaé
with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingant
Assets. The Group dees nothave any agreements where extended
warranties have been offered fo customers.
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NOTE B Other operating income and expenses
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Qther operating income 2019 2018
Gain on settiement of contingent consideraton” 18,721 -
Exchange rate differences 73 6,352
Total 19,794 6,352
Other operating expenses 2019 2018
Realized forward exchange agreements -13,739 -4 852
Exchange rale differences 6,567 q
Total -20,308 -4.852

* Partains lo Back IPC GmbH

NOTE7 Categorization by type of cost

2012 2018

Cost of purchasing and handling materials 460,658 425,517
Costs for remuneration to employees {(Note 9} 547,715 453,848
Depreciaticn, amortization and impawment (Note 18, 19) 59,118 50,673
Marketing costs 30,379 27,675
Freight costs 9,016 8,018
Restructuring costs” 22,000 -
Other extemal costs 187,704 166,745
Capitalized development costs {Note 18) 41,608 -18.523
Total costs for goods sold, sales

administration, research and development 1,275,072 1,115,953

* The restruchiring costs for 2015 ara allocated as follows Cosl of goods sold SEK 5,555 thousand, Selling
and marketing expensas SEK 9,354 thousand, Administrative costs SEK 3,494 thousand and Ressarch and
development costs SEK 3,137 thousand.
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NOTE 8 Remuneratian to auditors

The Group

REHOLLER|

MNEQD

Parent Company

to auditors 201 2018 201% 2018
PwC
Audit assignment® 1.796 2,058 a8 1,166
of which PwC Sweden 1,143 1.455 818 1,166
Audit activitbes ather than the audit
assignment - 163 - -
of wivch PwC Sweden - - - -
Tax advice 391 880 ) 21
of which Fw( Swaden 23 434 3 21
Other services 19 28 82 -
of which PwC Swaden 20 - 52 -
Total 2,305 3,199 693 1,187
* Tha audrt 13 thetes for the statulory audi. .a. work necesssary for prowding an eudit report, and any audit

advice provided in connechion with the audit engagement.
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NOTE 8 Remuneration to employees

The Group

26t9 2018 2019 2018
Sal ang other r ion * 423,548 350,875 8,502 4,856
Saocial security contrbutions. 99,237 84,368 1,914 1,740
Pension costs 24,830 18.605 163 755
Total 547,715 453,843 8,179 7,452

“ Salaries in tha parent company perain to the CEQ and Board of Diraciors,

FINANCIAL INFL
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Social securily Social security

N Salaries expenses Salaries expensas

Saiaries, other remuneration and social security and other {of whigh pension and other {of which pension
expenses remuneration expenses} remuneration expénses}
Board members and CEO 18259 3838 {872) 17,977 3,170 (941)
Other employees 404,280 120,529 (23,958) 332,898 99,803 (17 664)
The Group, total 423,543 124,187 (24,930) 350,875 102,973 (18,605)

2019 2018 .

Average no. Of which Average no. of Of which
Average no. of employees employees men employees men
Sweden 28 169 201 145
Germany 151 "7 135 102
Belgium 60 47 56 45
Spain 80 44 51 a7
usa 45 35 a2 31
Japan 16 14 18 15
China 1z 8 10 9
Holland & 8 - -
Romania 8 [ - -
India 8 8 & ]
Great Brtain 6 5 5 4
France s 8 3 3
Ttaly ] 4 6 5
Singapore 2 2 -
Switzerland 1 1 1
Czech Republic 1 t 1
Denmark - 1 -
The Group, totat 617 4 536 404
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Sharg-based remunaration

To promote long-term ownership comemitment among emplayees,
itis the Board's intention to present a proposal for & Share Savings Plan
each year ta the AGM. Ever since the 2012, the AGMs haves decided
toimplement a Share Savings Pian that would be opento all permanent
employees of the HMS Group,

Inbrief, each Share Savings Plan works as follows: employees who
choass to participate in the plan must make an initial investment in
HMS shares during the investment period (1 January — 31 December
of year 1). The shares must then be held during the quaiification period
(years 2-4). Then, during spring of year 5, they are distributed, free~of-
charge, a maximum of two additional shares for each invested share.
During the period 2013-2018, the Share Savings plan has consisted of
both matching shares, which were issued in equai numbers as the
amount of shares saved and performance shares, Hased on achieve-
ment of financial targets. As of 2019, the plan consists only of perfor-
mance shares. However, no changes have been made to the possible
outcome of disiributing a maximum of two additonat shares for each
investad share. Employeesa who partcipate in the plan must set aside
at least 1% of their annual gross salary and at most 3%, except for a
faw key emgployees, who may set aside up 1o 6% of their gross salary
for the purpose of saving shares during the investmeant period.

In order for the participanis in the remaining prior plans from 2017
and 2018 o be eligible to receive maiching shares, they must be an
empioyee of the Group during the entire span of the plan and they must
hold the saved HMS shares duting the entire qualification periog.

For all of the plans, a requirement on receiving performance shares
is, besides the requirements on employment and holding, that HMS
echieves certain financial targets on profit per share during the qualifi-
cation period. The financial targets are based on average annuai
growth for the Group's profit per share, calculated in accordance with
CAGR (Compound Anrual Growth Rate) during the qualification
penod. Per shares are on a straight-line basis in the
interval between 0-20% and maximum allocaban occurs if there is a
higher profit per share during the qualification pericd than 20% CAGR.
Maximum outcome wiuld thus be issuance of one performance share
far the 2017 and 2018 pians (and one matching share) and two perfor-
mance shares for the 2018 plan. A prerequisite for allocation of perfar-
mance shares is that average growth for the year must be pasitve.

In crderto ensure atlocation of shares in accordance with the Share
Savings Plans, the AGM decided to zequire own shares for all plans.

The Group's costs for the Share Savings Planare reported in accor-
dance with IFRS 2 Share-based payment (see also the description
under accounting policies).

HMS NETWORKS ANNUAL REFORT 2013 83



INTRCG HM CK WMARKET  GLROPERATIONS  PROCLCTS TAINABILITY  GIOVERMANLCE  GLC RY - FINA ALINFO  SREAPPENOIX SHAREROLDERINET CAMTEM TS

Finenral statomieeis < DFS - Dhrectiens’ rapirt « Th Grcoe = he Posent Doeadrg = st - Boorels afammnn eal gagnatnes = Avand vl = Bl g neaaten e - sl

CONT.NOTE 9 Remuneration toemployeas NOTE 10 Remunsration ta the Board of Direc-
tors and senior executives, etc

Remuneration to the Board and senlor executives
Remuneration to the Chairman and Board members is in accor-
dance with the general meeting of shareholders’ decision, Board
Board members and CEQ 13 11 12 10 fees de not pertain te employee representatives.

The Group, total 13 1 12 10 Remuneration 1o the CEQ and other senior executives is com-
prised of basic salary, variable remuneration, other benefits and
pension. in the context of this note, other senior executives are the
fiva members of the Group management team that also includes

2019 2018

Gender distribution of the Group {incl. suhsidiaries) No. on OF which Of which
for Board members and President/CEOs closing date men men

Share of Number saved Totai number . )
Program Investment year participating of shares allocated (of which the CEO.D,.mng 2018. and fhe first four months of 2013, there were
number (AGM decision} employees perfarmance shares) (US4 other senior executives.
The distribution betwaen basic salary end variable remunera-
1 2013 (2012) 60% {concludea) 112,468 (22 636) 27.58 tion shail be preportionate to the executive's responsibilities and
2 2014 (2013) 51% (conchuded) 138,807 (68,853) 3425  Buthorty. For the CEQ and ether senior executives, variable remu-
neration may not exceed 50% of basic salary. Variable remunera-
3 2015 (2014) % feonclidea) 89,826 (44,913) 38.00 tion is based on performance inrelation to targets. Pension benefits
4 2016 (2015) 54% {conctuded) 88,083 (44,062} 61.25  and other benefits for the CEQ and olher seniar executives are a
5 2017 (2016) 43% 34,975 - 75.63 part of the total remuneration package,
] 2018 (2017) 5% 33.163 _ 125.00 Variable remuneration for the financial year consists of
expensed bonus, which is paid out in the coming year.
7 2019 (2018) 46% 31,957 h 125.80- For catails of how the benus is calculated, see betow,
a8 2020 (2018) 41% (not yet started) - 176.00 At the AGM on 25 Aprii 2019 Charlotle Brogren was ra-elected

as Chairman of the Board. The foilowing individuals were also
re-elected at the AGM to serve on the Board of Directors: Ray
Shares hetd in treasury related to share-based compensation Mauritason, Fredrik Hansson, Anders Mérek, Gecilia Wachtmeister
and Uif S&dergren. Since the AGM of 26 Ap+il 2018, the Board has

Year Repurchase Allocatian Balance N N
held 10 minuted meetings up to the adaption: of this annual report,

2013 124,000 - 124,000 It expects to have one additional meeting prior to the AGM on 23

2017 350,200 -112,468 361,732 April 2020.

2018 70,000 -138,907 252,825
Varlable remuneration

2619 - -89,826 202,968 Variable remuneration for the CEC and other senior executives is

2020* 40,000 -88,082 154,916 based primarily on growth aleng with profitabilty goals set by the
Board. In additicn to that, other personal geals may be established.

* Calculated on the total number of outstanding shares as of 2020-03-19. For 2019, variable rermuneration for the CEO corresponded to 23
(36) % of basic salary and for other senior executives it was 14 (26}
%.
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Defined beneflt/Defined contribution penaion plans

The Group has both defined benefit and defined contribation pen-
sion pkans, See section 2.21 and Note 11. Pension costs are costs.
that affect profit (loss) for the year.

Pansions
The retirement age for the CEQ and other senior executives is 65
years.

Severances pay
The notification period for termination of ofthe CEQ is
& months far both sides. If the company initiates digmissal, sever-
ance pay amourting o 12 months’ salary in additien to regular
satary will be paid. In the case of notice of termination from the
CEQ's side, no severance payment is made.

The i period for t on of empl
pther senior executives is § months for both sides.

it of the

CLOSSARY

FINANCIAL INFO
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Basic salary™/ Variable Pension Share-based Total Board
Remungration and olher benefits 2019 Board fees remuneration  expenses  remureration 2013 attendance
GChairman of the Board, Charlatte Brogren 500 - - - 500 100%
Board member, Ray Mauritsson 225 - - - 225 100%
Board member, Ceciia Wachtmester 225 - - - 225 100%
Board member, Fredrik Hansson 275 - - - 275 100%
Board member, Anders Morck 325 - - - 325 100%
Board member, UIf Sodergren 2325 - - - 225 90%
Total, Board 1,775 - - - 1,775
CEQ Staffan Dahistrom 3.067 860 763 164 4,654
Other senmor executives™” (5} 8.388 1,201 2,500 148 12,237
Total 13,230 1,861 3,263 312 18,667

Decisions on remuneration o . - e 201 Ba;ic sadl:ry’l Varia_ble Pension Share-baﬁed ;noslasl gnard
i rrotion ¢ or benchits 2018
Puring the year. the remuneration committee submitted 2 proposat cmonerotion and gther benchis B card fees remuneration  expenses remuneration attendance
to the Board on principles for rem 1o senior ives.  Chairman of the Board, Chariotte Brogren 450 - - - 450 100%
The pmpqsal specnfles. propertions hetweenrﬁxed and variable Board member, Ray Maunisson 200 . ~ R 200 100%
remuneration and the size of possible salary increases. Further- N .
more, the remuneration committes has proposed crteria for ~ B0rd member, Cecilia Wachmerster 200 - - - 200 9%
assessing the outcome of i ion and Beard member, Fredrik Hansson 250 - - - 250 90%
$ize it the foim of financial instruments, eic., as welt a8 pension  Byarg member, Anders Morck 250 . . . 250 90%
com:.hlfnlns and_ sgvmance pay‘_The committee aisa assessed the Bosrd member, UK Sodergren 200 _ R R 200 0%
bility of giving tion to other Board members who
provide consulting services to the Group. Total, Board 1.550 - - - 1.550
The Board discussad the remuneration committse’s propesal GEO Staffan Dahistram 2598 908 755 188 4.449
and reached a decision based on the recommendations. Remuner- Other senior executives™ (4) 5742 1,486 885 157 8270
ation to the CEQ for the 2019 financial year was decided by the
Total 9,890 2,394 1,640 345 14,269
Board based on the rec of the ion com- ® 3
mittee. Remuneration for other senior tives was decided by *Including other remuneration

the CEO after 1 with the remy i ittea.

The remuneration committee consists of the Chairman of the
Board and one other appointed Board member who is appointad by
the Board.

** Pertains to othars in the Group management team
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NOTE 11 Paension obligations

Pension benefits

Most employees in the Group have a premium-based pension solution and in Sweden, it follows the
{TP 1 plan. Other employees in Swaden have the ITP 2 plan, which is a defined benefit pension pian.
The premiumis individually calculated and based on such things as salary, previously earned pensicn
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NOTE 14 Income tax

GRIAPPFRIIN

AHAREDCIRERINED

The Group

2019

LCONTENTS

Parent Company

2018

2048

and expected remaining period of service. For the 2019 financiat year, the company did not have Current tax -27.258 -69,797 588 -593
access to information in order to report its proparticnate share of the ITP plan’s obligations, plan assets Deferred tax (Note 17) 4,087 9,220 - -
and costs, which meant that it was not pessible to report this as a defined benefit pian. This defined Total tax 29,158 80,577 538 593

benafit pension plan is therefore reported as a defined conkribution plan. The Group has a defined
benefit pension abiigation in Belgium that amounts to SEK 5,321 (2.466) thousand, see Note 30. The
years faes for pansion ingurance amounted to SEK 24,930 (18,505) thousand,

NOTE12 Financial income

The following shows how incorne tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical
amounts that would have arisen if the weighted average tax rate had been applied to tha profit of

consolidated companies:

The Group

2019

Parent Company

2M19

2018

2019 2048 Profit before tax 228,115 231,815 181,378 164,410
Interest income 101 51 Tax calculated using the
Total 01 1 Swedish tax rate {21.4%) 48,817 -50,909 -38,815 -36,170
o Tax effect of tems which are non-
deductible/non-taxable 30,548 12,478 38,227 36,135
. N Adjustment relating to prior years 8410 -4,800 - -558
NOTE13 Financial Expenses '“ g to priory
Difference in foreign tax rates 5,007 -16,850 - -
2019 2018 Revaiuation of deferred tax - change in
. the foreign tax rate 00 -300 - -
Interest expenses and other banking costs -7,588 -5.817
3 Loss carry-forwards used this year ~2,282 - - -
Exchange rate differences -7,511 -13,770
Tax effect of loss carry-forward -0 -105 - -
Total =15, 110 -19,587
Tax expense -23,158 -60,577 <588 -593
Weighted average tax rate 10.2% 26.1%

Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive incoma for the Group amounted to, fo
cash flow hedges SEK 766 {-44) thousand and for hedging of net investments to SEK -444 (-2,231)
thousand.

The low tax rate is primarily atiributable to one of the Belgian subsidiary's products having
raceived a significant tax exemption, which has had a positive impact on tax by SEK 18,830 thousand
{of which SEK 10,307 thousand is rejated to 2018 and SEK 8,523 thousand to 2019), Therae was alsc
a positive impact on tax of approximately SEK $,522 thousand associated with conditional consider-
ation transactions.
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NOTE15 Earnings per share

Earnings per share is caicuiated by dividing the amount of profit reporied in the incoma statement that
is attributable 1o the parent eompany's shareholders by the weighted average number of outstanding
ordinary shares during the period.

Earnings per share, basic and dituted 219 18
Profit attributable to parent company sharsholders 206,260 171,238
Weighted average number of sutstanding ordinary shares

(thousands) 45,508 46.540
Eamings per share, basic

(SEK per share) 4.43 388
Eamings per share, diluted

(SEK per share) 4,40 365
Average number of shares,

basic and dituted (thousands) 2019 2018
Average number of shares used

to calculate earnings per share, basic 48,598 46,540
Adjustment for calculation of

earnings per share, diluted:

Shares in Share Savings Plans 246 318
Average number of shares,

diluted 48,844 46,859

NOTE 18 Olvidend per share
tn 2019, the dividend peaid was SEK 83,908 thousand (SEK 1.80 per share). in 2018, the dividend paig
was SEK 69,6884 thousand (SEK 1.50 per share).

At the AGM on 23 April 2020 a proposal wifl be made to distribute SEX 88,662 thousand* as divi-
dends for the 2018 financial year. which cormesponds to SEK 1.80 per share. The proposed dividend
has not been reported as a liahility in these financial statements.

* The divigend s calcuiated on the tolal number of ouisianding shares as of 2020-03-19
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NOTE 17 Osferrad tax

Deferred tax assets
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As of 1 January 2018 - 612 1,741 1,274 3,628
Reported in income statement - a1 -49 2178 2,218
Reported in other

comprehensive income - - 2,275 - 2,275
Exchange rate differences - 26 -2 120 154
As of 31 December 2018 - 729 3,984 3,680 8,274
Adjustment transilion to IFRS 18 - - - 12 112
As of 1 January 2019 - 729 3,964 3.692 8,386
Reclassification from
deferred tax liabilibes - - - 3673 3,673
Reported in income statement -3,055 598 - 1,107 -1.380
Reported in other

comprehensive income - - -323 - -323
Added via acquisition 5,226 - - - 5,226
Exchange rate dfferences 98 2 - 84 184
As of 31 December 2019 2,269 1,330 3,642 8,556 15,797

Property, plant

Tax and egquipment

allocation and intangible
Deferred tax liabilities reserve assets
As of 1 January 2018 18,645 66,074 1.228 85,948
Reported in income staternent -75 4,470 -2,457 -7.002
Reported in other comprehensive
meome -508 189 - -340
Exchange rate difierences - 1,835 474 2,309
As of 31 December 2018 18,062 63,608 -755 80,914
Reclassification to
deferred tax assets - - 3,673 3673
Reported in income slatement 18 -4.130 -1,435 -5.447
Added via acquistion - 8.031 - 8,031
Exchange rate differences - 532 972 1.504
As of 31 Decamber 2019 18,179 68,041 2,455 83,675
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NOTE 18 Intangible assets

As of T January 2013
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The income statement includes depreciation, amortization and
impairment losses of SEK 40,324 (34,368) thousand for Cost of
goods seld, SEK 5,622 (2,784) thousand for Selling expenses.

Thraugh the acquisition of HMS Industrial Networks AB in 2004,
the Group acquired expertise that has provided synergy effects in
the farm of management and financing opportunities. This has
d growth prosp. which is refl ingood-
wilt for an amount of SEK 236,070 thousand.

It 2013, the German company, Ixxat (HMS Technolegy Genter
Ravensburg) was acquired, which resulted in consolidated goodwilt
ins the form of customer relations, technology platiorms and brands.
The new business atso brought synergies te the Group in the form
of complementary technology and a broader market, with a good-
will value of SEK 149,219 thousand.

In 2016, the Belgian company, Ewon (HMS Industrial Networks.
SA} was acquirad, which rasulted in consolidated goodwill in the
relations and brands. Acquisition of the new com-

pany gave rise to goodwil! attributable to the employees, market
position and expected synergies with existing cperations amaount-
ing to SEK 219,641 thousand.

I 2016, the Spanish company, Intesis Software SLU was
acquired, which resulted in consolidated goodwilt in the form of
custamer relations and brands. Acquisition of the new company
gave rise to goodwill atiributable to employee know-how and inten-
sis’ market position in the building autematicn segment ameunting

In 2018, the German company, Beck IPC GmbH was acquired,
which resulted in consolidated goodwill in the form of customer
relations and technology platforms. Acquisition of the new com-
pany gave rise to geodwitl atfributable to expected synergies with
existing operations amounting te SEK 47,136 thousand. In 2019,
goodwill was allocated in accordance with the final acquisition

In 2019, the German company, WEBfactery GmbH and the
Dutch company, Raster Products B.V. were acquired. The acquisi-
tion of WEBfactory generated a surplus m the form of complemen-
tary tachnology and cusiomer refations, aleng with gocdwill of SEK
28,013 theusand associated with the company's market pesition in
loT and the expected synergies with existing operations. The
acquisition of Raster generatad goodwill attributable to the compa-

Accumulated cost 448 228,204 722,258 97,674 88,496 1,134,079

Accumulated amortizahon and impairment/ N
exchange rate effects 448 124,672 37,202 -34,783 9154 -masey  resultedin
Carrying amaount - 100,532 759,460 62,890 87,650 1,020,532

Financial year 2018

Cpening carrying amourt - 100,532 759,460 62,890 97,680 1,020,532

Investments - 16,523 - - - 16,523

Net investments from company acquisitions - T - - - 7117

Acquisition of subsidianes - - 58,071 - - 59,071

Exchange rate differences - 39 22.324 2,638 4,217 29217
Depreciation/ameortization - -24.151 - -11,637 -1,343 37131 form of
Closing carrying amount - 100,080 840,855 53,891 100.524 1,095,330

As of 31 December 2018

Accumulated cost 448 248,844 781.329 97, 674 88,496 1,218,790

Accumulated amorhization and imparment/

exchange rale effects 148 148,784 58,526 43,783 12,028 -124 461

Carrylng amount - 100,060 840,855 53,891 100,524 1,095,330

Financial year 2019

Qpening carrying amount - 100,060 840,855 53,801 100,524 1,095,330 o SEK 117,328 thousand.
Investments 202 41,608 - - - 41,408

Net investments from company acquisiticns. - 11,190 - - - 11,180

Acquisition of subsidiaries B - 36,901 19,939 - 56,840
Rectassification of final acquisition analysis - - -10.,847 7,866 - -2.981

Exchange rate differences - -70 8,939 30 1,569 10,739

Impairment - -1.174 - - - 1174 analysis. See Note 33,
Depreciationfamortizatton 202 -27.792 - -16,519 -1,387 -45,496

Closging carrying amount - 123.622 875,843 65.473 100,706 1,165,854

As of 31 December 2019

Accumulated cost 246 301.642 807,383 124.701 88,486 1.322 467
Accumulated amertization and impairment/

exchange rate effects -246 -177.820 68,465 -59.223 12.210 -156.614

Carrying amount - 123,822 875,848 65,478 100,706 1,165,854
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ment. [n 2019, impairment testing resulted in a write-down of SEK
1,174 (0} thousand.

a) Test of impairment for goodwiil and brands

The Group's goodwill has been evaluated in accordance with IAS
36. The Greup's goodwill is atiributable to the foliowing three
cash-generating units:

2019 2018

Intesis i29.011 127,940
WEBfactory 28,934 -
Rest of The Group 717.003 7128158
Total consolidated

goodwlll 875,848 840,855

The: recoverable amount for the cash generating units has been
based on their value-in-use. This has included estimates for growth,
profit margis, fied-up capital, investment requirement and risk pre-
mium. The principles behind these assumptions wers unchanged
compared with the previaus year.

Financiat forecasts are based on the company's budget for the
coming year and its five-ysar financiat plan. The company’s market
assassment for each period is also considered. Estimates of future
cashflows are based on the Group's existing structure. Acquisitions
are notincluded.

The company’s assumptlions about future growth are based on
prior experience, external sources of information and its fong-term
business plan. For this assumpticn, expected market growth and
price development were also considered. Assumptions about future
margins are consistent with the company's finandial pian and its
historic performance, except for Intesis, where the future marging
have been adjust ds to reflect the expected costs for the
future expansion of the business. Investments during the period are
based on the company's intamat investrent plan and are expected
to equal the replacement need,

These estimates form the basis for calculating value-in-use and
the cash flow forecast for a perind covering the fixed budget and the
company's five-year financial plan. Cash flow was then extrapolated
using an assumed annual growth rate of 2.0 (2.0) %, which ie lower
than the actual annual growth rate. The need for working capital

GUYERNANCE  GLO IRY  FINANCIAL INFO
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(exciuding cash) is, over the long term, estimated at 8 (3) % for the
Group excluding Intesis an¢ WEBfactory and 15 (15) % for Intesis
and 0% for WEBfactory separate to the company's net sales. The
weighted average cost of capital (WACC) after tax is 10.1 {9.5) % for
the Group excl. intesis and WEBfactory and 10.1 (9.5) % for intesis
and 12 5% for WEBfactory separately.

All product groups are based on common technologies and they
are marketed and sold through the shared sales channels. For this
reason, compiste segment accounting is not reported

The calculated receverable amount for the Group and Intesis
exceeds the carrying amount with a good margin. The managemant
team has concluded that no reascnably significant agjustments are
required to the assumplicns that were made when testing for impair-
ment of its cash generating units such that the recoverable amount
would fall betow the carrying amount. For WEBfactory, a future
growih rate on a par with the cutcome for 2018 would mean that
goodwill would need to be written dewn by SEK 28 934 thousand.
Furthermara, a write-dovn would be realized by approx. SEK 7,800
thousand if applied WACG changes from 12.5% to 14.5%.
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NOTE19 Property, plant and agquipmant
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As of 31 December 2018, machinery and equiprnent, that the Group held through finance
lease agreements, were as follows:

Accumulated cost 3437 68,519 44,366 YRRRTERIE I ¢ 2sed assets 2019 2018
Accumulated depreciahon/amortization il -35,332 -31,790 - 67,183 Opening carrying amount - 22,484
Carrying amount 3,366 33,287 12,576 91 49,320 Investments for the year . _
Financial year 2018 Depraciation/amartization for the year - -3,904
QOpening carrying amount 3,366 33,287 12,576 91 49,320 Translation differences . asa
Investments - 9,169 3.995 273 13,434 443
Increase via company acquisitions 15 - 1,181 - 1.196 Closing carrying amount b 19,

i i - -14 - . B
::r“assr‘zc::ms s 134 & e As of 2019, non-current assets under fease are reported as a separate item in the balance
es al ISpOSsal - - - - - N N . s

sheet. Sea Note 21. Sea Note 2.1.1 a) for more information on changed accountin licies.
Exchange rate differences 144 949 277 4 1.374 ) ged 9pa
Depreciation/amortization -25 -8,358 -5,119 - -13,542
Closing carrying amount 3,500 35141 12,913 228 51,782
NOTE20 Finance leases
As of 31 Decambar 2018 , 1050 »s 1g1143 A8 0f31December 2018 machinery and equipment, al Ine Group held through finance
Accumulated cost 3,452 77922 9,545 2 31, lease agreements, were as foliows:
Accumulated depreciation/amortization,
exchange rate effects 48 -42,781 -36,632 4 -79,361 Plant and machinery 2018 2018
Carrylng ameunt 3,500 35,141 12,913 228 51,782
Caest - capitalized finance leases - 44,661
Financlal year 2013 Aceurmulated depreciationfamortzation - -25.213
Cpening carrying amount 3,500 35,141 12,913 228 51,782
Adjustment due to changed accounting Careylng amount " 19,443
policy - -19,448 - - 19448 ag0f 31 December 2018, the Group leased certain items of proparty, plant and equipment
Investments 1.529 7.262 15818 - 24710 through finance leases. Financial iease liabilities were included in interest-bearing liabili-
Increase wia company acqu - - 668 - 668 through 31 December 2018. Howsver, they were reclassified to lease liabiities on 1
Reclassifications -13 32 13 -32 - January 2019 in conjunction with implementation of the new leasing standard. See Note
Sales and disposals - - -358 - -355 2.1.1 a) for more information on the changed accounting policy for leasing,
Exchange rate differences 32 14 30 3 I The present value of future payment abligations related to financial lease agreements is
Depreciationdamortization -25 -5,578 -6,845 - 12,448 as follows:
As of 31 December 2019 Within 1 year . 3004
Accumulated cost 4 868 65,768 655,790 192 136,718 .
Accumuiated depreciation/amaortization, Between 1 and 5 years - nin
exchange rate effects 55 -48,345 -43,447 7 91,730 More than 5 years - 8,166
Carrying amount 5,023 17,423 22,343 199 44,388 Total future leasing payments - 22,341

Depreciation costs of SEK 6,667 (5,402} thousand ana included in cast of goods sold, SEK 1,927 {2,713) thousand in sailing expanses,
SEK 1,927 {2,713) thousand in administralion costs and SEK 1,927 {2,713) thousand tn research and davatopment costs
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Obligations pertaining to aperating leasas

The Group lsases a number of office, produdtion and warehouse facilities. It also leases a varety
of office machines. The leasing period typically varies between 3 and 5 years and most lease
agreements can be exisnded at the end of the leasing period for a fee that correspands to a mar-
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The following emaunts associated with leases are reported in the income statement:

SEARCH

kel-based fea.

As of 1 january 2019, the Group has recognized right-of-use assets associated with these agree-
ments, except for short-term leases and lease where the underlying asset has a low valye. See Note

2.1.1 &) and Note 21 for more information.

2019 2018

Total minimum fees for the financlal year - 36,078
Total minimum fees - 36,078
Future contractual leasing payments 2019 203
Withun 1 year - 37.048
Between 1 and £ years - 86 828
Total future leaglng payments - 125,876

NOTE 21 Leases
The following amounts associated with leases are reported in the balance shest:

Right-of-use assets 2019 1.Janvary 2019

Property 89,258 108,778
Equipment 671 1.587
Vehicles 11,500 10,662
Total 111,430 121,026

1 January 2019

Current 30,521 20978
Non-current 82,047 93,550
Total 112,588 123,537

Last year, only feasing assets and leasing liabilities associated with finance leases were reporied
i accordance with 1AS 17 Leases, The assets were reporied as a component of property. plant and
equipmint, The liabilities were raported as a P of the psb gs. See Note 2.1.1
a} far adjustments reported as part of the transition to IFRS 16 on 1 January 2018

Depreciation of righi- 5€ assets 2019

Property -23,639 -
Equiprnent =234 -
vehicles 5424 -
Total -29,497 -

Addvtionat right-of-use assets in 2018 amounted to SEK 24,378 thousand. interest expenses atiribui-
able to leasing agreements amounted to SEK - 2,335 thousand. Expenses attributable to short-term
leases for which the underlying asset is of low value amounlted io SEK -1,32% thousand. The total
cash flow asscciated with leases in 2019 was SEK -32,153 thousand.

NOTE 22 Fixed assets, by country

Total fixed

Germany
Spain

Sweden
Belgium

Other countries
Total

5. by country
230,915 8% 133,441 31%
150,928 28% 144,298 33%
156,196  28% 15411 27%
48,666 8% 39991 9%
10,563 2% 1056 <%
508,268 434,197

Fixed assets distributed by country comprise intangibie and tangibie fixed assets with the exception
of gooawill attrinitable to the Group (excluding Intesis and WEBfactary), see Nate 18.

HMES NETWORKS AHNUAL REPORT 2019 G
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NOTE 23 financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets measured Financial assets measured

Financial assets measured at at fair value through at fair value through
Financial assets amortized cost profit or loss.  other comprehensive income
2019
Non-current assets
Deposits 4,020 - - 4,020
Long-term securities holdings - 5313 - 5,313
Total non-current assets 4020 5,313 - 9,333
Current assets
Accounts receivable - trade 142,854 - - 142,854
Contract assets 2,873 - - 2,873
Denvative Instruments {Lsed for hedging) - - 4,042 4,042
Cash and cash equivalents 51,241 - - 51,241
Total current assets 196,968 - 4,042 201,010
Total financial assats 200,988 513 4,042 210,343
2018
Non-currant assets
Depasits 2,10 - - 2110
Long-term secunties holdings - 5313 - 5,313
Total non-cusrent assets 2,110 5,313 - 7,423
Current assets
Accounts recervable - trade 160,574 - - 160,574
Contract assels 4,373 - - 4,373
Cervative instruments (used for hedging) - - 2,357 2,357
Cash and cash equivalents 58,951 - - 58,951
Total current assets 223,898 - 2,357 226,255
Total financial assets 226,008 5212 2,357 233,678
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Financial liabilities amortized cost of loss comprehansive income

2019

Noit-current fiabilities

Bank loans 323,644 - - 323,644
Lease ffabilities B82.047 - - 82,047
Additional consideration - 10,434 - 10434
Total non-current liabilitles 405,691 10,434 - 415,125
Current liabilities

Bank lozns 1,195 - - 1183
Lease liabilities 30,521 - - 30.521
Accounts payable - trade 75.803 - - 75,893
Denvative instruments {(used for hedging) - - 1,212 1,212
Total current li 107,609 - 1,212 108,821
Total financial liabilities 513,300 10,434 1,212 524,946
2018

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans 335.243 - - 335,243
Lease liabiites 19,337 - - 19,337
Additional consideration - 20,551 - 20.551
Total non-current liabilities 354,580 20,551 - 375,131
Current liabilities

Bank loans 274 - - 274
Lease liabilities 3,004 - - 3.004
Additional cansderatian - 20,551 - 20,551
Accounts payable - trade 104,610 - - 104,610
Denvatlve instruments {used for kedging) - - 3.108 3.109
Total current li 107,888 20,551 3,108 131,548
Total financial Yizhilities 462,468 41,102 3,108 506,679

FMS NETWORKS ANNUAL REFORT 2019 9
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NOTE 24 inventories

The Group 2019 2018
Raw materials and consumables 102,044 103,301
Work-in-progress 37N 4,888
Finished goods 52,958 49,276
Total 158,799 157,465

Costs forimpairment of invenicries (obsolescencse) that affected the year's profit are included in cost
of goods sold and negatively impacted earnings by SEK ,511 (13,4490} thousand. The Greup does not
have sufficient financial information to caleulate the proporton of matenal in cost of goods sold.

NOTE 25 Accounts receivable and contract assets

2019 2018

Accounts receivable - trade 144,408 161,627
Provision for doubtful debts -1,554 -1.053
Accounts receivable — net 142,854 160,574

Accounts receivable are amounts attsibutabie to cusiomers for goods sold or services provided as
part of operating activities. Accounts receivable primarity fall due for payment within 30-60 days and
ail accounts recetvable have thus been classified as current assets. Accounts recelvable are initially
reported at the fransaction price. The Groups accounting palicies for impairment and calculating the
provision for doubtful debts is explained in Note 3.1 d).

The fair value of accounts receivables and contract assets

is as follow 2019 18
Accounts receivable - trade 142,854 160,574
Contract receivables. see Note & 2,873 4,373
Totat 145,727 164,947

During tha year, the Greup reported a loss concerning the impairment of accounts receivable amount-
ing to SEX -583 (782) thousand. As of 31 December 2018, the provision for doubtful debts amounted
to SEK 1,854 {1,053} thousand.

G4 s NETWORKS ANNUAL REPGRT 2018
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As of 1 December 2019, accounts recetvabie amounting te SEK 32,868 (28,325) thousand had failen
due. An aging anasysis is provided below:

2019 2018

1to 15 days 20,514 18,131
15 days to 3 months 10,050 9,186
310 6 months 864 107
More than 6 months 1,038 902
Total 32,868 28,325

In the amount for accounts receivable ovardue by more than 6 months, a provision to doubtful debts
has bean made for SEK 1,039 (302) thousand.

Na prevision to doubtful debts has been made for the remaining overdue accounts recsivables since
they are expected to be paid in full.

Pravisions for each reversai of the reserves for doubtful debts are included under Selling expensesin
the income statement. Amounts reported in the provision are typically written off when the Group no
longer expects to receive any additonal payments.

Qther categories of accounts receivable and cther receivabies do notinclude assets for which there
is & wrile-down requirement.

Carrying amounts (by currency) for the Group's accounts feceivable are as follows:

2019 2018

EUR 90,747 95,689
Ush w3 42,550
JPY 7,331 12,106
SEK 4,540 4,567
CNY 4323 are
GBP 1,805 2,007
DKK 287 478
Totai 144,488 164,827

SEARLCEH
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NOTE 25 Derivatives

2019 2018

4,042 2,357
-1,212 -3,108

Curtensy futures contracts ~ asset
Currency futures cantracts — liability

Derivatives held for trading are classtfied as either current assets or current liabilities. The entire fair
value of a derivative ir 1t that titutes a hedge instrument is classifisd as a non-current assat
or non-curfent liability if the hedgad tem’s remaining term is Jonger than 12 months, and as a current
assat of current kability if the hedged item's remaining term is igss than 42 months. Al the Croups
derivative instruments have ferms that are less than 12 months in duration. During the period, the
Group dig not have any derivatives for trading.

The Groups accounting policies for cash flow hedges are explained in Note 2.15.1.

{a) Currency futures contracts
The nominal amount of cuistanding currency futures contracts as of 31 December 2019 was
SEK 254,705 (319,215) thousand.

The hedged (and highly probable forecast) jon in foreign are d te oceur
at varying times over the next 12 months. Gains and losses on currency forward contracts as of 31
December 2019, which are a compaonent of equity, are reported in the income statement as operating
profit in the periods when the hedged transaction affects earnings.

n 2019, realized currency futures contracts had a negative impact on operating profit of SEK
-13,739 (-4,852) thousand.

{b) Hedging of net investmants in foreign operations.

The Group's bormowings In EUR ameunting to SEX 288,168 {300,039} thousand are identified as a
hedging of net investrents pertaining to the ion of idiaries. The Group’s is
that the {air value corresponds to the camying amount as of 31 December 2019. The exchange loss on
transiation of the borrpwings into SEK amounted to SEK -2,073 (-10,424) thousand at the end of the
reporting period and it has been recognized in other comprehensive income.

SLISSARY  FINANCIALIMFO GRIAFPENUK  SHAREHOLCERINF D CONTENTS
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NDTE 27 Prepaid expenses arid accrued income

The Group Parent Company
2012 2018 2019 2018
Rents 3,132 3276 - -
Contract receivables, see Note § 2,873 4373 - -
Other items 1,600 7,574 63 168
Total 17,605 15,223 53 168
NDTEZ28 Cashandcashequivalents
Inciuded (n cash equivelents in the balance sheet and the cash flow statement are:
The Group 209 2013
Cash and bank balances 61,241 58 951
Tetal 51,241 58,951

Thae Group has a grantad, unutilized overgraft faciity of SEK 3G,000 {30,000) thousand.

NOTE 28 Share capital and other contributed capital

Other

Number of  Share capitai contributed
shares {000s) (SEK t) capital (SEK t} Total {SEK 1t}
As of 1 January 2018 46,818 1,170 218,318 219,488
As of 31 December 2018 46,819 1.170 218,318 210,486
As of 31 December 2019 46,819 1,170 218,318 219,488

The total number of shares 1s 46 §18.868 (46,818,868) with a quotient value of SEK 0.02 (0.02) per
share.

WM NETWORKS AnNUAL REPORT 2049 95
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NOTE 30 Interest-bearing liabilities

2019 2018

Non-current interest-bearing liabilities

Bank loans 323,644 335.244
Liability for contingent consideration 10,434 20.551
Liability pertaining to finance leases {Note 20) - 18,337
Defined benefit pension plan 5,321 2,466
Total 330,390 377,597
Current interest-bearing liabilities

Bank loans 1,185 274
Liability for centingent consideration - 20,551
Liability pertaining to financa leases (Note 20) - 3.004
Total 1,195 23,829
Total interest-bearing liabilities 340,504 401,426

The Greup's maturity structure for interest-bearing liabilities at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

2019 2018

3 months or less 391 885
Between 3 months and 1 year 804 22,944
Between 1 and 2 years 10,912 26,727
Between 2 and 5 years 323,186 340,238
More than 5 years 5,321 10.6832
Total 340,594 401,426

Cunngthe year, the financing agreement with the existing bank was extended. The agreement applies
te a revolving facility of EUR 45 million which runs untl September 2022. At year-end, unutilized credit
facilities amounted to SEK 176 (158) million. The interest rates on bank loans are variable and tied tc
EURIBOR and STIBOR. The average interest rate in 2019 was .15 (1.18) %. Shares in subsidiaries
was provided as collateral for bank loans (Nota 36).

Loan terms for the bank loan are based on the development of net debt and EBITDA.

The carrying amount of the Group's interest-bearing liabilities correspoands to their fair value either
because the interesi rate on these liabilities is i line with current market rates or because the liabikties
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are short-term.
The non-current liability for contingent consideration is related to the acquisition of WEBFactory GmbH
in 2019. Sea Note 33 for more information. Management continualty revalues liabititiss associated with
conditional consideration to thelr estimated fair value based on the acquired company’s performance,
established budgets, business plans and projactions. This means that the fair value is substantally
based on unobservable inputs {Level 3 as defined In IFRS 13).

See Note 4 &) for a description of each item of conditional consideration, along with management's
assassment of the fair vatue.

NOTE 31 Accrued expenses and deferred income

_ The Group Farent Company

201 2019 2018
Accrued salaries 24,343 27,547 1279 1,079
Vacation pay 14,6830 17,425 459 512
Soaial security contrbutions 18,218 17,930 1,203 1,439
Deferred income 4,058 6,882 - -
Cther tems. 20,318 15,628 2,900 1,013
Total 25,460 85,712 3.040 4,043

NOTE 32 Provisions

2019 2118

Resltructunng reserve 8,947 -
Warranty provision 1,082 1,654
Tatal 1,028 1,554
Restructuring costs

In 2019, HMS implemented an action plan for adjusting its costs to a weaker market. It impacted 43
employees of the Group. Fhe total restructuring costs amounted 10 SEK 29,541 thousand. AH of that
amount was recognized in the incomea staternsnit during the financial year. The remairing srovision of
SEK 9,947 thousand is expected to be utilized dusing the next 12 months.

Warranty cosis

A provisior: has been made to assess the wamanty costs for goods that were sold under warranty and
where the wartanty period had not yet expired as of the and of the financial year, Tha warrantias are
expected lo be settled during the next financial year,
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Acguisition of WEBfactory GmbH )
On 1 April 2019, HMS acquired 74.9% of the shares in the German company, WEBfactory GmbH,  GAST and cash equivalents 23,250

which is a leading suppfier of web-based software solutions for Industria? Internet of Things, IloT. Contingent consideration 13.977
WEBfaciory was foundet in 1994 as a sysiem iniegrator jor SCADA and ihe company Teleased s frst Total purchase price 37,227
proprietary software in 2000, Currently, WEBfaclory is an established software company with custom-

ers all over the world. 1t is mostknown for its i4 software suite, which lioT-related The assets and e recognized in Gonjunctien with the acgu

challenges like data collection, analysis and visualization, as follow Fair value

The acquisition price amounted ta EUR 3.2 million on a debt-free basis and conditional consider-
ation for @ maximum ot EUR 1.5 miltion, to be paid outin 2021 it WEBtactory achieves certain defined

Intangibie assets

financial targets. The acquisition was financed with existing credit. - Intellectual proporty rignts 18,061
The acquisition has ill of SEK 43,189 thousand Gncluding minority share of 25.1%).  ~ CHstomer relations 12170
The acquired company has bees included in the HMS lidated income and balance - Deferred tax labilities -8,782
sheet since 1 April 2018, During the first nine months, WEBfactory contributed to the Group's sales by~ Property, plant and equipment 148
SEK 14,645 thousand. The acquisition’s contribution to aperating profit, including amortization on Current assets 4.869
aquired overvalues and acquisition cosls, amounts to SEK -8,902 thousand. If the acquistion had  Cash and cash equivalents 338
accurred at the start of the financial year, the contribution to net sales would have been SEK 21830 yon_current Interest-beanny liabilties 18,471
muu§a.n‘d and the ¢ hution to ing profit, inctuding amortization on acquired overvalues and Current liabilites 3418
acquisition costs, wouid have been SEK -8,403 thousand. -Tomri@é nelTssels —_— — ————— — Y — _8.2?
The acquisition analysis is based on valuations that have been made of the identifiable assets. Accord- E"_”L“““______?%
TO

ing o the acquiaition analysis {including minority share of 25.1%), the purchase price, acquired net  AcdUired net assets

assets and goodwill are a3 follows: *Goodwill i associated with the company’s market posiion in HaT and the expacted synangies with existing oper-
ations. None of the reported goodwil! 13 axpecied Lo be deductible for tax pufposes.

h guttlow
Cash purchase pnce 12,821
Acguired cash znd tash equivalents -33%
Net cutflow of cash and cash aquivalents 12,583

HIS NETWORKS ANNUAL REPORT 2018 O7
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CONT. NOTE 33 Business combinations

Acquisition of Raster Products B.V.
On 2 May 2019, the Group aeqguired all of the shares in the Dutch company, Raster Produets B.V. For
savaral years, the company has been the main distributor of HMS Ewen products in the Netheriands.

“The acquisition price amounted to EUR 1.1 milllon on a debt-free basis and it was financed using
existing credit.

The acq 1 has g dwill of SEK 7,888 thousand. The acquired company has been
included in the HMS consolidated income statement and balance sheet since 1 May 2010. Raster
Products has, for the first eight months, not had any significant impact on the Groups sates and eam-
ngs.

The acquisiiion analysis is based on valuatiens that have been made of the identifiable intangible
assets. According 1o the acquisition analysis, the purchase price, acquired net assets and goodwilt are
as follows:

Purchase price:

11,832
11,832

{Cash and cash equivalents
Total purchase price

The assets and lia

tes recegnized in conjunction with the acg

as follows: Fair value
Property, plant and equipment 524
Cument assets 6,449
Cash and cash equivalents 65
Current -3.094
Total ident fiable net assels 3,944
Goodwill* 7888
Acquired net assets 11,832

*Goodwill 1s associated with tha company's market position. None of the reportad goodwill is expectad to be
deductible for tax purposes.

Cash purchase price 11,832
Acquired cash and cash equivalents -85
Nat outflow of cash and cash equivalents 11,767

98 HMS NETWORKS ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Acyuisition analysls of Back IPC

Tha preliminary acquisition analysis from the 2018 acquisition of Beck IPC was finglized in 2018,
The acquisition was made on 17 July 2018 and finalization was possible given that a full year had
elapsed since the acquisition date.

According to the final acquisi ysis, the purch, price, acquired net assets and goodwiii
are as follows:
Cash and cash eguivalents 23,195
Contingent consideration 20.654
Total purchase price 43,849

The assets and tiabi
as follows:

es recognized in conjunction

he acquisition are

Intangible assets

- Intellectual property rights 12.262
- Customer relations 2,770
- Deferred tax habilites -2,245
Property, piant and equiprent 1,198
Deferred tax assets 5226
Inventones 7,147
Accounts recewable and other receivables 7.973
Cash and cash equivalents 384
Non-curent interest-bearing liabilities 1,580
Accounts payable and other habilites -36.424
Total identfiable net assets -3.288
Goodwill* 47,136
Acquired net assets 43,849

"Goodwlil is attributable to the expected synergiss with existing operaticns. None of the reported goodwill is axpedt-
ad 10 be dedustibla for tax purposes.

Important estimates
For information on the contingent i it iated with the st
priar acquisition of Beck IPC Gmb#, piease see Note 4 d).

of WEBfactory and the
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NOTE 34 Earnings from participations in Group companies

Dividend fram subsidiary

arent Company

Total

NOTE 35 Sharas in subsidiaries

Shares owned by Parent Conpany

2019 2018
179,123 184 679
179,423 164,679

No. of

Share shares

G

SRIAPPEMO  SHARENOLOER INFQD CONTENTE  SEARTH

HMS Industrial Networks AR
HMS Industrial Networks SA

Halmstad, Sweden
Nivelles, Balgiurm

100%
34.5%

556529-9251
450350207

6540
431

owned by
Beck IPC GmbH Wetzlar, Germany 00340 136310005 100%
Ewon KK Tokyo, Japan 3-0100-0%15-6938 100%
intallicom Innovaticn AB Halmstad, Swedsn 556537-7826 100%
Intests Software SLU lgualada. Spain B62202460 100%
HMS Electronics AB Halmstad, Sweden 556463-9374 100%
HMS industrial Networks GmiH Karlsruhe, Germany 35006/39876 100%
HMS indusirial Networks Inc* Chicago, USA 5983-659-5 100%
HMS industrial Networks India Pvt Ltd Pune, Ingia 138298 100%
HMS Industrial Networks K K Tokya, Japan 0200-01-060118 100%
HMS incustrial Networks Lid. Coventry, England 07521411 100%
HMS Industrial Networks Srl Mitan, ltaly 5260930860 100%
HMS Industrial Networks SA Nivelles, Belgiurm 450350907 65,5%
HMS Technology Center Ravensburg GmbH Ravensburg, Germany HRB 551805 100%
Raster Products B.V* Dreumel, Netherlands 11066009 100%
WEBfactory Business Center Eastemn Europe SRL ™ Sibiu, Romania JA2MM21/2002 74.8%
WEBfattory GmbH"™" Buchen, Germany HRBAGO672 74.9%

191231
100 244 039 244,039
100 93,285 93,285

* Raster Procucts B.V. was acquired on 2 May 2013, ** WEBfaclory Business Cantar Eastern Europe SRL and WEBfactory GmbH were acquired on 1 April 2018

FAR Sprl and HMS Indusirial Netwarks ApS ware liquidated during the year.

HMS Industrial Networks Lid. {CIN: 07521411)

We hereby confinm that these car

coniain figures for the UK subsidlary HMS Industriaf Networks Lim-
ited (CIN; 07521411} for the year andirg 31 December 2015. We
confirm that the JK subsidiary claims exemption from the UK audit
in accordance with section 4794 of the UK Companies Act 2006,

HMS Technology Center Ravensburg GmbH {CIN: HRB 551805}
We hereby confirm that these consolidated financial statements

cantain figures for the Garman subsidiary HMS Technology Center
Ravensburg GmbH {CiN: HRB 551905} for the year ending 31 De-
cemmber 2019, We confirm that the German subsldiary fook advan-
tage of the exemption contained in 264 (3) of the German (Han-

delagesetzbuch, HGB} as regards the preparation of a Cirectors’
rapart, notes to the financial statements, audit and publishing the
annual report for the financial year ending on 31 December 2019,

HMS NETWORKS ANNUAL REPORT 2018 99
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NOTE 36 Pledged assats and contingent lkablilities

The Group 2019 2018
Pledged assets

Shares in subsicharies 1,016,678 861,129
Contingent liabillties nane: nene
Parent Company 2019 2018
Pledged assets

Shares in subsidiaries 337,324 337324
Contingent liabilities

Security for subsidianies 353,521 364,488

NOTE 37 Proposed distribution of profit in the Parent Company
The foliowing profits are at the dispasal of the AGM:

Profit brought forward and other non-restricted reserves. 97,347
Profit for the year 180,791
SEK t 278,138
The Board of Directors proposes the foliowing appropriation of profits:

Distributing dividends to sharehoiders of SEK 1.90/share” 88,662
Carried forward 189 476
SEK ¢ 278,138

* Tha dividend i3 cafculated on the tolal number of outstanding shares as of 2020-03-18.

100 18 NETWORKS ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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NOTE 38 Related parties

There have not been any related party trangactions except for the onas specified In Note 10 Remuner-
ation fo the Board and senior executives. The Parant Company's related party transactions consist of
sales to, and purchases from, Group companies, which are reported in Note 5.5.

NOTE 38 Subsequant events

The recent COVID-1% pandemic has lad to a higher level of uncertainty and the impact this will have on
the Group's operations is very difficult to predict. No other significant events have cceurred subsequent
to the end of the period, but prior iv the signing of this annual report,

SEARLH
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BOARD'S AFFIRMATION AND SIGNATURES

The Board of Directors and CEO affirm that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared  provides a frue and fair view of the parent company's financial position and performance. The Board of
in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU and  Directors' report for the Group and parent company provides a true and fair erview of the Group's and
that they provide a true and fair view of the Group's financial financial position and perfoermance. The  parent company's business, financial position and financial performance and also gescribes matenal
Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles and  risks and uncertainties faced by the parent company and the companies that comprise the Group.

The income statement and balance sheet will bepresented for adoption at the Annual General Meeting on 23 April 2020.

Halmstad 19 March 2020

Charlolte Brogren Staffan Dahlstrim Cecilia Wachimeister Ray Mauritsson
Charwmarn of the Board CEO Board member Board member
Fredrik Hansson Anders Mdrck Ulf Sadergren Tobias Persson
Board member Beard member Board member Employee representativa

Qur audit report was submitted on 19 March 2020
Chrlings PricewaterhouseCoopers AB

Frednk Géransson
Autharized Public Accountant

102 1S NETWORKS ANNUAL REPORT 2019



D-IRADPERATIONS  PRIOULC

St e g

Audit report

s Pt L

SASTAINABILITY  BOVERNANCE G

bl = Boand s alfanshcn aed s LAt

To the general meeting of shareholders of HMS Networks AB (publ) CIN. 556661-8954

Report on the Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

VWe have conducted an audit of the annual report and consolidated
financial statements of HMS Networks AB (publ) for the year 2019.
The company's annual report and consolidated financial state-
ments are provided on pages 54-102 of this document.

in our spiman, the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Annual Accounts Act and n all material
respects, they give a true and fair wiew of the Parent Company's
financial positicn as at 31 December 2018 and of its financial per-
formance and cash flow for the year in accordance with the Annual
Accounts Act. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Annual Accounts Act and in all
material respects, they give a true and fair view of the Group's
financial posibon as at 31 December 2019 and of its financial per-
formance and cash flow for the year in accordance with the Inter-
national Financial Reporting Standards ({FRS) that have been
adopted by the EU. The Beard of Directors’ report 15 consistent with
the other parts of the annual report and the consohdated financial
statements.

We therefore recammend that the general meeting of sharehold-
ers should adopt the income statements and balance sheets for the
Parent Company and the Group

Our opinions in this report on the financial statements and con-
solidated financial statements are consistent with the cantent in the
supplermentary report that has been submitted to the Parent Com-
pany's and Group’s Audit Committee in accordance with Article 11
of Regulation (EU) 537/2014 (audt legislation).

Basis for opinien

We conducted the audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (1SA) and generally accepted auditing practices in Swe-
den. Cur responsibility as per these standards is described in the
section, Auditor's responsibility. We are independent of the Com-
pany and the Group in accordance with Ihe auditor's oath in Swe-
den and have otherwise fulfiled cur ethical responsibilities under
these requirements. This means that, based on best knowledge
and belief, no pri d services. as sup d m Article 5.1 of
Regulation (EU) 537/2014. have been provided 1o the audited

company or, where applicable, its Parent Company or its controlling
company within the EU.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaned s sufficient
and appropriate as a basis for our opinmion.

Qur audit work

Focus and scope of the audit

We designed our audit by establishing the leved of matenality and
assessing the risk of matenal misstatement in the financial state-
ments. We gave extra consideration to the areas in which the CEC
and the Board made subjective judgments, for example, significant
accounting eshmates made on the basis of assumptions and pro-
Jjections about future events, which by their nature are uncertain. As
with all audits, we also considered the risk of the Board or CEO
overriding internal contrals, and among other things, considered
whether there is evidence of systematic deviations resulting in 2 risk
of matenial misstatement due to fraud.

We adapted our audit to ensure that it would be effective, with
the aim of being able to express an opinion on the financial state-
ments as a whole, taking nte account the Group's structure,
accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which it
aperates,

When we designed our Group audil strategy and Graup audit
plan, we assessed the degree of auditing required by the Group
audit team &nd other auditors from the PwC network. As a result of
the Group's decentralized financial orgarization. a substantial
amount of the finanaial reporting occurs inentities cutside Sweden.
This means that a significant portion of the audit must be performed
by auditors operating in the PwC network in other countries.

When we assessed the degree of auditing required at each
entity, we considered the group's geographic distribution, the size
of each entity, as well as the specific nsk profile of each entity, With
that in mind, we assessed that, in addition to the Parent Company
in Sweden, a full audit would be performed on the financial informa-
tien prepared by two major subsidiaries (in two fareign countres).

For enfities where we assessed that it was not necessary 1o
conduct a full audit, specifically defined procedures were per
formed on a total of four entities and the Group team performed
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these procedures on twa of them. For other entiies. which were
assessed as being individually immaterial as regards the consoli-
dated audit, the Group auditteam performed analybcal procedures
at Group level.

In cases where the entity’s auditors carry out werk thatis essen-
tial to our audit of the Group, we evaluate, In our capacity as Group
auditors, the need and degree of involvernent in the work of the
entity auditors in order 10 determine whetner sufficient audit evi-
dence has been obtained as the basis for our opinion on the con-
solidated audit report. With that in mind, the Group audit team
reqularly meets with the entity auditors and significant subsidiaries.

Materalty

The scope and focus of the audit was impacted by cur assessment
of materiality. An auditis designed to achieve a reasonable degree
of gssurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. Errors may occur as a result of fraud or
errar, They are regarded as material if individually or collectively,
they can reasonably be expected to nfluence the econamic deci-
sians that users make based on the financial stalements.

Based on professional judgment, we established ceriain quan-
titative: materiality thresholds, including ones for the financial state-
mants as a whole, We used these thresholds, along with qualitative
assessments, to establish the scope and focus of the audrt along
with the nature of the audit procedures, iming and scope, along
with assessing the effect of individual and cumulative errors in the
financial statements as a whole,

Particularly important areas

Areas that are particularly important to the audit are those which,
according to our professional assessment. are the most significant
for the audit of the financial statements for the current period. These
areas were dealt with as part of beth the audit. and our overall
assessment of the financial statements. However, we do not pro-
wide separate opinions on these areas.
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Test of impairment on goodwiil

SFAKLH

As of 31 December 2019, goodwill amounted to SEK 876 millan, which corresponds to 50% of the
Group's fotal assets. As described in Note 18, the Group's goodwill is associated with lwo separate
cash generating units; Intesis. Webfactory and rest of the Group.

In accordance with IAS 36, the Group tests annually whether there s an impairment of goodwill,
Impairment is determined by considering each cash-generating unit's recoverable amount compared
toits carrying amount. The recoverable amount was determined by management, by calculating the
operaticns' abllity to generate cash flow in the future.

Impairment testing 1s essenlial far our audil because goodwill represents significant amounts in
ihe balance sheet. Furthermore with a test of impairment, management must make significant esti-
mates and assumptions sbout the future.

Based on management's impairment test, the Board has concluded that ne irmpairment of goodwill
exists as of 31 December 2013. The most significant assumptions used in the iImpairment lest are

Our audit procedures Included an assessment of the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow calcu-
Iation, aleng with a reconciliation of cash flow forecasts against the budget for 2020 thatwas adopted
by the Board and the business plan for 2021-2022.

We have evaluated and assessed that the company’s vatuation is consistent with accepted valu-
ation lechniques.

We have tested the reasonableness of the assumptions that have the greatest impact on the
impairment test, which include sustainable growth, sustainable operating margin and discount rate.

By making our own sensitivity analyses, we have challenged management's assumptions and
tested the existing safety margins to assess the risk that impairment could occur.

We have also evaluated whether the Company has provided enough information in the annual
report about the assumptrons which, sheuld they change, could lead to impairment of goodwill in the
future,

described in Note 18.

Other information bestdes what is shown In the financial
tat ts and lidated financial sta

This document contains other information besides the financiai

statements and consolidated financial statements and it is found on

pages 1-36 and on pages 44-53 and 106--115. The Board and the

CEO are responsible for this other information.

Our cpinion on the financial statements and consalidated finan-
cial statements does not inctude this other information, and we
make no statement of assurance regarding this other information.

in connectiocn with our audit of the financial statements, it is cur
responsibility to read the information identified above and consider
whether the information is substantially incompatible with the finan-
cial statements end consolidated financial statements. During this
review, we also take into account knowledge we obtained during
1he audit and we assess whether the information in general seems
1o contain material misstatements.

If, based on the work that has been conducted on this informa-
tion, we conclude that the other information contains a material
misstatemnent, we are obliged to report it. We have nothing to report
in that regard.
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The Board of Directors” and CEOQ's rasponsibilities

The Board and the CEQ are responsible for preparing financial
statements and consclidated financial statements that provide a
true and fair view in accordance with the Annual Accounts Act and
with regard to the cansolidated financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (iFRS) as adopted
by the EL), and the Annual Accounts Act. The Board of Directors
and CEQ are alsc responsible for any internal control they deem
necessary for preparing financial statements and censolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financiai statements the Board and CED are
responsible for assessing the ability of the Company and Group to
continue operations. They must disclose, when applicakble, any
circumstances that may affect the ability to continue cperations and
apply the assumption of continued aperations. However, the
assumption of continued operations is net applied if the Board and
CEQ intend to liquidate the company, cease operations, or if they
have no realistic alternatives than either of these twe options.

The Audit Committee must monitor the company's tinancial

reparting withoutitimpacting the Board's responsibilities and tasks
ingeneral,

Auditor's responsibility
QOur goal is to achieve a reasonable degree of assurance about
whether the financial statements as a who'e are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to submit an audit
report containing our opiniohs. Reasonable assurance is a high
degree of assurance. However, it does not guarantee that an audit
performed in accordance with ISA and generally accepted auditing
standards in Sweden will always detect a material misstatementif
one exists. Ercors may occur due to fraud or error, and they are
deemed material if, individually or together they can reasonably be
expected to influence the ecanomic decisions that users make
based an the financial statements and consolidated financial state-
ments.

A muore detailed description {in Swedish) of our responsibility for
the audit of the financial statements and consolidated financial
statements is ilable on the website of the Inspectorate
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Report on other requirements in accerdance with
tegislation and other reguiations

Oplinien

In addition to our audit of the financia| statements and consolidated
financial statements, we have performed an audit of the Board's
and Managing Oirector's administratian of HMS Nelworks AB
(pub'} for the year 2019 and the praposed appropriation of the profit
ot loss.

We recommend fo the general meeting of shareholders that the
appropriation of profit should be in accordarice with the proposal in
the Board of Directors’ report and that the members of the Board of
Dhrectors and the CEO should be discharged from inability for the
fiscal year.

Basis for opinlon
We conducled our audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards in Sweden. Our responsibility in accordance
with this is desenbed in the section. Auditor's responsibility. We are
independent of the Company and the Group in accordance with the
auditor's oath in Sweden and have otherwise fulfilled our ethical
responsibilities under these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have abtained s sufficient
and appropriate as a bagis for our opimon.

The Board of Directors' and CEOQ's responsibilities

The Board of Directors is responsible for the proposed appropria-
tion of the company’s profit or foss. With praposal of a drdend, this
inciudes an assessment of whether the dividend is justifiable con-
sidering the demands that the nature of operations, scope andrisks
place on the size of the Parent Company's and Group’s equity,
consolidation requirements, iquidity and posdion in general,

The Board is responstble for the company's organization and
management of its affairs. This includes, for example, assessment
of the cempany's and Group's financial situahon on ap ongoing
basis and ensunng that the cempany is organized such that there
are adequate controls on its bookkeeping, fund management and
other financial matters. The CEQ is responsible for angong man-

ihat 1y M accordance with ihe Board's pudelines and
instructions, meluding taking the achons necessary to ensure that
the company's accounting compiies with law and that assets are
managed in a satisfactory manner,

Auditor’s responsibifity
Cur goalregarding the audit of the administration, and therefare our
apimon. is to obtan audit evidence that wilh a reasonable degree
of certainty enables us to determine whether any Board member or
the CEQ 1n any material respect:

+ has undertaken any achion or been guilty of any ormssion,
which couid give rise to habiity to the Company,
orin any other way acted i contravention of the Swedish Com-
paniés Act, Annual Accounts Act or the Articles of Assocration
Cur goal regarding the audit of the proposed appropriation of the
picfii orloss, and thus our statement on this, 15 fo, with a Teascnable
degres of certainty, 255¢88 whether the proposal 1s consistent with
the Swedish Companies Act.

Reasonable certainty 1s a high degree cf certainty. but no guar-
antee that an audit performed in accardance with generally
accepied auditing standards in Sweden will always delect ackions
or omissions that could give rise to a liapility to the Company ortnat
& proposal for the appropriation of the profit or loss 1s not consistent
with the Swedish Campanies Act.

Arnaore detziled descnplion (in Swedish) of our responsibiiity for
the sudit of the administration 13 avaikabiz on the website of the
Swedish Inspectorate of Auditors: www.revisorsinspeklionen,se/
revisornsansvar. This description is a part of the audit report.

Ghrings PricewsterfiouseCoopers AB, 113 21 Stockholm. was elected As
auditor for HMS Networks A8 (pubdl} al the AGM an 25 Apni 2019 and it has
beenihe company s auditor sincet4 January 2004, HMS Meiwarks AB (publ)
betama a hsted company on 18 October 2067

Haimstad, 19 March 2020
bhrswngs PricewaterhouseCoopers AB

Fredrik Goransson
Authorized Public Accountant
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MULTI-YEAR OVERVIEW

FINANCIAL DATA IN SUMMARY {SEK M) 2019 2018 2016 2015
Net sales N 1,518 1,366 952 702
Growth in net sales, % o 1" 15 o ’ 36 59
Gross profit 928 B34 ) 581 4:50
Gross margin, % 81 61 B 61 T 61
QOperating income before depreciation {EBITDA) 334 T 301_ 259 18-5- i B 1?3_6_
Operating margin before depreciation (EB{TDA), % 22 27 ’ 22 726 o 77777777‘197
Operating income after depreciation/amortization (EBIT) 243 251 - - -212 149 7 102
Operaiing margin afier depreciationfamortization (EBIT). % S 16 s 18 - 8 15
Profit for the year h - 205 171 143- o ___1 00 &0
Order intake ’ 1,470 143;_ i 1204 966 [1:¥]
Earmings per share, basic, SEK 443 3.68 306 T 216 133
Earnings per share, diluted, SEK ’ 4.40 3.65 7364 2.6 1.33
Dividend per share, SEK™ 7 1000 1.80 150 1.00 063
Total assels 1,758 1,577 1438 1.408 831
Equity 1,010 7 121 6% 455
Equity per share, SEK™ 19.87 17.06 14,65 o 12.09 9-‘77
Equity/fassets ratio, % 58 54 56 o a5 55
Net deblfequity ratic % 40 R 4-077 42 éa B 59
Return on shareholders’ equity, % 22 22 21 7 7178 14
Return on capital employed, % 17 21 o 19 15 15
Investments in non-current assets 66 30 32 ) 73’9’ 25
Cash flow from operating activities 254 193 207 7 155 90
Cash flow from operating activities per share, SEK™ ’ 5.45 4.14 444 - 3.35 1.99
Average number of employees 617 536 483 467 )
Sales per employee B 25 26 24 o Eb ?

* Boerd's proposal
** Key figures have been recalculated based on Ihe 4:1 5100k Spit that cooured i the second quarter of 2017
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HMS Networks GRI Appendix 2019

The HMS Sustainability Report for 2019 is in accordance with the Global Reporting Initiative [GR). The report has been prepared in accordance with GRI Standards:
Core option and it is presented each year as an attachment to the Annual Report, The Sustainahbility Report has not been audited by a third party.

GRi INDEX

The following list refers ta the GRI disclosures that HMS reports. All disclosures are from GRI Standards version 201B.
AR = Annual Report, GRI = GRI Appendix

GENERAL DISCLOSURES

GR1 Standards  Disclosure Page number{s} GRI Standards  Disclosure Page numher(s)

GRI 102" Generat Reporting practica

Disclosures 1102-45 Entities mcluded in the consolidated finanaial statamants 26

Crganizatianal Profile 10246 Defining raport content and topic Boundanes 109 :

102-1 Name of the organization i 26 ‘ 10247 List of material topics 110 _
E:‘ : ‘-jActwwlles. brgﬂd&ﬁof‘_xzm;_:inﬁeryﬁes':- 1—:m:---—~ 16-23 102-48 Resialamants of information 104 n
| 102:3  Localion of headguarters - 12 10249 Changos i raporting 108

1024 Location of operations 12-13 102-50 Reporting period 108

102-5 Qwnership and legal form 4-5 102-61 Date of most recent report 108

102-6 Markets served B17 102-52 Reporting cycle - 108

102-7 Scale of Ihe organization 1,512 102-53 Conlagt pont for questions ragarding tha report - 13 X

102-8 information on smployeas and other workers 112 102-4 Claims of reporting 1n accordance with the GRI Standards _— 108 '

102- Supply chain 33-33 102-55 GRI-index 108-108

102-10 Significant changes to the organizalion and its supply chain 1 102-56 External assuranca 108 et

102-11 Precautionary Principle or approach 111

10212 External iniliatrves ) . ez TOPIC-SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES

10213 Membership of associations 112

102-14 Statement from semor decision-maker

Ethics snd integrity

102-18 Values, pninciples, standards, and norms of behawvior

Governance

102-18 Governance siructure

10240  Listof stakeholder groups 109-110
_10241 Collectve bargaining agreements 12
10242 Identifying and selecting stakeholders 109-110
102-43 Approach to stakeholder engagement 109-110
102-44 Key topics and concems raised 108-110

108 Hws bETWORKS ANNUAL REFORT 2019

GRI Standards Bisclosure Page nuimher{s)

Tritheanct SRONGmiG impaects

103-1,103-2, Entittas includad in tha consolicated finan- H

GRI 103: Manage-  103-3 cial statements M ‘
ment approach :
GRI 203: Indiract 203-2 Defining rapon content and tapic M -‘
Boundanes |

aconomic impacts

103-1,103-2,

Managemant approach 108111
GRI 103: Manage- 103-3
ment approach
GRI 205: Anti-cor-  205-2 Communication and fraining about ant-cor-  32-33, 111
ruption ruption pehcies and procedures R
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GRI Standards Disclosure Page number{s)

Enargy

‘ 10311032, Management approach 30-31, 109111
GRI 103: Manage- 1032
| ment approach
| eRi 302: a02-1 Energy cansumption wiihin 30-31
of the organizatian i

L Energy

302-3 Energy inlansity 3oa

1031, 103-2, 32-33. 109111

1033

h Management
GR| 103: Manage- approach

! ment approach

GRI 305: Emis- 305-1 " Direcl {Scepe 1} 32-33, M1-112
sions GHG emissions
‘ 305-2 Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG smissians  32-32, M1-112 {
‘ 305-3 Other indirecl {Scope 3) GHG emissions. 32-33, 111112
! 3054 GHG enissions intansity 3z ‘
4 103-1, 1022, Managemam approach 30, 108111
GRI 103: Manage- 103-3 ‘
mentapproach 00 . -
GRI 306: Waste I0E-2 Waste by typa and disposal methad Ll
Education
h 102-1, 1032, Managemenl approach 26-29, 109110, 112 h
ﬁam 103: Manage- 1033 \
. ment approach !
! GRI 404; Educa- 404-1 Average hours of Irsining per year 13
tion per amployee K
404-3 Parcentage of employses recemving l
regular performanck and career 13 \

development reviews

. 103-1,103-2, Management approach
GRI 103: Manage- 1023 109-110.113 |
ment approach
Supplier 4141 New Suppiie’s thal were screened using "3 I
soclal assessment social cntena
i 1031, 103-2, Management approach a2
| SRt 102: Manage- 1023 |
pproach
L . P —
GRI 418: Customar 4181 S ing, 32 |
breaches of customer pnvaty and !

| Privacy
‘ losses of custoner data |

BRI APPENIIX

BOUNDARIES

All identified materdal sustalnability topics impact
our organizalion. Some of the aspects have an
mpact beyend HMS's organizational boundar-
ies, such as supplier assessment. n the Sus-
tainability Report, the effect of each sustainabil-
ity topic both within and outside the company 1s
renarted  After several years of reporting v ac-
cordance with GRI G4, this 1s the second year
that HMS repors i accordance with the GRI
Standards. Our systems for measuring ail indi-
catars are being contnuously developed, For
example we inciude data for néw suppliers that
were screened using social cnteria (GRL 414-1)
and data have been presented for employees
that have fecelved iormation on HMS ant-cor-
ruption policies and procedures (GRI 205-2).

SHAREHOI DERINFO

GRIAPPENDIX

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

HMS 15 ia contnual contact wath all of aue stake-
holders in order to obtain valuable input for HMS's
futwre developrnent The purpo$e rs to identify
the sustainabhty aspects that our customers,
employees. investors and owners consider to be
most important.

The determirafion of %ey siakeholders for
HMS 1s based on mulual dependency and the
proximity between Ingse groups and {he cormpa-
ny Key stakehoider groups with mutual and close
relationsiops with the company &nd s achviies
can be mainly found across the value chain,
which consists of Supphiers, Employees and Gus-
tomers. Another key group with a sirong relation-
ship 10 Ine company 1% Owners and nvestors. in
2016. HMS conducted key stakeholder dialogues
Dased on prontized sustenatiity gspects toiden-
tify the sustainability aspects that HMS's custom-
ETS, ETNPIOYEESs, NVesIors &Mt oOwners consider it
be most matenal. The input lo the process was an
irinal prionbzation of sustmnabiity aspecis by the
HMS Group management team.
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Key stakeholders

! Owners and investors Contacts and meatings

B

Forum far engagement

Important issues

Lenhg-term profitable growth. Risk
managament and transparency.
Read mere on page 57-58 [ref lo
Diractors' repart]

) Continual diglog, surveys and perfar-
manca reviews.

Employees

Environmantal impact from products
and services. Skills davelopmant.
Safa and good working anvironmant,
Transport and enargy efficiency.
Monitoring suppliers on human rights
issues.

Read more on pagas 28-31, 33

Custarners i Ongoing dlalogus and surveys.

Solve specific challenges within
industrial communication, Compli-
ance with EU environmental laws.
Repaning an canflict minerals,
Transparency,

. Cngoing dlalogue and purchasing

. Suppliers
: raguiraments. Sile visits.

i
'
i

Stable, mutual successful, long-term
businass. Cleary stated requiraments
and understanding and willingness to
follew our supplier Code of Conduct.

Read more on paga 33

The table shows HMS's key stakeholders and the forum for engagement

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

This materiality assessment is based on HMS's siralegy and engagement with stakeholders.

HMS pricritizes sustainability aspects that:
+ Directly impact our success

= Directly impact our stakeholders

+ Are fungamental to our ability tc operate
* HMS can control

This approach enables HMS to set relevant goals, and to track and improve performance.

110 1S NETWORKS ANNUAL REFORT 3043
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HMS material sust:

Econanmiic

Enviroamental

Soctal
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ability aspects

Higher produdivily and indirecl economic impacts from the wse of HMS products

Energy consumplion, emissions and elecironic waste

suppliar anti

ion and customer privacy

Traiming of

MATERIAL SUSTAINABILITY RISKS

Section

Environmant

Employers
and social
matters

Human rights
and anti-
corfuption

Materiat sustainability risks

HMS oparates in an indusiry where changes in directives and
rogulations can increase fees, which in turn can increase me-
terial and production costs. Fallure to comply with laws and
environmanial requiraments for purchasad materiala can alsc
increase costs and ham our reputsation, which would iImpact
the HMS brand.

Risk management

We have an environmaental
policy that governs long-
term investments, construc-
tion material cholcas, dis-
tribution, supplier choices,
raeyeling of electronics and
chamicals managemaent.

Read more on paga 30.

HMS smployees are its greatest asset. Their knowledge,
commitmant and effarts are crucial for us to succaad with our
strategy, achieve our goals and continue to develop, If we losa
our commitment te cur employess, this may lead to decreased
job satisfaction and even ilnass. In turn, this may resutt in
loss of skills for HMS. With a weaker employer brand, wea risk
not being able 1o atiract the skills we nead for tha fulure. As a
result, continuous investmants in the wetl-being of our smploy-
gas is a must for us,

Qur work snvironment,
equality snd pay-setting
efforts are governed by our
common athics policy, sum-
rarized in "HMS Hi 57,

Read more on pages
28-30.

HMS oparales in a valua chain whare thera is a risk that
suppliers and/or cuslomers may violate human rights, require-
ments for social conditicns and environmantal regulations and
conduct business in unethical ways. A key factor for HMS is to
conduct business In a responsible and ethical way and take
responsibility for aur valua chain, since nol doing so could

pul the HMS brand at risk and inturn affect the Company
financrally.

W govern work with our
Code of Conduct.

Read more on page 32.
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The HME Code of Conduct is a staternent about
what the company $tands for and ris commitment
{0 high standards and ethicalty comect conduct
tine managers familiarize employees with the HMS
Code of Conduct, promote its provisions and maoni-

tar compliance with # wittun their organizations and
ininteractions with their courrerparties. Al enploy-
ees carry out mandalary e-leaming training ses-
sions on anti-comuphon pnncrples and policies.

HMS actvely works fo prevent cormuphon. The

Perventage of employees that have received information of HWS an-

ti-corruption policies and procedures (%)

Board of Directors

\ Parcentage to whom anti-corruphon poliies have been coammunicated

\ Fercantage that received trainmg in ant-cormuption

2018 2017

100%
0% 8%

\ Emplayees.

\‘ Percantags that anti-comuphon poiicias has been communicated 10

Tetal percentage who received training on anli-gorruption

Emplayees Europa
Employees Americas

Empioyeas Asiz

crganization's anti-comupton policies and proce-
dures are o ted duning B The
policies are continuousty communicated dunng o
entatort programs and some countries include the
Code of Conduct as an appendix in the employee
contract,

ENVIRONMENTAL
HMS continually strives to lower our intemal ime
pact and we apply a precaubonary approach, for

production generales waste consisting of electran-
ic waste which is sent for recycling. By recycing
e-wasle, metal recycling is maximized from the
avalable raw metals. The table below shows the
amoumt of electronic waste that has been recycled
between 2015-2018. Durng the year we began to
include data for non-hazardous waste

In 2019, electricity consumption from HMS s
three busingss unds was 1,174 MWh and the
percentage of renewable energy was 85.4% The

more formation see Malerial 5t nsks
on page 108, Energy, emissions, and emviranmen-
tal compliance are identified as matenal aspects
considenng dimale change as a giobal challenge.
One of our material aspects 1s electronc waste. Our

Recycl

g of olec

Non-hazardous wasle
‘ Hazardous waste

ket-based r ble energy used in Halm-
stad (BU Anvbus) 1s 52.6% solarpower (from
Skedalahed in Halmstad). The remaning 47.4%
is hydropowar (from Nissan and Atran in Haitand,
and some from Smé&land). The market-based re-

2018 2007 2016
1585 1744 |
081 k] 19 214

HM3 racycles paper, 1mn, metals, a-waste and plastic informatan grovided by the waste dispasal coatractor

Onfy dala for Maimstad

REHBLDER
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newable energy used in Ravensburg (BU ixxat) is
49.9% energy funded under the German Reneow-
atle Energy Sources Act (EEG), which intludes
the most renewabie electricity sources, such as
wind power, photovgltaics, biomass, hydroglec-
tricity, and geathermal energy. The cemainng
50.1% used in Ravensburg 1s fram other renew-
able erergy sources. Most of the 10.6% renaw-
ahle energy used in Niveiles (BU Ewan) comes
from biomass and wind farms. There is alse
some part frem hydrgelecincity and a small part
from solar panels. Dunng 2020 the company wili
swiich to a 100 % renewable energi. Infermation
about the electndity consumpuon 1s provided by
electncity providers. Electricity consumption has

only increased ay 0.5 %. Energy consumption in
relation fo the number of delivered products has
falten by 20% since 2046, which is due o how
efficiently energy is being used during the man-
ufacturing of our products. Energy consumption
from heating/cochng 15 nat reparted because we
do not have access to this data. Consumpiion
from heating and coghng is included in the rernt,

Emssion of greenhouse gases from HMS's
three business units 1s classified as Scope 1,
2 or 3 1n accordance with the Greenhouse Gas
Protocol.

Direct emissions 1n Scope 1 include fuel for
vehities used for business travel. HMS niuates
projects for smarter and more effective use of re-

Activity

Fuel for vetucles used for buginess travel

The table shows aciivitisg that have been mcluded in the

Transpors of matenals and products

of HMS s
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sources to reduce HMS energy consumption per
unit shipped Due to the fact that we bought more
cars in the Belgium company, our emissions in-
creased shghtly, though less than 1%.

The ndirect energy consumption in Scope 2
comes from electncity. We aim for all business
units to use renewabie energy and therefore
shift o renewable energy n HMS facilties when
feasible. In 2019, emissions from electnicity con-
sumption increased as the emissicn factors for
Belgium changed.

Scope 3 covers meoming shipments of ma-
terials transported to Sweden (which are done
in the company’s own transport account). For
HMS, incorming transport 15 key as this 1s the ma-
jor source of HMS's greenhouse gas emissions.
HMS inthate projacts for smarter and more effec-
tive use of resources to reduce HMS's emissions
of greenhouse gases. Emissions from transport
of incoming materials increased by 19% from

MEMBERSHIPS

PROCULTS  SUSTAIMNAEBILITY

2018 to 2019. The increase is mainly due to
larger volumes of goods as product sales have
increased

Emissions have been calculaled using the
CEMAsys too! for ciimate and energy reporting.
The CEMAsys carbon footprint module is based
on the GHG Protocol and 1t includes an extensive
databage coverng worldwide emisson factors.

HMS 1s 2 member of several asscciations in order to build understanding and promote innovation
and business development. The memberships cansidered to be of strategic importance are listed

here.

Membership

+ Association for High Technology Distnbution
+ CLPA - CC-Link Partner Association

+ Control System Integrators Association

+ ETG — ElherCAT Technology Group

+ Pl = Prefibus Intamational

= OPC Foundation

i = CAN n Automation (CJA)

+ QDVA (an HMS employee 1s Chairman of the Technical Review Board)

- Rockwell Automation Global Encompass Partner

» Schneider Elecinc CAPP - Collaborative Automation Partner Program
* VDMA (The Mechanical Engineenng Industry Assaciation)

» 5G-ACIA - 5G Alliance for Connected Industnes and Automation

112 4 N TWORKS ANNUAL REFORT 2019
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SOCIAL

All employees are entitied to join a union. 40% of the Groups' employees, all employed in Sweden,
werg covered by collective barganing agreements at the end of 2019. The table shows the total num-
ber of employees for each type of employment contract as of 31 December. HMS doesn't have any
seasonal variations in the number of employess.

207

Wamen

2018
Wamen

2019
Women

Number of empiayees

Mesy

| Total number of amployses 449
| Number of permanant amployees 123 414 143 449 145 478
- Full ime 106 394 13 436 140 451
i -Pantime 2 20 12 13 5 53
l Number of ilemporary employees 2 4 - 3 3 -
5 Europa
: Total number of employees - - 128 385 129
Number of permanent employees - - 128 385 126
- Full time - - "7 a2z 122
- Part bma - - n 12 4
Number of temporary employees - - - 3 3
Asia
Total number of employess - - 4 Eal -] 34
Number of parmanent empioyaes - - 4 n 9 34
- Fulltime - - 4 31 9 3
- Part irne - - - - - -
Number of temporary amployees - - - - - -
North and South America
Total numbaer of employeas - - 1 33 10 38
Number of permanent employeas - - " 33 10 38
- Full tme - - 10 kx] 9 38
- Part tme - - 1 - 1 38
Number of tamporary smployses - - - - - -

The table shows the fatal number of employees per employment contrac! as per 3112,
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CONTENIS

SEARZH

HMS continuously stives to create an atiraclive
workplace for all employees, and the company
promotes a high-performing organization by con-
tinvously developing and traiming our employses.
The percentage of employees that had perfor-

Number of employees

mance reviews in 2019 was 87% The main rea-
son for the remaming 13% is that new employees
did not have performance reviews during thewr
first year of employment.

2017 2018 2019

during the yoar
Corporate management

‘ Managers
Employses

Human rights are a vital part of HMS's Code of
Conduct and a part of the evaluation of partners
and supplier assessment. By seeking to improve
good governance throughout supply chains, we

' Total shana of all employees who had perfermance reviews

Totat  Women Men  Women  Men

wn wm s wen o
- - 94% 100?'

93% 92% 83%  TO%
e e ww e

actin our own interest as well as in the interest of
our stakeholders and society at larga HMS en-
gages with responsible supphers, distributors and
partners that support the HMS Code of Conduct.

Percentage of new suppliers that were screened using social criteria

Totat number of:

New key suppliers with which HMS stgned a conract

2018 2018

! New suppliers that wera screenad using human nghts critena . N

CONTACT

For more information on the Sustainability Report and our sustainability efforts, please contact
Magnus Hansson, Global Systems and Security Manager pd HMS, mah@hms.se.

GRIAPPENDIX
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WELCOME TOQ THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Welcome to the AGM

The shareholders of HMS Networks AB (publ) ars hamby invited 10 the Annual General Meeting,
which will be field 10.30 a.m on Thursday, April 23 2019 at the HMS head office, Staticnsgatan
37, Halmstad. Registration for the Annual General Mesting wilt begin at 16.00 a.m.

Right to participate In in the Annual Generat Mesting
Shareholders wha wish to participate in the Annual Ganeral Meeting must be registered in
the share register kept by Euroclear Sweden on Friday, 17 April 2020 and give notice of their
intention to participate at the Meeting to the Company no later than Friday, 17 Aprd 2020.
Registration must be communicated in one of the following ways: by phone: +46 (0)35-17
29 00, in writing: HMS Networks AB, "HMS Networks AB:s Annual General Meeting”, Box
4126, SE-300 04 Halmstad, or via the wabsite: www.hms-networks.com. The registration must
nclude the following information: namea, personal 10 number/CIN, shareholding, address, day-
time telephone number and, when applicable, information on assistants or deputias who will
be attending.
The registration must include, where applicable, complete authorization de guch as
registration certificate, power of attormey, or equivalent.

Proxies

If a sharsholder is represanted by a proxy, the proxy must be 1ssued with a power of attorney
date for this day. If the power of attorney is issued by a legal entity. a certified copy of the regis-
tration cextificate, ot ather document demonstrating the signatory's authority to sign for the legal
antity, must be included. The power of atlorney and any registration cerbficate may not be more
then oné year old. The power of attorney {original) and registration certificate should be sent
1o HMS Networks AB, "HMS Networks AB:s Annual General Meeting”, Box 4126, SE-300 04
Halmstad, well in advance of the AGM. The power of aHarney form is available on the Company's
wabsite; www.hms-networks.com and at the Company's head office.

Nominse-registersd shares
Sharshoiders whose shares are registered in tha name of 8 nominea through a bank oreentral
securities daposiiory mugl iempaorarily ra-register the shares in their own name to be able fo
participate in the AGM. Such registration must ba recieved by Eurociear Sweden no later than
17 Aprit 2620, which means that shareholders must notify nominees of their inlentions well in
advance of the stated date.

- Halmstad, March 2020
L. HMS Networks AB {publ)
ey The Board of Directors
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Follow HMS at www.hms-networks.com

Allinterim reports, annual reports and certain presentations are available on the HMS website
www.hms-networks com/ir, A printed version of the annual report can be ordered by emailing
r@hms.se. Piease make sure to include a complete delivery address.

Important reporting dates:
April 23, 2020 Q1 Report 2020
April 23, 2020 Annual General Meating
July 15, 2020 Q2 Report 2020
October 23, 2020 Q3 Report 2020
February, 2021 Year-end Report 2020

hitps /twww facebook comHMSIndustnalNetworks

hitps #twitter com/hmsnetworks

https fwww [Inkedin. cor hms-industrial-netwarks

B EH <D

hEtps-/fwww youlube comiuser/HMSIndustriaiNetwork
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NOTE 34 Earnings from participations in Group companies

Dividend from subsidiary

179,123 164 679

Total

NOTE 38 Shares in subsidiaries

Shanes owned by Parent Gompany

HMS Industrial Netwerks AB
HMS Industral Networks SA

179123 164,679

Registored office

Shares owned by subsidiary

Beck IPC GmbH Welzlar, Germany 00340136310005 100%
Ewon KK Tokye, Japan 2-0100-0115-6936 100%
Intellicom innovation AB Halmstad, Sweden 556537-7826 100%
Intesis Software SEU lguaiada, Spain B62202480 100%
HMS Electronics AR Halmstad. Sweden 556463-9374 100%
HMS Industiial Networks GmbH Karlsrune, Germany 35006/39876 100%
HMS Industnal Netwarks Inc* Chicago, USA 5983-659-5 100%
HMS Industrial Networks India Pt Ltd. Pune, India 138298 100%
HMS Industrial Networks iK.K Tokyo. Japan 0200-01-060118 100%
HMS Industal Netwarks Ltd Coventry, England ors21411 100%
HMS Industnal Networks Sr.l. Mitan, ltaly 5260930960 100%
HMS Industnal Netwarks SA Nivelles. Balgium 450350807 65.5%
HMS Technology Center Ravensburg GmbH Ravenshyrg, Germany HRB 551905 100%
Raster Products B V." Dreumel. Nethsrlands 11060008 100%
WEBfactery Business Center Eastern Europe SRL ** Sibw, Romania Jaz2i121r2002 T4 9%
WEBfactory GmbH™ Buchan, Germany HRB460672 74 9%

GRI AFPENQIX
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sanmenats

MNa. of With
Registered oftice shares  quotient vaiue 191231 181231
Halmstad, Sweden 556529-9251 100% 6.540 100 244,039 244,039
Nivelles, Belglum 450350807 34,5% 431 100 93,285 93,285

* Raster Producis BV, was acquirad on 2 May 2019, " WERfactory SBusiness Center Eastarn Europa SRL and WEBfactory GmbH wers acquirsd on 1 April 2018,

FAR Sprt and HMS Industrial Networks ApS were liquidated during the year.

HMS Industrial Natworks Ltd, (CIN: 07521411)

We hereby confirm that these consaolidated financial statements
conlain figures for the UK subsidiary HMS Industriat Natworks Lim-
ited (CIN; 07521411) for the year ending 31 December 2019. We
confirm that the UK subsidiary claims exemption from the UK audit
In accardance with section 479A of the UK Companies Act 2006,

HMS Technology Center Ravensburg GmbH {CIN: HRB 551905)
Wa hereby confirm that these consclidated financial statements

contain figures for the German subsidiary HMS Technology Center
Ravensburg GmbH (CIN: HRE 551905) for the year ending 31 De-
cember 2019, We confirm that the Ganman subsidiary took advan-
tage of the exemption contained in 264 (3) of the German (Han-

delsgesetzbuch, HGB) as regards the preparation of a Directors’
raport, notes to the financial stataments, audit and publishing the
annual report for the financlal year ending on 31 December 2018,

HMS NETWORKS ANNUAL REPORT 2018 99
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HMS - The leader within industrial communication and 1loT
HMS develops and manufactures software and hardware for industrial communication. Our products connect devices such

SHAREHILOERINF D

as robots, sensars, contro! systama, HVAC units and motors to different industrial networks, building autemation systems and loT-applications.

HMS solutions connact millions of devices around the world and enabla our customers to widen their market and improve their business.
Our long expertise, largs instailed base, and wide markel coverage, make us the undisputed market leader of our field.

Get connected!

SEARCH

L4

HINS
17

Box 4128, 300 04 Halmetad
Phons; +48 35 17 2000

Info@hma-netwarka.com
W - NBROTRS. COM




